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Vision
“To be the most coveted Savings and Investment company,

while leading the effort to make the saving
population and industry grow”

Mission
“To be the preferred Savings and Investment Manager in Pakistan
by being best in class in customer services
and maximizing stakeholders’ value™

Core Values

HONESTY
We ensure to build trust through responsible actions and honest
relationships with our colleagues, customers and stakcholders

INTEGRITY
We work with mtegrity in everything we do, and embody our principles
when working with stakeholders as well as internal and external customers.
We assure to promote the integrity for the ultimate benefit for everyone

ETHICS
As a trusted custodian of customer funds, we are commitied to
conforming to the highest level of cthical standards in the workplace
that mnvolves putting customer interest first and maintaining
our stakcholders trust in the Company

PROFESSIONALISM
We value everyone and treat our external and internal
customers and our stakcholders with respect, dignity and professionalism
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of MCB Investment Management Limited will
be held on Monday, 28" October, 2024 at 11:30 am at Sapphire Hall, Ramada Creek, Zulfigar Street 1.

DHA Phase VI Karachi, Pakistan, as well as through electronic means’ Video link facility to transact the
tollowing businesses:

Ordinary Businesses:

To confirm the minutes of the last AGM General Meeting held on October 23, 2023,

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2024 together with Directors” and Auditors” Reports thereon,

As required under section 223 of the Companies Act, 20017 the Annual Report of the Company for the
financial vear ended June 30, 2024, has been uploaded on the Company’s website which can be downloaded
accessing the following link / QR Code:

To declare and approve final cash dividend of 25 percent 1.e. Rs, 2.5 per ordinary share of Rs. |0/~ each for
the year ended June 30, 2024, a5 recommended by the Board of Direetors,

To appoint external auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2025 and fix their remuneration.
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed the
appointment of M/s, AF. Ferguson & Co, Chartered Accounlants, as external auditors of the Company for the
vear ending June 30, 2025,

Special Business:

5.

To consider and, if thought fit. to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special
Resolution under section 32(1)(c) of the Companics Act, 2017 to approve alterations in the object clause
(I of the Memorandum of Association of the Company to add the business of REI'T Management
Services and Private Fund Management Services,

*RESOLVED THAT subject to prior approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
Commission) under RBule 5(6)h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 (the Rules), after Cluuse 3 addition of Clawse 3A. and 3B. (as appearing in the “Statement of
Material Faets™) m the object clause (1T} of the Memorandum of Agsocistion of the Company, be hereby
approved and adopted to wndertake the business of REIT Management Services under the Real Estate
Investment Trust Regulations. 2022 and Private Fund Management Services under Private Funds
Regulations, 201 5.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in addition 1o aforesaid changes in the Memorandum ol Association
approved by the members as special resolution, any changes in the Memorandum of Association as may be
advised and directed by Commission and agreed by the Chiel Exceutive of the Company shall be treated as
approved and adopted by the members from the date of passing of this special resolution as part of this
Special Resolution without the need of the members approval and shall have effect accordingly.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive and/or Company Secretary and /or Chief Financial
Officer of the Company be and are hereby jointly or severally authorized to prepare, finalize, execute and
file all necessary documents, and do all necessary acts, deeds, and things in connection therewith and

ancillary thereto as may be required or expedient to give effect to the above resolution and to complete all
necessary corporate and legal compliances and formalities.”

Any Other Business
6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2007 in respect of special business contained in Agenda
fiem Number 3 is annexed to the notice being sent io the members.

By Order of the Board

U
L | 3
Oetaber 07, 2024 Altal Ahmad Faisal
Karachi, Compuany Secretary

IMPORTANT NOTICES:

1. PARTICIPATION VIA PHYSICAL PRESENCE OR THROUGH VIDEO LINK FACILITY
The Company intend to convene this AGM with minimal physical interaction of members while ensuring
compliance with the quorum requirements and requests the members to censolidate their attendance and voting
ai the AGM through proxies.

Members, miterested o participate m the mecung via video Hnk tacilicy, are requested 1o email their Mame,
Folio Number / panticipant’s 1D number, Cell Number, CNIC / Passport Number with subject “Regisiration
for MCBFUNDS AGM™ along with valid copy of both sides of Computerized Mational Tdentity Card
(CNIC) at aomi@mebfunds,com. Video link and login credentials will be shared with only those members
whose emuils. contuining all the required particulars, are received at least fortv-gight (4¥) hours before the
time af AGM.

Members can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email
address agmig meblunds.com.
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CNIC No. /
Name of member Passport No. Fuolin / CDS No. Cell No. Email address

Login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the
meeting aftér identilication process. Members will be able to login and participate in AGM proceedings
through their devices after completing all the formalities required for the dentification and verilication of the
members and members will be encouraged 1o participate in the AGM to consolidate their attendance and
participation through proxies,

NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, October 22, 2024, to Monday,
October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of pur Share Registrar M/s.
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, Block B, SMCOHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi —
74400, by the close of business (3:00 p.n) on Monday October 21, 2024, will be considered in time for the
determination of the entitlement of the shareholders 1o atlend and vole at the meeling,

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY AND PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM

A member entitled 1o attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another person as his'her proxy
to attend, speak and vote for his‘her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy has the
right to demand and join in demanding a poll and vote on a poll.

The instrument appomnting proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed, as the case may be, or a notarially certified copy of the power or autharity, must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at least 48 working hours before the time of the meeting. In the case of
corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted {unless it has been provided carlier) along with proxy form to the Company. Form of Proxy is
enclosed in English and Urdu language.

Beneficial owners of the physical shares and the shares deposited with the Central Depository Company aof
Pakistan Limited (CDC) and [ or their proxies are required 1o produce their original Computerized National
ldentity Card (CNIC) or Passport for identification purpose at the time of atending the mecting.

The members are herchy notified that pursuant 1o Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2008 (Ythe
Regulations™) amended through Notification dated December 03, 2022, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP"), SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide the right
to voie through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses ¢lussitied as
special business,

Accardingly, members of the Company will be allowed o exercise their right to vole through electronic
voting facility or voting by post for the special business in its forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held
on Monday, 28" October, 2024 at 11:30 am at Sapphire Hall, Ramada Creek. Zulfigar Street 1, DHA
Phase V1. Karachi, Pakistan, in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained
in the sforesuid Regulations,

For the convenience of the Members, ballot paper is annexed (o this notice and the same 15 also available on
the Company’s website al www.mebfunds.com for download,

Member are requested to update their details together with Name, Folio/ TDC Account No., E-mail address,
contact number o the share registrar of the company M/s. CDC Shure Registrar Services Limated, CDC
House, Black B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-c-Faisal, Karachi — 74400,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING

(a) Detuils of the e-vormg facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company
who have their valld CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail sddresses available in the register of members
of the Company by the close of business of Monday, October 21, 2024,

{b) The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email. The security ¢odes will be
communicated to members through SMS from web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (being
the c-votng service provider),

(e} ldentity of the members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be authenticated through electronc
signature or authentication for login.

(d) E-Voting lines will start from October 25, 2024, 09:00 am. and shall close on October 27. 2024 at
5:00 p.m. Members can cast their votes any time during this period. Onee the vote on a resolution 15 cast by o
Member, he / she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

PROCEDURE FOR VOTING THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC), should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company's registered
address Adamjee House, 2nd Floor, L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi or email at chairman@mcbfunds.com one
day before the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 28, 2024, during working hours, The signature
an the ballot paper shall match the signature on CNIC.

For the convenience of the Members, ballol paper is annexed (o this notice and the same is also available on
the Company's website at www.mehfunds.com For download.

VIDEQ-CONFERENCE FACILITY

If the members holding 10 per cent (ten percent) of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the
Company shall provide the facility of video-conference to such members for attending Annual General
Meeting of the Campany, if so, demanded by such members inowriting to the Company at least seven (71 days
before the date of the meeting,

Consent for Videp-Conference Facility

I'We, . being 8 member of MCB Investment Management Limited holder of
Ordinary Share{s) as per Register Folio/CDC Participant 1D & Sub-Account/Investor Account No.
hereby opt for participation in the Anoual Gereral Meeting to be held on
Monday. October 28, 2024 or any adjowmned meeting through video-conlerence facility at

i Please insert name of the City)

Diate: Signature of Member:

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF VALID CNIC COPIES (MANDATORY)
Members, who have not vet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC, are requested to submit the
same along with folio number, at the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share Registrar,

CHANGE IN MEMBERS ADDRESSES

Members having physical shareholding are requested to immediately notify any change in their address to the
Share Registrar M/s, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. Whereas, CDC account holders are reguested 1o
contact their respective CDS participant/broker/ Investor Account Serviees.
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CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO BOOK-ENTRY FORM

In compliance with section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP's letter No, CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-
640 dated 26 March 2021, listed companies pre required to replace existing physical shares issued by them
imo Book-Entry Form. In view of the above requirement, sharcholders of the Company having physical
folios! share certificates are requested o convert their shares from physical form into Book-Entry Form as
suon as possible,

Conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form would facilitate the sharcholders in many ways e, sale
custody of shares. readily available market for instant sale and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of loss &
damage, easy & safe transfer with lesser formalities as compared to physical shares. The shareholders of the
Compuny may contact Share Registrar of the Company [i.e. M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited] for
assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form,

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY (MANDATORY REQUIREMENT)

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations, 2017, every listed Company s required to pay dividend, if any, to their members compulsordly
through electronic mode by direetly erediting the same in their bank sccount provided by them. The Company
shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who do not provide their bunk details.

Members are required to provide to the Company’s Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio
number. complete bank account number (IBAN), and title of bank account. CDC account holders should
submit their request dirgctly to their broker (participant)/CDC

Those sharcholders who have still not provided their IBAN are once again requested 1o fill in “Electronic
Credit Mandate Form™ and send 1t duly sigoned aloog with a copy of valid CNIC o their respective CDC
participant / CDC Investor account scrvices (in case of sharcholding i Book Entry Form) or 1o the
Company’s Share Remstrar MY, CDC Share Registror Services Linuted (CDCSRSL), CDC House, 99-8,
Block *B°, S.MUC H.S,, Maimn Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi=74400 (in case of shareholding in Physical Form).

A Dividend Mandate Form is available at the Registered Office of the Company ond can also be downloaded
from the Company’s wehsiic.

DEDUCTION OF WITHHOLDING TAX ON THE AMOUNT OF DIVIDEND UNDER SECTION 150
THE INCOME TAX ORDINANCE, 2001 (MANDATORY)

Pursuant to section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000, the rates of deduction of meome tax from
dividend payments under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 are as follows;

a) Rate of tax deduction for persons appearimg in the Active Tax Payers List; 15% per cent
b) Rate of tax deduction for persons not appearing in the Active Tax Payers List: 30% per cent

The tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend (@ 15 per cent shall be made for the payment of dividend to
shareholders whose names are entered 10 the Active Tax Payers List provided oo the websile of FBR, before
elose of business hour (3:00 p.) on Monday, October 21, 2024 otherwise tax on the cash dividend will be
deducted @ 30 per cent, Active Tax Payers List 15 available at Federal Board of Revenue’s (FBR) websie:
b wewew oo, pk

Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR). with-holding tax will be
determined separately on ‘Filer/Mon-Filer”™ status of Principal sharcholder as well as joint-holden(s) based on
their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts,
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14.

The required information must reach our Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited by the
close of business (500 p.m. ) on Monday, Oclober 21, 2024; otherwise, it will be assumed that the shares are
cqually held by Principal sharcholder and Joint Holder(s),

In this regard, all sharcholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide sharcholding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as
follows;

Folio/ChC Total | Principal Sharcholders Joint Haolder (5)
Afe No. | numberaf | Name and Sharcholding Name and Sharcholding
shires UNIC No. Proportion (Mo, UNIC No, Proportion
of Shares) (Na, of Shares)

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whercas corporate physical sharcholders should send a copy of their
NTN certificate 1o the Company or Share Registrar, The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates,
us the case may be. must guote Company name and their respective folio numbers.

For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Company and/or the Share Registrar at the
following phone Numbers, email addresses:

Company: MCB Investment Management Limited
UAN: 11-11-622-24 email: info@mebiunds.com
Share Registrar; CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised 1o contact our Share
Registrar M/s CDUC Share Registrar Serviees Limited to collect / enguire about their unelaimed dividend. if
any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Compuanies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated
procedure, all such dividends owtstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall
be deposited by the Company 1o the Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend.

PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON THE WERSITE
The Annual Report of the Company (comprising of annual Financial Statements) for the vear ended June 30,
2024, has been placed on the Company s website: wwwoimebfunds.com,

CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL REPORT 2024 AND NOTICE OF AGM

In terms of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is allowed to send Financial Statements
and Reports to its members electronically. Notice of AGM containing QR enabled code / weblink o access
and download Annual Report 2024, has been circulated through email to those shareholders whose email
addresses are available with the Company's Share Registrar, and in case remaining shareholders, whose email
addresses are not available, a printed copy of the notice has been dispatched on their registered addresses
through post,

Shureholders who wish o recetve Annual Beports and notices of general meetings through e-mails arg
requested to update therr email address with the Share Registrar of the Company,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS PERTAINING TO SPECIAL BUSINESS UNDER SECTION
134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

AGENDANO. 5

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annupal
General Meeting of the Company on Monday, 28* October, 2024 at 11:30 am_at Sapphire Hall, Ramada
Creek. Zulfigar Street 1. DHA Phase V11, Karachi, Pakistan.

MCH Investment Management Limited {the Company) is a Non-Banking Finance Company, licensed as Assct
Munggement Company, Investiment Advisor and Pension Fund Manasger under the Securites and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan™s Regulatory regime, The principal line of business of the Company is floating and
munaging Collechive Invesiment Schemes, Voluntary Pension Schemes und providing Investment Advisory
Services,

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meetimg held on September 25 2024, has decided to diversify its
business activities as REIT Management Company and Private Fund Management Company subject to grant of
licenses by the Securities aod Exchange Commission Pakistan (Commission) under the Real Estute Investnient
Trust Regulations, 2022 and Private Funds Regulations, 2013 respectively.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors has proposed to pass special resolution for alteration in the object elause (111
of the Memorandum of Association (MOA) by making addition of clause 3A. and 3B. (a5 appearing below)
subject to prior approval of the Commission under Rule 5(6)(h) ol the Non-Banking Finance Companies
( Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the Rules).

Diselosure under Para A(3) and Para (C) of SRO 423 of 20018 dated April 03, 2018

1. Comparative analysis of existing clause with the proposed alteration along with the reasons and
justification of the proposed change:
The alterations in MOA are proposed 1o make the addition of the following two claoses e, 3A. and 3B. in
Object Clause 11 of the MOA after elanse 3. There are no existing cliuses to compare with,

A, Subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and in particular the Rules, to
carry on the business permitted to be carried out by o REIT Management Company in terms of the license
to provide REIT nanagement services granted by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with the Rules and the Real Estate Investment Trust
Regulations, 2022 {hereinafter referred to as "the REIT Regulations” which shall mean and include any
amendments and/or substitutions thercol) and take all accessary steps and actions in connection therewith
and ancillary thereto cluding but not limited to obtunig lcense as REIT Muanogement Company: to
constitute, float and manage REIT schiemes under trust deeds, and to organize, promote, form, create,
establish, support, manage, operate and administer REIT schemes of any type or character as may be
agllowed under REIT Regulations: to act a5 the management company for REIT schemes and to offer,
issue, sell, hold, repurchase and accept the surrenders of units 1o the local and foreign private and public
investors, including institutions, companies, agencies, stututory corporations. entities, povernment and
semni government institutions and trusts: o register the REIT Scheme(s) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, with the object of maximizing the return for unit holders while staying within
the risk profile disclosed o the investors/unit holders;: 1o make necessary appointments and hirings and to
delegate one or more of its [unctions to gualified and eligible individuals, firms, companies or
organizations subject o necessary approvals required under the REIT Regulations; to gel hsting of the
REIT Scheme(s) at stock exchange(s) in Pakistan or outside Pakistan subject to necessary approval and
delisting of any REIT Schemes as may be require and deemed necessary; and to undertake any other
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iR,

II

aution as may be necessary and expedient for the benefits of the investors/unitholders such as merger, de-
merper, te-organization of REIT Schemeis) ete. subject to necessary regulatory approval; and 1o
undertake and fulfill all legal and regulatory requirements, obligations and formalitics a5 may be
applicable under the Rules, REIT Regulations and other laws, rules and regulations.

Subject to and in secordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and in particular the Rules, to
carry on the business permitted 1o be carried out by a "Private Fund Management Company™ as permittied
in terms of the license to provide private equity and venture capital fund management serviges granted by
the Securities and Exchange Commmission of Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with
the Rules read with the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Nolified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations) and the Prvale Funds Regulations, 20135 (Funds Regulations) or replacement thereo!
and to take all necessary steps and actions i connection therewith and ancillary thereto; and to undertake
and fulfill all legal and regulatory requirements, obligations and formalities as may be applicable under
the Rules, and NBFC Regulations and Funds Regulations and other lnws, rules and regulations.

Reasons for change in the Memorandum of Association of the company:

Being @ fund management NBFC, the Company has potential, and it also qualifies eligibility criterin for
obtaining License as REIT Management Company and Private Management Company. The objective of
change in the MOA is diversification of business activities of the Company to utilize the potential of the
company in the respective business areas in addition to existing business activities.

Statement by the board that the proposed alterations are in line with the applicable provisions of the
law and regulatory framework:

The proposed alterstion/addition in the Memorandum of Assaciation is in line with the applicable provisions
of the law and regulatory framework and will not have any adverse effects on the interest of the company and
its shareholders,

Impact on the existing business activities:

The diversification of business activities as aforesaid will not have any impact on the existing principal lne of
business of the Company i.c. floating and managing Collective Investment Schemes, Voluntary Pension
Schemes and providing Investment Advisory Services.

Nature and extent of interest, if any, therein of every director, whether directly or indirectly:
The Directors of the Company have no direct or mndirect interest in the proposed alterations in the
Memorandum of Association except to the extent of their directorship in the Company,

Inspection of decuments:

A copy of existing Memorandum of Association along with copy of Memorandum of Association as will
appear after proposed alterations. has been kept at the Registered Office of the Company which may be
inspected during business hours (9 aom 105 pom.) on any working day from the date of publication | 1ssue of this
notice.
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CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES
INTO BOOK-ENTRY FORM

The SECP, through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26,
2021, has advised all Listed Companies to adhere to the provisions of Section 72 of
the Companies Act, 2017 (the *“Act”). which requires all companies to replace shares
issued in physical form to book-entry form within four years of the prommulgation of
the Act.

Accordingly, all sharcholders of the Company having physical folios/share
certificates are requested to convert their shares from physical form into book-entry
form at the earliest. Shareholders may contact a PSX Member, CDC Participant, or
CDC Investor Account Service Provider for assistance in opening a CDS Account
and subsequent conversion of the physical shares into book-entry form.

Maintaining shares in book-entry form has many advantages — safe custody of
shares with the CDC, avoidance of tormalities required for the issuance of duplicate
shares, and readily available for sale and purchase in open market at better rates. The
shareholders of the Company may contact the Company’s Share Registrar M/s CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited at the following address for the conversion of
physical shares into book-entry form.

CDC House, 99-B,

Block B, SM.C.H.S..

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi- 74400
Tel: 0800-23275

Email: info(@cdesrsl.com

i

i

o i ’l

\mar_r_’ia-f

Altaf Ahmed Faisal
Company Secretary
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PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY
(MANDATORY REQUIREMENT)

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act,
2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Please note
that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply
with this regulatory requirement and to avail the facility ol direct credit of dividend
amount in bank account. sharcholders are requested to please update their
International Bank Account Number (IBAN- 24 digits) with the Company’s Share
Registrar.

The sharcholders of the Company may contact the Company’s Share Registrar M/s
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited at the following address for updating of
IBAN.

CDC House, 99-B,

Block B, S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400
Tel: 0800-23275

Email: infoedesrsl.com

Altat Ahmed Faisal
Company Secretary
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

| am privileged to present this Repor to the members of MCB Investment Management Limited for the
penod ended June 30, 2024, 1t is an opportunity for us to collectively reflect, resel and rejuvenate our
mission o become a prowth-onented and sustsmable Company.

The Audited Financial Statements for the year reveal the following aboul the performance of the
Company, when compared with last vear:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Amount in Rupees——-
Management Fee / Investment Advisory Fee 1608510322 1.100.957,252
Income from mmvestments mcluding profit on deposits 571,028,574 145,162,871
Profit before taxation 1,271,494 346 613,921 946
Profit after taxation 861,302,376 ITR.21IR.186
Earnings per share (EPS) 11.96 5.25

At the forthcoming AGM we will be pleased to present before our shareholders a final cash dividend of
Rs. 2.5 per share which is in addition to Rs.3.5 per share (35%) intenim dividend for the year ended June
30, 2024.

This year despite political and economic concerns the Compuny has witnessed significant growth. The
inflation reading has started to come down due to base effect and relatively stable currency.
This resulted in interest rates moving from 22% in FY 2023 to 20% in FY 2024 attracting unit holders
to still incling towards money market and fixed income funds leading to healthy srowth. Despite PSX
mereasing by over 89% respectively high mterest rates have kept umit holders away from equities who
have preferred (o remain invested 1n safe class of assel. Since it 1s expected that the interest rates would
continue to decline and close between 14% to 15% by FY 2025 which can act as a catalyst in helping
reviving both the manufacturing and service sector. This may alsohelpinumtholders taking some
exposure in equities. However, we still beheve that Fixed Income category would continue to attract
both the existing and new umtholders,

The company continues to locus on digital mnovation. Al the beginning of the year, we integrated
technology with the MCUB Live App, allowing investors to open accounts, invesl, and redeem in real-
tme. Additionally, we developed a system to facilitate investments via Raast for customer convemence.
We also successfully imcorporated generative Al into our marketing materials and content development,
Owr effords were recogmized with three Pakistan Digital Awards this vear - Best Email Marketing, Best
Machine Leamning and Best Digital Customer Service.

Looking ahead, we anticipate launching more immovative products to better serve our valued umit
holders. The Company 1s dedicated to providing our stakeholders with agile, modem, and innovative
solutions that enhance convenience and user experience.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

I would like to appreciate our board members who has always focused on the preservation of the best
interests ol both the Company’s shareholders and unit holders of the Funds under its management. As
part of this effort, the Board’s properly structured Committees are in place, with each one having well-
defined objectives and appropriate Terms of Reference; performing their respective roles effectively
and efficiently. During the vear. a total of fourteen (14) meetings of the Board and the Committees ol
the Board were held which compnsed of eight (8) meetings of the Board of Direclors, four (4) meetings
of the Audit Committee and two (2) meetings ol the Human Resource and Remuneration Commulttee. |
wish to record my appreciation lo the Board Members for the active participation and continuing
pumdance provided to the Management.

| expect that the Company, through its Management team, will continue to work closely, firstly with,
its valued clients, as well as, very importantly, with its employees, shareholders and stakeholders n a
manner that makes one feel proud to be associated with MCB Investment Management Limited.

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank our valued investors for their continuous faith in the
Company, which has enabled the MCB Investment Management Limited to reach new heights vear
afler year, many ol whom have stayed alongside us from the mnce ption of our journey and | sincerely
hope that the bond we share continues to flourish in the years ahead.

Haroun Rashid

Chairman - Board of Directors

MCB Investment Management Limited
Karachi, September 25, 2024
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The Board of Directors of MCB Investment Management Limited (MCBIM) are pleased to present report
om the affairs of MCBIM for the year ended June 30, 2024,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company 1s a Non-Banking Finance Company, licensed as Assel Management Company, Investment
Advisor and Pension Fund Manager under the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's
regulatory regime. The principal activities o the Company are floating and managing Collective Investment
Schemes. Voluntary Pension Schemes and providing Investment Advisory Services,

THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period of macroeconomic recovery for Pakistan, averting a looming default
brought about by continued cconomic mismanagement. This turnaround was primarily attributed to
Pakistan entering a new IMF program after several months of delay. The government secured a much-
needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility of USD 3.0 hillion from the IMF in June 23, and managed to
receive timely rollovers from friendly countries, It also showed unwavering commitment to remain
compliant with the IMF targets and as a result government was able (o successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative pressure on the
currency, causing it to spike to a record high of 307 in the mterbank market, Exchange rate i informal
market reached a higher of near 330 PKR/USD reflecting an increase of speculative activity and rampant
uncertainty. The government took decisive steps against smuggling of dollar, abuse of Afghan Transit and
illegal money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate. This helped
in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates. The authoritics also placed
mechanisms o suictly monitor exchange rate payments to manage the overall external balance.
Combination of both administration measures und steps to discipline external and fiscal accounts helped
restore overall stability. The USD PKR close the year at 278.3 appreciating by 2.6% since the start of the
Year.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven months of the fiscal
wear 2024 (1 TMEY 24) declining by 88% Y oY compared to a deficit of USD 3.8 hillion in the corresponding
period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3%
increase in exports coupled with an 2.3% drop in imports led 1o a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit.
The county’s external position improved with SBI*'s foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
billion a5 of June 2024 compared to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last fiscal year. This was on account of
Nows from the IMF, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024 compared to 29.0% last
vear. Inflation remained on the higher side a5 mussive currency depreciation in the prior periods led to surge
in food and energy prices. The government also hiked electricity base tanift and gas prices to comply with
the IMF conditions, which led to further inflationary pressures, The SBP reduced the policy rate by 150bps
to 20.5% in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024, The monetary policy noted a
significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate, which justifies mitiating
4 monetary easing cyele,

The country’s GDP grew by 2.4%, in the financial year 2023-24 as compared to -0.2% last year. Agriculture
Y B Yy b P ¥ L
grew by 6,3%, Services and industrial sector witnessed a paltry increase of 1.2% each. Historic high interest
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rates coupled with political uncertainty were the major culprits behind the subdued industrial and services
output. On the fiscal side. FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 to PKR 9,285 hillion, missing
the target by a modest PKR 130 billion.

Equity Market Review

The stock market witnessed exuberance in fiscal vear 2024, as the benchmark KSE-100 increased by
staggering 89.2% or 36,992 points, to close at all time high of 75,445 points. This also makes Pakistan the
best performing market in the world with USD return of 94.4% in the vear.

The bullish momentum continued throughout the yvear was on account of improvernent in macrocconomic
indicators after Pakistan entered into the new IMF program, Market participants also cheered the successful
completion of all IMF reviews under SBA. Moreover. the successful conclusion of elections in February
2024 brought long due clarity amongst investors, In addition, reaffirmation by the incumbent government
to continue structural reforms. along with the intention to enter a longer IMF program. further uplifted
sentiment. Lastly. the strength of the local currency post-crackdown on currency smuggling and hoarding,
strong corporate profitability, increase in taxes on other asset classes in the budget FY23, and start of
monetary easing with 150bps cut, all contributed to the sustainable rally.

During FY24, Forelgn investors, Insurance, and Corporates were net buyers with un inflow of USD [41
million, USD 126 million and USD 36 million, respectively. While major selling was witnessed from Banks
and Mutual Funds with outflow of USD 141 million and USD 48 million, respectively. During FY 24,
average trading volumes for KSE-All Index saw an increase of 140.4% 10 461 million shares compared to
about 191 million shares in the same period last year. Similarly. the average trading value during the period
saw o rise of 118.5% over previous year to near USD 55 million.

Banking, Fertilizer, and E&P sector were the major coniributors to the index gain adding
13.262/5.074/4.300 points, respectivelv. Banking sector witnessed broad based rallv as entry into the TMF
program diminished the probability of local debt restructuring besides strong profitability, Fertilizer sector
performed due to better than expected dividends while E&P rallied due to the news of clearance of gas
circular debt, which would improve the sector cash Nlows.

Economy & Market — Future Outlook

Pakistan GDP is expected 1o rebound to 3.5% in FY25 after a disappointing performance last year where
the GDP increased by only 2.4%. The cutlook for indusirial output is relatively optimistic with an expected
growth of 4.0% compared o 1.2% last year. Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in
interest rates will help revive the industrial and service sector growth. Agriculture performance is likely to
remain on the lower side due to high base effect,

A new staff-level loan agreement has been reached between Pakistan and the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) under which the country will recerve USD 7.0 billion over 37 months. The final approval of the loan
will be given by the IMF Executive Board. Successtul continuation of the IMF program is a key positive
as it will allow us to tap funding from bilateral and multilateral spurces, However, our external position still
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our inability to raise funds through international Eurobond or
Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current account this yvear to stave off external concerns.
We expecta CAD of USD 1.0 bitlion (0.2% of GDP) in FY 25 as policy of conselidation is likely to continue
under the IMF umbrella,
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The USD PKR 15 expected to remain stable as the government is focusing on improving current account
deficit on the back of recovery in export und remittances. Entry into the new IMF program will also increase
visibility on the external funding. We expect USD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The inflation reading has started 0 come down due o base effect and relatively stable currency, The
headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.6% compared to a high of 38,0% in May 2023, The
core inflation also registered a significant slowdoewn. clocking at 14.1% which is a low of 23 months. The
inflation reading is expected to decline to single digits in THFY 25, Keeping in view the inflationary trends,
external and fiscal position we expect interest rate to decline to 14-15% by June 25,

From the capital market perspective particularly equities, the market is still trading at cheap valuations.
Market cap to GDP ratio is at 9.8%, a discount of 48%, from its historical average of 18.9%, Similarly,
Earning Yield minus Risk Free Rate 15 close to 7.2%, compared to the historical average of 3.0% signifying
i deep discount at which the market is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help
to unlock market potential. We believe a micro view of sectors and stocks will remain important and
investment selection should focus on companies, which trade at a deep discount to their intrinsic value. The

market is currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a dividend yield of 11.2%.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly murror policy rates throughout
the vear. Investors with a mid to long term view can benefit from Bond and Income Funds where higher
duration will create opportunities for capital gains in the wake of Interest rate outlook. We have added
government bands in Income Funds to benefit from the expected monetary easing in the near term.

Mutuoal Fund Industry Review

The Net Assets of the open-end mutual funds industry increased by about 64.6% during FY24 to PKR 2,574
billion. Total money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June 2023, Within the money market sphere,
conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58.2%
to PKR 679 billion, In addition, the total fixed Income funds ingreased by about 104,7% since June 2023
te PKR 756 billion while Equity and related funds increased by 32.3% to PKR 255 billion.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of around 50.8%, followed
by Income funds with 37.3% und Equity and Equity related funds having a share of 9.9% as at the end of
June 30, 2024,

Mutual Fund Industry Outlook

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to dp well in the next year on the back of cut in interest rates. During
the year, significant iterest of investors 1s already visible in Income Funds while equity fund is likely to
see inflows post new IMF agreement, Relatively High interest rutes during the period would encourage
sustained Mows in the money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term horizon and low
risk profile.

Our operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and online customer
experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of investors available online.

The mmereased focus of provineial und federal government on unsustainable pension payments and a push
for contributory pension schemes is a long term positive for the industry. During the year, Pension Schemes
for KPK Government Employees were successfully implemented. Punjab Govt. has also shown interest in
adopting a contributory retirement scheme and likely to adopt Pension Schemes for new employees from
the current year. Similarly, federal government has also highlighted the need for contributory structure in
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the current yvear Budget speech which shall help accelerate the adoption of voluntary pension schemes in
public and private sector,

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Financial Year 2023-2024 the country continued to face high inflation primarily due to hike in
utility prices and surge in food prices. By stepping into the TMF program, the country was able to avert the
looming default, Weak economic conditions resulted in government keeping high policy rate which
attracted signilicant new inflows in both Money Market Funds and Income Funds which grew by Rs, 13
billion and Rs, 52 billion to close at Bs. 121 billion and Rs, 87 billion regpectively.

After implementation of IMF program, macro-cconomic idicators improved which resulted in surge in
PSX which rose by 89%, Improved valuations resulted in growth in equity-based Funds” AUMs by Rs, 5.7
billion to reach Rs. 16.7 hillion,

The Company continued to invest significantly in digitalization which helped in leading the market position
through focused initiatives encompassing launch of innovative and customer centric solutions, penetration
of emerging markets, adoption of digital avenues and instilling effective cost management techniques.

Driving customer centricily would continue to remain a key area of focus for the next year. We are
commitied in maintaining our unigque positioning as a diversified financial institution with a robust heritage
and strong reputation through enriched service offerings and products tailored to meet requirements of our
esteemed customers: hence, enabling Company to grow its AUMS" base manifold.

The Company uses Net Promoter Score (NPS) as a metric to gange loyalty and satisfaction of valued
customers. At the close of financial vear ended June 30, 2024 our NP8 stoed at 61% which is evident of
the fact that our efforts ure translating into improved customer experience.

Increased growth in AUMSs in all categories including SMAS resulted in Company’s AUMS to increase by
44% from Rs. 226 billion to Rs, 326 billion as of June 30, 2024, Increased AUMs resulted in inerease in
Company’s core revenue by over Rs. 508 million and compared to Rs. 1,100 million in FY 2023, The
Company recorded gross management and investment advisory fee of Rs. 1,608 million in FY 2024, With
interest yield to be at an average of 17% und Stock Exchange to continue o grow in FY 2025, we expect
the AUMS to grow Turther; resultantly going forward contributing to the revenue growth and profiability,

On an average in FY 2023-2024 the Company remained 39% invested in equity-based Funds and with PSX
growing by 89% the same was reflected in Company’s income. Moreover, the Fixed Income Funds were
also delivering retumns of over 20%. Due to better fund management and the Company at times cautiously
taking higher percentige of mvestments in equity-based funds, the Company was able 1o carn investment
income of Rs, 555 million compared to gain of Rs, 139 million in the same corresponding period,

As discussed in detail in Note No. 24,2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, SECP has advised certain
changes including the allocation of selling and marketing expenses to different schemes of the funds under
its management. Accordingly, subsequent 1o vear end the company will credit Rs. 1538503 million 1o the wdentified
unit holders of the respective Funds, This has resulted in lowering profit before taxation of the Company
by the corresponding amount.

Due to higher AUMs and improved investment income, despite recognizing above provision, the Company
has carned profit after taxation of Rs, 861.3 million compare to Rs, 378.2 million in the corresponding year,
The Earnings Per Share of current Financial Year ended June 30, 2024 is Rs. 11.96 per share as compared
to Rs. 5.25 per share in the previous financial year ended June 30, 2023,

MCBE Investment Managemen! Limited k1 | Annual Roport 2024




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board has proposed a final dividend of Rs. 2.5 per share i.e 25% which is in addition to Rs. 3.5 per
share i.e 35 % as interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2024 as compared to 35 % (Rs. 5.5 per share
as finnl dividend for the year ended June 30, 2023)

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility to ensure that internal financial
controls system of the company is adequate and is operating effectively.

The value of contribution of employees in pension funds 15 Rs, 38.21 million as on June 2024 (Rs, 3544
million for the year ended June 30, 2023).

Gender 'ay Gap Statement under Circalar 10 of 2024

MCB Investments promotes an inclusive work environment by ensuring equitable representation at all
levels within the organization. The Company believes that there is no significant disparity between what
women and men are paid at comparable cadres. Currently, the mean gender pay gap and median gender
pay gap pay for women is 65% and 353% respectively,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Assets under management (AUM) which is the life blood of asset management industry showed substantial
growth in FY24 and crossed Rs. 2,37 willion. A host of factors have conmbuted to this growth including
successful disbursement of USD-3bln by IMF. stable political situation, stable PKR to USD exchange rate
and decline in inflation, ete, To attract new chients and facilitate existing clients in this highly competitive
industry, Asset Management Companies (AMCs) continued o offer more and more online and Mobile
based services, However, these web-based services are prone to hacking and cyber-attacks, These solutions
require substantial costs to develop, maintain and protect while the demand for delivery of superior returns
is not allowing increment in management fee. Thus, this continues to put pressure on margins of Asset
Management Companies { AMCs). To cover up expenses and being profitable, the only remedy is higher
AUMs. Government has become cautious on issues relaling to “Know Your Customer” (K'Y C) requirements
to cope up “Anti Money Laundering” (AML) and 'Combating the Financing of Termorism” (CFT). This puts
high responsibility on Asset Management Companies (AMCs) o carefully perform Customer Due
Diligence (CDD). This increases regulatory risk for Asset Management Companies { AMCs) and MCBIM
is committed to ensuring compliance of these very demanding but necessary regulations.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT

This year MCB Investment Management Limited conducted a workshop on financial literacy at “Mumtaz
Hospital” to enable resident doctors and staff to make smart financial decisions by learning about different
avenues of investments. The Workshop consisted of a scenario-based demonstration of dectors and stalf
starting early investments to secure a fruitful financial future and sustain themselves. The Workshop also
gave i hands-on experience of digital mutual funds with real time mutual fund account opening and
investing. The Session was conducted by our seasonad investment experts who provided a very educational
and interactive session for the doctors and Staft,

MCUB Funds joined hands with *Aga Khan University” to conduct insightful session on the carly
symptoms, self-examination as well as precautionary measures that can be underiaken to help prevent
Breast Cancer. A set of cxperienced doctors visited the MCB Investment Management Limited where they
conducted detailed session to increase awareness on the importance of early detection through screening as
this can lead te a cure and save a women’s life, The session was conducted for all the female emplovees of
the company and paved to be a very educational and interactive session.
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ASSET MANAGER RATING

The Company maintained highest Asset Manager Rating of AMIL. This rating reflects the Company’s
position as one of the leading Asset Managers in the Asset Management Companies, strongly supported by
strong control environment, struchured investment processes, pood governance framework and gualified
management team. The Stability Ratings of the Collective Investment Schemes under management of the
Company are us under:

As at June 30, 2024 As at June 30, 2023
Stability rating————— Rating
ageney
Pakistan Cash Management Fund AN+ (F) AAH {ﬂ PACEA
Pakistan Income Fund A - (f) AA - (1) PACRA
MCH Pakistan Sovereign Fund | AA- (1) | A= ﬂ, J’ AL H. A
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund A I:i..j At in PACRA
MO I-:l I'.‘rt"[ Income Fond AA - 1_1':! ) AA -:E].- I"AC'RA
MCB Cash Manogement memrul AA I A+ PACRA
_1|.|'|'| i !l,l bmic |I1E|.]!ITI|I.. Il.:n(_i .-1.-1 l:t']- A;i—'tl—ﬂ_'_] _I"Ht [ A |
e"l.lh'lmnllhli'. Dividend Fund .-"l. *'l. if AA-{ PACRA |
.-"n.lhnrnﬁ !r\l.tr'nn: \-'1n114:1, Market Fund 1ﬂ .-‘\.-"LI tl'_l_ |”'I-L F‘.. "n.
Alhamra Wada Fund ‘n. "'n. 0 AA (D) PACRA
MICH P:-:'L.:al,in Fmgd E{clum Fund AA i ffj 5.:5; + lJ':l_ Py '\{"Ri |
‘Alhamm Cash Management Dp!rnuh_r AA (D AA (D) PACRA |

The Mutal Funds Asseciation of Pakistan (MUFAP) is executing the Performance of the Mutual Funds on
the basis of Mutual Funds® returns. MCBIM has assumed the performance ranking of MUFADP for its equity
based Collective Investments Schemes.

HOLDING COMPANY

On April |8, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB}), being the parent company of MOB-Arif Habib Savings
and Investments Limited, has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares of MCB-Arif Habib Savings &
Investment Limited (MCB-AH} from Anf Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue of this
transaction MUB Bank Limited’s sharcholding in MCB-AH has increased from 36 956,768 (51.33%)
shares to 38,620,935 (81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on July 07,
2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company be changed from MUCB-Arif Habib
Savings and Investments Limited 1o MCUB Investment Management Limited and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has approved the change in name on August 15, 2023,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Otfficer (CEQ) and has a diverse

mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of | female and 7 male directors, cateporized as follows:

= 4 MNon - Executive Directors,
+ 3 Independent Directors; and
s | Executive Director (CEO),

The details of above are as under;
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ST,
No.

I-a

Ly

woos

Name

M. Haroun Rashid
Mr, Shoaib Mumtaz

Mr. Ahmed Jahangir

Status

Non-Executive Director
Mon-Executive Director

MNon=-Executive Director

Membership in other
Board Committees

Mone
HR&R* Commuittes

HE&R™ Committee
Audit Committee

Mr. Manzar Mushtag Non-Executive Direéctor Audit Committes
Audit Commuittee
{Chairman)
HRE&R* Committee
(Chairmun),
HR&R* Committee

HR&ER* Committee

Sved Savail Meekal Hussain Independent Director

Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director

Ms. Mavra Adil Khan
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah

Independe nt Director

Executive Director

* HR&R stands for Human Resource and Remuneration

The Board of Directors review all significant matters of the Company. This includes, but not limited to, the
Company’s strategic direction, annual business plans and targets, decision on long-term investments, The
Board of Directors is comunitted to maintaiming high standards of corporate governance.

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

.
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The financial statements, present Tairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash Mows and
changes in equity;

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;
Appropriate accounting policies as stated in the notes 1o the financial statements have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on

reasonible und prodent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements and any departures there from have been adequately disclosed and explained;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
menitared with ongoing efforts to improve it further;

There are no significant doubis upoen the Company's ability to continue as going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations;

Key operating and financial datn of the last 6 years in summarized form is annexed:

The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, if' any, have been fully disclosed in the audited
financial statements;
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T+

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for Company's system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility, has delegated
the detailed design and operation of the system of internal controls to the Chiet Executive.
Company’s system of internal controls comprises of clear governance structures, authority limits
and accountabilities, well-understood policies and procedures, The Board meets quarterly to
consider Company’s financial performance, financial and operating budgets, business growth and
developmental plans, capital expenditure proposals and other key performance indicators. The
Audit Committee receives reports on the system of internal financial controls from the external and
internal auditors and reviews the process for monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls;

As at June 30, 2024, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of Directors’ Training
Program, as contained in Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

The Directors” Remuneration Policy (The Policy) was approved by the Board of Directors in their
144™ meeting held on September 14, 2018, The Policy was revised and was approved by the Board
of Directors in 182" meeting held on October 21, 2022, The main features of the Policy are as
under:

{1} With etfect from October 21, 2022 each non-executive director will be paid a sum
of rupees one hundred and twenty-five thousand (125,000) for attending the Board
meeting / committees of the Board:

(a1} Payment for any extra services shall not be made to any executive director,
However, if a non-executive director performns any special services, the
remuneration of the same will be pre-decided by the Board and in the absence of
the quorum, by the general meeting of members of the Company:

(ii) Remuneration to executive director(s) shall be decided by the Board on
recommendation of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee based on
the role and responsibilities of the executive director and shall reflect the
individual’s roles, experience and responsibilities; and

(iv) Non-exeeutive directors are not covered under any post retirement scheme of the
Company.

The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 15 annexed;

A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance, members of the Board and Commitices of the Board:

There are no other contracts or arrangement entered into with any of the Related Parties requiring
disclosure under Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017,

Meeting of the Directors

During the year, eight (08) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The attendance of each
Director is as follows:
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Number of meetings

Mumber of

. L]
Name of Persons Attendance Leave

meetings held
= regquired Aftchied granied

L. Mr. Haroun Rashid 2 8 8 =
Z Mr. Ahmed Jahangir g 8 8 a
3 Syed Savail Meekal Hussain s B 7 I
4; Ms. Mavra Adil Khan 8 8 6 2

Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem 2 5 5 —
3, ;

{Resigned on October 31, 2023)
i, Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy & 8 3 3
7. Mr. Manzar Mushtag & 8 8 -
E. Mr. Shoaib Mumrtaz 8 § 3 3
o, Mr. K hawaja Khalil Shah é 3 3 =

(Appointed on November 01,

2023)

q. Meeting of the Audit Committee,

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Commitiee were held. The attendance of each
participant is as follows:

Number Number of meetings
. of
Name of Persons Attendance Leave
meetings it Attended ot
held A 8
1. Swed Savail Meekal Hussain 4 4 + -
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 —
3. Mr. Manzar Mushtag 4 4 4 -

r.  Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee,

During the year, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held.
The attendance of each participant 1s as follows:
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Number of meetings

Attended

Number
Name of Persons ol Attendance
meetings required
L My, Fahd Kamal Chinoy 2 2 2
P Mer, Shoaib Mumtaz 2 2 2
3 Mr. Alimed Jahangir 2 2 |
4, Ms, Mavra Adil Khan 2 2 |

AUDITORS

Leave
granted

The current auditors. M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have completed their engagement
for the year ended June 30, 2024 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee considered and recommended the re-appointment of M/s AF. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company for the vear ending June 30, 2025 and the
Boeard of Directors also endorsed the recommendation of the Awdit Conunittee to comply with the

requirements of Code of Corporate Governance,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their deep appreciation to our shareholders who have consistently
demonstrated their confidence in the Company, We would also like to place on record our sincere
appreciation for the commitment, dedication and innovative thinking put in by each individual of the

Company and are confident that they will continue to do so in the future,

Forand on behalf of Board

~ ’,,..-_—‘__-;?I/"a;t‘i,‘*.
> i

Khawaja Khalil Shah Manzar Mushtag
Chief Executive OfTicer Director

karachi, Karachi,

September 25, 2024 September 25 | 2024
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Categories of Shareholders I Shareholders | Shares Held | Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
HAROUN RASHID 1 500 D.00
AHMED JAHANGIR 1 500 0.00
SHOAIB MUMTAZ 1 100 0.00
MANZAR MUSHTAG 1 500 0.00
FAHD KAMAL CHINOY 1 500 0.00
MAVRA ADIL KHAN 1 100 0.00
SYED SAVAIL MEEKAL HUSSAIN 1 500 0.00
KHAWALA KHALIL SHAH 1 500 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
MIB BANE LIMITED - TREASURY 1 58,620,835 81.42
ADANUIEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 1 5,462,000 7.59
NIT and ICP
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Institutions z 333,070 D.46
Insurance Companies
Modarabas and Mutual Funds z 979,384 1.79
General Public

a_local 298 5,388,049 7.48

b. Foreign & 5,070 001
Forcign Companies 1 457,000 0.69
Others 1z 761292 1.06

Totals 931 72,000,000 100.00|
Share holders hoiding 10% or more Shares Held  Percentage

MCE BANK LIMITED - TREASURY 58,620,935 81.42
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
315 1 to 100 5,303
129 im to 500 44 396
196 501 to 1000 133,915
178 1001 to S000 413,113
43 5001 to 10000 340,363

18 10001 to 15000 225411
10 15001 to 20000 188,772
10 20001 to 25000 225,108
5 25001 to 30000 145,374
1 30001 to 35000 30.500
1 35001 to 40000 39,000
3 45001 to SO000 145,481
2 50001 to 55000 104,900
2 55001 to 60000 116,800
n | 60001 to 65000 &1,000
1 75001 to 20000 77,880
2 95001 to 100000 200,000
1 120001 to 125000 121,840
1 130001 to 135000 135,000
1 155001 to 160000 158,168
1 195001 to 200000 200,000
1 280001 to 285000 281,000
1 330001 to 335000 333,000
1 410001 to 415000 413,500
2 495001 to 500000 997,000
1 B45001 to B50000 650,000
1 895001 to Q00000 S00,000
1 1225001 to 1230000 1225132
1 5460001 to 5465000 5,462,000
1 58620001 to 58625000 54,620,935
931 72,000,000




FINANCIAL & BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Pre 18X fnarging b i 41 43 3Z 3l a%
Met Margins g 3 EH 3B 13 3 47
Performande
Return on asseis i t 11 |6 g 14 26
Return on equity %n 2 17 13 12 2 4
Leverape
Grearimg { Lintalities:Equity) LS .40 040 0.48 155 (.36 0.67
Interesy Covernge HKatio TS 2075 $2.31 a6, 12 30034 S, 10 T1.05
Liguidity
Curpemt Ratio limes 245 .11 1.93 100 [0 (s

Valwation

Earming per chare Rs. 34 1.58 5.23 T4l 525 11.96
o, of ardinury shares min TZ T2 T2 gy 12 72
Historical rend

Muomagement Fee (Rs. in million) 731 674 152 830 1,101 I, 6

Operating Profit [PBIT] (R, in million &9 353 452 208 i) 1,29}

Profit belore s (Rs. i million) 85 345 485 294 614 12m

Profit after tax (K momillion) 24 258 37a 173 378 851

Share capital (s momillion} T20 720 T20 720 T20 720
Shareholders equity (Kx momillion) Id62 1,551 1603 1434 1,741 1.4954

Fotal assers (Bs o million) 2044 2,260 2,376 23233 2711 3268
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

MCEB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

1.

Lo

&

w

The total number of Directors are eight, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), as per the
following:

{a) Male: 7 (including the CEOQ)
(b) Female: 1

The composition of the Board is as follows:
(a) Independent Directors: 3 (including a female director)
(b} Non-executive Directors: 4
(c) Executive Director: 1
{d) Female Director: 1

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate sieps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of pariculars of the
significant policies along with their dates of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the
Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The Board remained compliant with the provision of the Regulations pertaining to the Directors’
training program. Out of eight directors, one (01) director i.e. Mr. Haroun Rashid is exempt from the
training requirement by virtue of his education and his experience as mentioned in Regulation 19(2)
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, Further, below
mentioned seven (07) directors have already attended the Directors’ Training program in priar
years:
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Mame of Director Status
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Chiel Executive Officer
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir MNon-Executive Director
Mr. Manzar Mushtag Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Shoalb Mumtaz Mon-Exaecutive Director
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director
Syed Savail Meekal Hussain Independent Director

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

1. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board,

12. The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:

{a) Audit Committee

Name of Director Status
Syed Savail Meekal Hussain Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Manzar Mushtag Member

(b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

MName of Director Status
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Chairman
Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz Member
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Member
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Member

{c) Credit Committee

Name of Director Status
Mr. Manzar Mushlag Membear
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Syed Savail Meeskal Hussaln Membear
Mr. Khawaja Khalll Shah Member
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid commiltees have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee for compliance;
14, The frequency of meetings of the Committees was as per following:

(a) Audit Committee: Quartarly maatings of the Audil Commillea wara hald, the datalls of which
are as under;




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Sr. No. Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 1% quarterly meeting of the Committee July 25, 2023
2. Half yearly meeting of the Committee October 16,2023
3. 3 gquarterly meeting of the Commitlee February 01, 2024
4. Annual meeting of the Committee April 18, 2024

{b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: The HR&R Committee met on several
occasions during the year, the details of which are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 34" meeting of the Committee July 24, 2023
2. 35" meeting of the Committee September 8, 2023

{c) Credit Committee: No meetings of Credit Committee were held during the year.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, the members of which are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Cuality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and reqgistered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, thal they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not close relatives (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependeant
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary or Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard,

We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Explanation for nen-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3. 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

Regulation

Mattars No

Explanation

Nomination Committes The Board effectively discharges all the

The Board may constitute a separate committes, 29 (1)
designated as the nomination committes, of such
number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances

reapansibilities of Nomination Commiflee  as
recommaendad by the Code. It reguiarly monitors
and assesses the requiremeants with respect to
any changes needed on Board's committess
including chairmanship of those committees,
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

websile;

(1) key elemants of its significant policies on its
website environmental, soclal and governance
(ESG) relaled policy.

(2) brief synopsis of lerms of reference of the
Board's commitleas

(3) key slements of the directors’ remuneration
policy.

Matters Reg::;]tmn Explanation
The Board also actively manitors requirements
regarding its structure, size and composition and
timely reviews and adapts any necessary
changes in thal regard.
Risk Management Committes The Board itself and through its Audit Committee
. , annually reviews business risks facing the
bbb SoshmsdoAr V-l Company o ensur that 3 sound sysen ol sk
as it may |:r|=3E-m appropriate in its circumstancas: AL |danttl'|cai|nn.. L anegam. ATl -rﬁl":‘]tM
fo.-CBmy out & roview. of effectiveness.of risk systemic and intermal controls is being maintained
management procediires.and pregent @ rapoit 1o to safeguard assets. Al malerial t:n.n'I.rDIE
the Board. (financial, operational, compliance) are monitored
and reviewsad., The Board ensures that risk
mitigation measures are robusl
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) The Board I8 currently deliberating upon this
matters 10A matter and is committed to diligently oversesing
The Board Is respansible lor governance and and anressing_ Sslspabilyy Tz e
oversight of sustainability risks énri opporiunities epparuniiae: asis; down. In Regulation 1o/ af
s p : the Code introduced by the SECP. Conslderation
by set_t:rrg the company's sustainabllity strategies, shall be given to eilher establishing a separate
prigmics oW targers. $o cresle Jang. term committee or designate this responsibility to an
corporate value and ensures that policies to existing Board commiltse in due course
promote diversily, equily and inclusion (DE&I) are ’
in place. The board may establish a dedicated
susiainability commiltee having at least one
famale direclor, or assign additional
responsibilities to an existing board commitiaa.
Disclosure of significant policies on website The Company has not placed certain policies and
i terms of reference of the Board's committess on
The company may post the following on s 35 (2)

its official website as these have included in the
annual report which is published and upleaded on
the Company's website.

The Board has been guided by the fact that the above requirements are not mandatory and the necessary
explanation under the Regulations have been included above.

Mr. Haroun Rashid
Chairman — Board of Directors
MCE Investment Management Limited

MCB Investment Management Limited
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

-

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of MCB Investment Management Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

‘We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Rerulalions, 2o19 (the Regulalions) prepared by the Board of Direclors of MCE Investment
Management Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements
of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Onur respansibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulalions and repeort if it does nol and Lo highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the andit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are nol required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all
risks and centrols or fo form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal eontrols, the Company's
corporate governance procecdures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related parly ransactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements conlained in the Regulalions as applicable Lo the Company for Lhe year ended June 30, 2024,

h TN E{_..

AT, Ferguson & Co,

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: October 4, 2024

IIDIN: CR202410611ESuTNLila

A, F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accaunfants, a member firm of the PuC nefuork
State Life Building No, 1-C, I.¥. Chundrigar Rooad, P.O. Box 4716, Korochi-rgo000, Pakistan
Tel: +o2 (21) 32426680-6/30406711-5; Fax: +02 (21) 32415007/ 32427038/ 30404740 <usLLe, s oom,/pic
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

-

pwcC AL FERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of MCB Investment Management Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

Wi have audited the annexed finaneial statements of MCB Investment Management Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of finaneial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of
profit or less, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including materal aceounting
policy information and other explanalory information, and we state that we have oblained all the
infuormation and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpases of the audit.

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
statement of financial Imﬁilinll. statement of 11ru|‘il ar loss, the stalement of COmp rehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
contorm with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows tor the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our andit in aceordance with International Standards on Aoditing (15A8) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsihilities
Sor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Etfrics for Professional
Aceountanis as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in acoordanee with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence
wie have obrtained is sufficient and appropeiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Kevy Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were al most significance in our
audit of the finaneial statements of the current pericd. These muatters were addressed in the contest of our
audit of the finanecial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

Following 1a the Koy audit matter:

S.No., Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit

i Valustion of investmoent in associates
[ Redfer notes 3.4 and 6 to the annexed fimancial
|stabemenls)

| The investment in associntes of Bs. 4,790,687 Our pudit procedures included the following:

|t‘:i1tirm as nt. I.]une g_ﬂ, Lgﬂ:z.q held by he|, Clhecksd that the
Company constitute o signihceant component ot
total assets of the Company. Thess represent
Jinvestment in units of motual fonds and
[pension funds under the management of the|= Checked that the share of profit from assoclates was|
Company and sve clossified as “investment in|  appropriately accounted for in the finaneial statements.

Affae

A F FERGUSON & CO.. Chartered Accounfants, a member ffrm of the Pus nefusork
Srate Life Building No, 3-C, L1 Chundrigar Road, P.0. Bax 4716, Karachi-reooo, Pakistan
Tel: +o () yogah6Ro-6/324267101-5; Fux: +02 (21) 32415007/ 324238/ 32424740, <L, I, oot/ k>

investments were valoed appropemtely in
accordance with the reqguirements of the accounting nnd
reparting standands as applicable in Pakistao,

=« KARACH! « LAHORE « ISLAMABAD
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

;-

pwcC AFFERGUSON&CO.

S.No. Key andit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
=IF-=-'L_|1"51"|EFS' \'r'hiﬂh_ are aceounted for using the | = Obtained account statements for checking the existence of
ecpuity method of acconnting. the investments portfolio s at June 2o, o024 aod raced

balances in these statements with the booles and records of

The proper valeation of the investments!
portfolio of the Company as at June a0, 2004 the Com pany.

and the related share of profit om associates s Checked the relevant presentalion nod disclosures made in
during  the venr ended June 50, 2024 was the financial statements o ascertain whether these are
considered a signifivant ares and therefore we complied with the accounting and rfvpnrt'inp‘ standards as
considered this as a key audit matter, applicahle in Pakiston,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is respongible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the fnancial statements and our auwditor's report
thereon,

Chor opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

[ connection with our audit of the finaneial statenments, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so0, consider whether the other information i= materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1f, based
o the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
wir are required Lo report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regarcd.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible [or the preparation and fair presentation of the Gnanecial stalements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2o17 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that arve free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the linancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability o
continue a2 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going coneern and using the poing
coneern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic allermative but o do so,

Board of directors are responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Oar objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fnancial statement= a=s a whole are
free from matevial misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, and Lo issoe an auditor’s report that
mcludes our opinivn. Beasonable assurance is a high level of assarance, but is not o guarantee that an aodit
conducted in accordance with [5As a=z applicable in Paki=tan will alwavs detect a material misstatenient
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matecial if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the economie decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with 18As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

= Tdentity and assess the rislks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
in smfficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting o material
misstalement resulling from fraud is higher than for one resalting from error, as fmad may invalve
collusion, forgery, intenbional ormissions, misrepresentations, g the vvertide of internal control.

= Obtain an enderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveniess of the Company’™s internal cont rol.

Ao
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

i

pwcC A-F FERGUSON&CO.

= PBEvaluate the approprinteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude en the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concérn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
eonditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going coneern. If
we conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to deaw attention in our aouditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguite, to medify
aiir apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors
report. However, future events or conditions may eause the Company to cease to continue as a going
COTICETTL

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the financial statements, incloding the
dizclosuares, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
# manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicalo with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with o statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may ressonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matiter or when, in extremelv rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report boecause the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected o ontweigh the public interest benefits of such communieation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on oor audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in egnity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

o) Investments made, expenditure incurved and guarantees extended during the vear were for the
purpase of the Company’s business; and
d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 19080 (XVII of 19480}, was deducted

by the Company and deposited m the Central Zakat Fund established onder section 7 of thot
Ordinance.

The engagement partneron the audit resulting in this independent anditor’s report is Junaid Mesia,

pl DRAN &L..

A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: October 4, 2024

LIDIN: ARso2g10611]56G7haYw
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and eguipment 4 110,555,376 130,539,859
Intangible assets 5 284 112 373 297,398,843
Investment in associales =] 1,790,686,810 1.393,001,777
Long term investment T 265,000 265,000
Long term loans and prepayments 8 37,306 403 28 994 766
Long term deposits 6,646,103 6.816,103
2229 572, 065 1.817.016.348
Current assets
Receivable from funds under management - related parbes g 841,794, 998 TO7 420,040
Loans and advances 10D 10,043,573 5,690 966
Prepayments and other receivables 11 152 637,662 115,747 891
Accrued profit on savings accounts 4 015 86,189
Cash and bank balances 12 33,678,807 65478577
1,038.159,055 B94 432 663
Total asscis 3267, 731,120 2711440011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital
T2.000,000 (2023: 72,000,000) ordinary shares
af Rs. 10 each 131 720,000,000 720,000,000
Izsued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 132 720,000,000 720,000,000
Resarves 1,234,011, 796 1,020,708 420
Total equity 1,954 011,796 1.740,709.420
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation - net 14 96 436,008 o7 211,857
Lease liability against right-of-use-assets 15 30 817 470 56,628,776
Current liabilities
Current portion of lease liability against right-of-use-assets 15 42 645,586 30,947 036
Trade and other payables 16 1,132,947 269 TIarL41.TNM
Taxation - net 4 844 689 42 713,913
Unclaimed dividend 6,028,302 5,296,298
1,186,465 846 B16 898 058
1.313,719.324 570,739,591
Total cquity and liabilitics 3.267,731.120 2711440 011
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17
The annexed notes 1 1039 form an integral part of these financial statements.
= ____..-" '_::P::;:/-"-J:f;{fﬁe' #
== - ~
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REVENUE
Management and investment advisory fee

Sates load and other relaled income

Profit on savings accounts with banks

Income on government securities using effective interest method
Gain on sale of investmenis - net

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Administralive expenzes

Selling and distribution expanses
Total operating expenses
Financial charges

Oiter expenses

Other Income

Share of profil from associates
Profit for the year before taxation
Taxation - net

Profit for the year after taxation

Earnings per share

The annexed notes 1 1o 39 form an integeal part of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive Officer

MCB Investment Management Limited T0

Chief Financial Officer

Note

18
19

23
24

2024 2023
Rupees
1,608,510,322 1,100 957 252

193,738,817 43,781,638
1,802,249, 139 1,194 738 890
16,132 £80 5,924 516
16,989,544
3,966,725
1,841,337 888 1,200,663, 406
778,356,577 663,575,533
117 402 665 36, 414 668
805,750, 242 699 390 201
18,115,316 11,250,663
180,528 403 17,603,674
208.643,719 28 854 337
2,619,504 2,864 723
531,939 825 139,238,355
1,271,494 346 613,921,946
(410,191,970) (235,703,760)
861,302 376 378 218 186
11.96 535

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
Rupees
Profit for the year after taxation 861,302,376 378,218,186
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year 861,302,376 378,218 186

The annexed notes 1 lo 32 form an integral par of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

d Capétal reserves Rovenue reserve
= Total
and paid-up - X Deficit on Sub-fotal Unappropriated
capital - amalgamation profi
{Rupees)

Balance as al July 1, 2022 720,000,000 396000000 (60.000.000) 336000000 78401234 1,434 401 234
Profit after taxafion for the year 378218166 378,218,186
Other comprehaensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for tho 378,218,186 378 218,186

year ended June 30, 2023
Transaction with owners recorded

directly in eguity
Final dividend for the year ended

June 30, 2022 at Re. 1 per share (72 000,000y (72,000 00D3)

declared on Oclober 24, 2022
Balance as at June 30, 2023 720,000,000 396,000.000 (60,000,000) 336,000,000 684, 709420 1,740,709420
Profit after taxabion for the year 861,302 376 861,302 376
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for 861,302 376 861,302 376

the year ended June 30, 2024
Transaction with owners recorded

directly in cquity
Final dividend for the year ended

June 30, 2023 at Bs. 5.50 per share (396,000.000) (326,000.00d)

declared on Ociober 23, 2023
Inferdm dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2024 at Rs. 3.50 per shame (252,000,000) (252,000,000)
declared on February 2, 2024
Balance as at June 30, 2024 720,000,000 396,000,000 (60,000.000) 336 000,000 898,011,736 1,954 011,796

The annexed noles 1 o 39 Torm an inlegral part of these financial stalemenis.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profil for lhe year before taxation

Adjustment for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation

Amoriisabon

Inleros] expense on lease abilily against ighi-ol-use-assels
Share ol profit from associales

Gain on sale of invesimenis - nel

Gain on disposal ol property and eguipmment

Gain on lemrminalion of lease

Profil on savings accounls wilth banks

Operating cash inflow before working capital changes
Movement in working capital

(Increases) [ decrease in current asselts
Recsivable I lunds under managemsanl
Loans and advances

Deposils, prepayments and other recenvables

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unciaimed dividend

Net cash generated from operations

Taxes paid
Long lemm loans and prepayrments
Lomg lem deposils

Mel cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fizxed capital expendiiurs incumed

Additions (o inlangible assels

Sale | {purchasa) ol investmonks - nel

Profil recaived on savings accounts wilh banks

Dividend receiwed

Proceeds [rom disposal of properly and eguipmenl

MNet cash generated from / (used in} investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend peid

Lease rentals paid against nghl-ol-use assels
Net cash used in financing activities

MNet {decrease) | increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash eguivalonts al the beaginning of the yoar

Cash and cash eguivalenis at the end of the year

The annexed noles 1 1o 39 form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Chief Executive Officer
MCB Investment Management Limited

Chief Financial Officer

Mote

.
R R
L
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2024 2023
Rupees
1,271,484 346 613,921 946
50,783,142 57.588 Bo7
13,286,470 15,557,524
14,720,406 10,954 777
(531,939 B25) (139,238, 255)
(3,966, 725)| -
(31,917} (B9, 750)
(BE1,562) (558, 187)
16,132 480 5.924 516
(465, 132 481) (61,788 610)
806,361,855 552 133,336
{124,374, 958) (161,307 ,651)
(4,343.607) 1,963,944
(36,888,771) (47,065,662
{175,608, 336) (206,409, I60)
A85 005,568 60,0995 635
732,004 85,784
305, 737,502 70,081,480
1,026.491,081 415,805 450
(448 B37.043) (150,416, B21)
(8.311,637) (5.098,567)
170,000 (1,293,000}
(456,97 8,.680) (156,808, 388)
560512 401 258 997 068
{1B.791,461) (33 788 705)
- (787.371)
73,143,348 (108,929 859)
16,214,654 5.887.232
25,078,169 8,716,185
87 771 308,238
85,732 481 {127,594,300)
(648,000,000} (72,000,000
{49 044 B52) (45,447 44B)
(697,044, 652) (117 _447,448)
{31,798 770} 13,855,320
65478577 51,523,257
33,678,807 65.478,577

o M |

Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

-

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

MCB Invesiment Managemeni Limited {the Company) was incorporaled in the name of Anf Habib Investment

Management Limilod (AHIML) on Auwgust 30, 2000 as an unguoted public mited company under the repesiod

Companes Ordinance, 1984 (now the Compamies Act, 20171 In the yvear 2008, AHIML was fisled on the Karachi Stock

Exchange Limiied (now the Pakistan Slock Exchange Limited) by way of affer for sale of shares by few of ils existing

sharcholders 1o the general public. In the same hinancial year, the name of AHIML was changed from “Arnfl Habib

Investment Mamagement Limited™ to "Anf Habib Investments Limited® (AHIL). On Janwary 19, 2011, a transfer agreement
was signod betweon Anf Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) [the then Parent Company of AHIL] and MCEB Bank Limifod
{MCB Bank) [tho then Parent Company of MCB Assol Managemenl Company Limited (MCB AMC)] for the transfor of the
enfire business of MCB AMC to AHIL fo achieve synergies in business operaffons and 0 have access to a wedar

distribution network. The schome of amalgamabon ("he: Schome™) was approved by the shareholders of AHIL a2nd MCB
AMC in their respeciive exiraordinary general meetings held on May 21, 2011 The Scheme was also appgroved by the

Securiios and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on June 27, 2011 (lhe offective date). In accordance with the
terms contained in the Scheme, the Company became a subsidiary of MCB Bank Limited from the year ended - June 30,

2011, which then owned 51.33% share capital of the Company. Pursuant o the merger of MCB AMC with and into AHIL,

the name of AHIL was changed to MCB - Anfl Habib Savings and Investmenis Limited (MCB-AHSIL) with effect from May
23, 2013, Dunng the year ended Junc 30, 2023, MCB Bank Limited acquired the enfire shareholding of AHCL in MCB-
AHSIL after which the sharcholding of MCE Bank Limited has increased from 51.33% to 81.42% in the Company and

AHCL no longer held any shares i the Company. Consequantly, mombers of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General
Meating (ECGM) held on July 7, 2023 resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company be changed from

MCB-AHSIL o MCB Investmant Management Limited. Thencafler, the Company applicd 1o the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for change of name under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the name

was duly approved by the SECP on August 15, 2023,

The prncipal activitios of the Company are floafing and managing Collective Invesiment Schemes, Voluntary Pension
Schemes and providing invesiment advisory sevices. The registered office of the Coampany is siluated at 2nd Floor,
Adamjes House, |1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company k2 a subsidiary of MCE Bank Limited (Paront
Company) which owns 81.42% (2023; 81.42%) share capital of the Company. The Paront Company’s regstered office is
situated at MCB Building, 15-Main Gulberg, Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan. The Company operates vanous branches all
owver Pakistan.

The Company is registered as -a Non-Banking Finance Company under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
{Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) to carry on the business of investment advisor and asset
managamant under the said rules. Further, the Company i registered as a Pension Fund Manager under the: Voluntary
Pension Systom Rules, 2005,

The Company has been assigned an Assel Manager rating of "AM1' by Pakistan Credil Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)
dated October 6, 2023 (2023: "AM1' dated Oclober 6, 2022).

The Company currenlly manages the following collective investmant schemes and volunlary pension schemoes:

MNet asset value as al

June 30, 2024_[ | Jdune 30, 2023
Open-end Collective Invesiment Schemes (C15s) B e o 1 L L R

Pakistan Imcome Fund

MCB Pakiztlan Stock Market Fund
MCB Pakisian Sovencign Fund
Pakistan Capital Market Fund
Pakistan Cash Manmnagemant Fund
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund
MCE Pakistan Assel Allocation Fund
MCEB DCF Incoma Fund

MCB Cash Managemont Optimizer
Alramra islamic Money Market Fund
Alhamra tstamic Assot Allocation Fund
Alramra Istamic Slock Fund
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund

Alhamra lstamic Active Allocation Fund (Alllamra Smar Portiolio)

Alrkamra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan Vil
Balance carried forward

MCB Investment Management Limited

74

1,899,329 682
7,215,604 358
11,081,720,081
520,366 663
26,0969 692 227
5,899 167.023
671,927,736
16,311,628.407
46,797 994 021
22 060,273,135
1 487 200,380
4,079,657 080
12,298,433 118
14,842 530,513
138,937,659

2,723 845,068
4,820,727 B85
673,620,873
332,994,771
17,479,941,176
1,200 580,048
610,650,003
7.706 469,389
58,153 430,555
25,504,762,351
1,288 951 782
2 479,327 821
4,775,124,538
2,890,631,415
114,718,965
2,021,170,837

172,374,661,083

132,377 347,517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Balance brought forwand

Met asset value as al

June 30, 2024 | | June 30, 2023
Rupees —————

1£2.374, 561,083

132,577 347 577

Adhamira Wada Fund [(Alramea Wada Pran VI 320 789 519 -
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Pean 1X) 330,858,335 -
Alhamra Wada Fund (Athamra Wada Plan X) 1,039, 388 565 -
Adhaimra Wada Fund (Allamra Wada Plan X1) 1,440,063, 381 -
MCHB Pakislan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan Fosed Ralurn Plan X101) - 47589 238,091
MCH Pakistan Fixed Rolurn Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Ralurn Plan Vi) - 225019 452
MCH Pakislan Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixod Relurn Pian XI0) - 5,407.870,130
MCHB Pakestan Fixed Returm Fond (MCB Paksstan Fixed Return Plan X) - 676.2/1.089
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan Fied Relurn Plan XV1) 6.018.750,194 -
MCH Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakizlan Fixed Return Pian X0H) 1,043, 640, 666 -
MCHE Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixod Heturn Plan XV 3, 765,779,316 -
MCH Pakistan Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB Pakisian Fixod Relurn Pran X1X) 3195 372,951 -
MCH Pakistan Opportunity Fund (MCEB Pakistan Dvidend Yiedd Plan) 286,990,398 208.93r,784
Alhamra Oppoartunity Fund {Dividend Stralegy Plan) 201,194,329 -
Alhamta Cash Managoemenl Oplirmizor 21,733,590,732 4 357 850,120
MCH DCF Fized Relum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Return Plan 1) 1,253.681,605 -
MCB DCF Flxad Ralum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1) 1420439176 -
MCH DCF Fixed Ralum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Return Plan 1) 2007 145,368 -
Alhamra Govaermnmenl Securilies Fund (Alhamra Governmenl Securilbes Plkan 1) 168,452 356 -
Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Penson Fumd 4,973,038 841 2.B60,1895,3r3
Alhamira lslamic Pession Fund 2.878,380,626 1,614,400, 855
MCH Alharmira KPK Goverriment Employess” Persion Funid 130209 169 -
MCB KPK Governmen! Employees”' Pension Fund 44 234 760

224 626,561,370 153,467,130,471

1.6 The Company = also managing investments under discrelionary and  non-discrelionary  portlolio  managermant
agreements, he delaits of which are given in node 18.3 (o hese inancial slalemants.

1.7 I accordance with he reguirements of Fule 9 of the Non-Banking Finance Companbes (Establishment and Regulalion)
Rules, 2003, the Company has oblamed sullicien! msurance coverage brom Jubikee General Insurance Company Limuited
agains! any losses thal may be incurred as a resull ol employes’s raud or gross negligence. Jubliee General Insurance
Company Limited has boon assigred a credil raling of “Af++ {ifs) by Pakistan Credil Raling Agency Limited (PACHEA)
daled November 3, 2023 (2023: ‘A8++ (ils)" dated November 3, 2022),

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Staternent of compliancoe

MCB Investment Management Limited 75

These financial stalements have bean prepared in accordance wilth the accounting and reporting slandards as apphcable
in Pakisian. The accounling and reporting slandards applicatie in Pakkstan comprise ol

- Inlermalional Fnanclial Reporling Standards ((IFRS Accounling Standards) lssued by he inlemalional Accounting
Siandards Board (1ASB) as noliied under the Companias Acl, 2017

- Provisions of and direchives lssued under the Compantes Acl, 2017 aloeng wilh part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Oirdinance, 19684,

- Ihe Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Hegulalion) Rules, 2003 (ke NBFC Rues); and
- the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Moliied Enlites Regulalions, 2008 (ihe NBFC Regulations).

Whera provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017, pard VIlA ol lhe repealed Companies
Ordinanee, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulalions differ from the requirements of IFRS Accounting
Slandards, the provisions of and direchves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, parl VIIA of (he repealed Companias
Ordinanes, 1984 the NBFC Rules and e NBFC Regulalions hava beon (ollowed.

Further, e Securilies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has directad vide SRO 56{12016 daled Janusry
28, 2016 that the reguirements of IFRS 10, 'Consohdaled inancal statemants’, are nol apphicable n case of investmenis
made by companies in mulual lunds eslablished under the Trusl struclure. Accordingly, implicallons of IFHS 10 in
respacl of the Company's investmenl inomuleal funds managed by il have nol bean considerad in these linancal
slataments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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Standards, interpretations and amendmants to the published accountling and reporting standards that are
affective in the current year

There are cortain amendments (o the published accounting and reporting standards that -are mandatory for the
Company's annual accounting perod beginning on July 1, 2023, However, these are not considered to be relevant or did
nol have any material effect on the Company's financial stalemenls and have, therefore, nol been disclosed In these
financial statements excopl thal during the vear cefain amendments (o LAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements”
have become applicable to the Company which require entities to disclose their maternal accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. These amondments o 1AS 1 have been introduced 1o help antities
improve accounting policy disdosures =0 that they provide more useiul information © investors and other primary users
of the finandal stalemanis: These amendments have been incorporated in these financial statements with the primary
impact that the malerial accounting policy information as been disclosed rather than the significant accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that are not
yel effective

The following new standands and amendmeonts with respect o the published accounting and reporting standards would
be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective amendments:

Effective date (annual
Standards and amendmenis periods beginning on or after)
- IAS 1 - Presemtation of fimanckal statements" (amendmients) January 1, 2024
- lAS 21 - "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’ (amendments) Jdanuary 1, 2025
- IFRS 7 - Financial Instrumaents: Disdosures” famendments) Jdanuary 1, 2026
- IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments” {amendmants) January 1, 2026
- IFRS 18 - 'Presentation and Disclosura in Financial Statements’ January 1, 2027

The management is currently in the process of assessing the impact of these amendmenis on the financial statements of
tha Company.

There are ceriain other siandards, amendmenis and interpretations that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024 but are considerad not 1o be rolevant or will not have any significant effect on
the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimales and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the: accounting amnd reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requines management o mako judgments, estimates, and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of
assats, abilities, income and expenses. I also requires the management 0 exercisse s judgment in application of its
accounting palicies. The estimales and associated assumptions ane based on historical experonces and various othor
factors thal are beleved 1o be reasorable under the circumstances. These estimales and assumplions are reviewad on
an ongoing basis. Rovision to accounting estimates are recognisad in the year in which the estimates are revised if tho
revision affects only that year, or in the yoar of revision and future years if the rowvision affects both current and  future
years. Significant accounting estimales and areas where judgments were made by the managemen! in the application of
tha accounting policies are as Tollows:

- estimation of useful lves and residual values of operating fixed assets (noles 3.1.1 and 4.1),

- estimation of useful lves of intangible azsels (notes 3.2 and 5.1);

- mpairment of non-financial assets (note 3.6);

- provision for taxation (notes 3.5, 14 and 26);

- lease hability and right-of-use assets (noles 316, 4.1 and 15);

- other provisions (notes 3.11 and 16); and

- classificaion, valuation and impairment of financial assets (notes 3.3.1.1, 3.3.1.2, 7 and 11.3).

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for the ollowing:

- Right-of-uso assots and their relatod lease lability are camed at present value of future keaso rentals adjusted for any
lease paymenls made al or before the commencement date of the lease; and

- Investmants are carmed at fair value-as disciosed in notes 3.3 and 7 1o these financial statoments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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Functional and presentation currancy

leims included in these financial stalements aro measured using the currency ol the primary ecomnmic environment in
which lhe Company operales. These financial slalemenis are presenled in Pakistani Rupses, which is the Company's
lunctional and presentalion curronoy.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The maleral accounling policies applied in the preparation ol these financial siatements are set oul bolow. Thesa
policias have been consistently applied 1o all the years presanled, unless olherwise slated,

Fixed assels
Property and equipment
Owned

These are slaled al cost less accumulaled depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses, I any. Subseguenl cosls
arg included in tha assels’ camrying amounls of recognised as separale assels, as appropriale, only when it s probable
that fulure economic benelils associated with the items will flow o the Company and the cost of the ilems can be
measured reliably. Depreciation is charged al lhe rales specilied in nole 4.1 using the siraight line mathod. Depreciation
an addilions is charged lrom the month when the assel becomes avadable for use while on disposais deprecialion is
chamged uplo the maonth preceding lthe month of disposal. The msidual values and wuselul lves are reviewed and
adjusted, il signilicanl, at each reporing date 1o refllect the curreant best estimate.

MNormal mepars and mainlenance are chamged lo the siastement ol profil of loss as and when incurmed. However, major
repaks and renewsls ame capilalised, Gains and losses on disposals of assels, Il any, are included in the slalement al
profil or boss in the year | pericd in which the disposal s madeo.

Deprocialion reialed o righf-ol-use assels s charged over the pariod of the lease lorm
Capital work-in-progress

Al expenditure connecled with spedific assels Incurmed duning  nstallation and . construction perod are camied under
capital work-in-progress. These are ransferred to the relevan! calegory ol groperly and equlpment as and whan these
become available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels are measured Initially &t cosl and are subsequently carmied al cos! less accumulaled amorisation and
accumulated impairment losses, iF any.

Subseguent costs are included in the assels’ camying amounls or recognised as a separmlo assel, as appropriale, only
whan i ks probable thal fulure economic benefits associaled with the llem will llow 1o the Company and the cost of the
Item can be moassured rodfiably.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life
Intangible assats with indefinils uselul life are stated al cost less accumulated impairment losses, it any

Intangible assets with definite useful life

Intangible assats with' dedinite usslul like are siated al cosl less accumuolaled amortisation and acoumulaiod impairmant
losses, if amy. Intangible assols are amorised al the rales spociied n note 51 using the straght line method.
Amorisation s charged from the month when lhe assel s available for use while on dispozals amorlisation is charged
uplo the month preceding the month of disposal. The useful lile and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusled, il
appropriale, al each reporling dale.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets, il any, are noluded in the siatement of profil or loss in the year / perod in which
lhery arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification and subseguent measurement

The Company has applied IFRS 8 and classifies lts financial assats in the following measurement categorios:
- al amortised cosk;

- at lair value through other comprehaensive inoomae (FVOCTD; and
- al lair value through profit or loss (FYPL).
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The dca=silication requiremants for debl and equily instrumants are doscribed balow:
(i) Debt instruments

Dbt instruments ara those instrumentls that meel the defimition of & linancial iabiity rom e ssuer's perspective, such
as loans, government and corporale bonds and pullable instruments lke unils ol open-and mulual lunds.

Classibcation and subseguent measuramant of debl instrumenis depend on:

- tha Company's business model for managing the assel; and
- 1he cash llow characlerslics of the assel

Basod on these fackors, the Company dassiies s debl instruments n one of the following three measurement
calegorkes:

a) Al amortised cost:

Asszels [hat are heid for collection of conlraciual cash lows whare those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interes! (SPPL), and that are nol designated as FVPL, are measured atl amortsed cost. The canrying
amounl ol thass assals s adjusted by any expected crodil less allowance recognised and maasured as describoed in
noter 3,312,

b} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assels lhal are held jor collection ol conlraciual cash flows and for selling the assels, where the assals'
cash llows represant solely paymenis of principal and interest, and [hal are nol designatod as FVPL, are measurod al
fair valua through olther comprahensive income (FYOCEH. Moveaments in the carrymg amount are taken throogh other
comprahensive ncome, excepl lor the recognibon of mpaimenl gains or losses, recognised and measured as
described in note 3.3 1.2, inloresl revenue and foraign exchange gains and josses on the instrumeant's amortsed
cost, which-are recognised n the stalement of profit or loss. Whan the inancial asset s derecognised, the cumulabive
gain or loss previously recognised in olher comprehensive income is reclassified from equity lo lhe stalemeant of profil
ar loss.

€} Fair value through profil or loss ([FVPL):

Aszals lhal do nol meel the crilera lor dassification al amorlised cosl or FVOCH are measured al lair value through
profil or loss. A gain or loss on & debl investment thal = subsequonlly measurad al fair value through profil or loess
and 15 nod part of a hedging relaticnship s recognised in the statement of profil or loss in the penod in which il amses.

{ii} Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments thal mesat the definibion of aguily from the ssuer's parspective and ara instrumeanls
thal do nol conlain & contraciual obligalion o pay and thal evidence a residual interest in lhe ssver's nal assels,

All equily investments are required o be measwed n the statement of lnancial posiion at lar value, with gains and
losses recognised In the statement of profil or loss, excepl where an imevocable election has beon made al the time ol
Initel Fecogiiton o measune Lhe investimenl al FVYOCL

The dividend income lor equily securilies dassiflied under FVWOC] is recognized in the stalement of prolil or lass.
Howevar, any surplus / (dalicil) arsing as a resull of subsequenl movemant in the @i vales of equily secuntios dassifiod
as FVOC! is mecognisad in other comprehansve income and 15 not recycled to the statemant of profil or loss on
derecogmiton

Impairment

The Company assesses on-a forward-looking basis the axpected credil losses (ECL) associated with s debl nstrament
assals carmied al amortised cost and FVOCL The Company racognises a loss allowance lor such lossss al esach
raporting date. Tha measurement ol ECL rellects:

- an unbiased and probabilily-wakghled amounl thal s delermined by evaluating a range ol possible oulcomes;

- ihe ime value of money; and
- measonable and supporlable informaltion hal is availabie withoul undue cosl or effort at the reporting date aboul pasl

avanls, currenl conditions and forecasts of lulure economic condilions.
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I'he Company considers thal a financial assel s in defaull when [he counterparty fails [0 make contractual paymenis
wilhin 90 days of when they fall due. Furthar, financial assels are written off by the Company, in whole or part, whean il
has exhausted all practical recovery elforts and has concluded thal there is no reasonable expeclalion of recoverny.

Derecognition

Hnancksl assels, ar a porlion thereol, are derecognised when the conlraciual rights o recelve the cash flows from lhe
assels have expired, or when they have bean ransferred and oithes:

(i) e Company transfers substanlzlly-all the resks and rowards of ownaership; or

{ii} the Company neither ransfers nor relains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Company has
not retared control.

Wiean the Company anlers inte ransactions whern it retans the contractual rights: o receve cash liows rom assets but
assumes a coniraciual obligation lo pay those cash flows lo olher enlibes and transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards, thaso franssctions are accounted for as ‘pass through' ransfers thal resull in derecognition il the Campany:

{1} has no obligation o make payments unless it collects equivalent amounts from he assels;
{ii) ks prohibited from salling o pledging the assets; and
{in) has an obligatiod o remil any caesh il collects om he assels withoul malesal dalay.

Adry gain of loss on derecognition of financal assals & aken b he stalomeant of profit o loss.
Regular way contracts

All regular way purchaszes and sales ol linancial assels are recognised on the rade dale be. the dale on which tha
Company commils o purchase or sall the assel Regular way purchases § sales of assels requine delivery of secunbios
wilhin bwo days from the transascton date as per the stock exchanga regulations,

Financial liabilities

Firancial abilities are measured at far valus upon nitial recognibion and subseguanty meassured 3 amorised cost
axcepl for.

- Financial iabiities at fair value throogh profid or loss; and
- Fimanceal labililies ansing from the fransfer of hinancal assets which did not quality for derecognilion, whoroby a
financial liability is recognised lor the consideralion received for the iransfar.

Derecognition

Firancil latbibes are derecogrised al the time when thess gre ainguished Le. when the obligation specified n the
conbracl B discharged, cancelled of axpies. Any gain of loss on deracoghiion of lsancisl Gabilibes s lakon o the
statemeant ol profil or loss

Initial recognition

Financial assels and financial liabiities are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party 1o the coniractual
provisions of he instrument. Thesa are initially recognised al fair value plus ransaclion costs excepl lor linancial assets
carried al fair valua hrough prolil or loss. Financial assets camied al [ value through profil or loss am initially
recogmsed al far value and ransacton costs associated with these inancal assets are taken directly 1o the statement of
profil or loss.,

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Flnancial assels and linancal kabilitkes are offsel and lhe nel amount is reported in the inancial stalements when Lhere s
a legally enforceable righl o sal off the recognised amounts and thore B an inlénlion lo seltle on 3 nel basis, or 1o realise
the assats and soltle the habilibes simullaneously.

Business model

The business modsl refllects how the Company manages Lhe assels in order to ganerate cash Nows That s, whother the
objective is solaly lo collect the confractual cash lows from lhe assets or s lo collect bolh the confraciual cash llows and
sh flows ansing from the sale of assets. I neithor of these s applicable (eg. financial assots am held for rading
purposes), then the financiki assols are dassifed as parl of ‘other’ business model and measured al FVPL. Factors
consdernad by he Company i datarmining the business modal lor a group of assels include past expenence an hiow e
cash llows for these assols were collected, how the assel's perdormanco s avaluated and reported o key managesment
porsonnal, how nsks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensaled.
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. B §

Solely payment of principal and interest

Whera the business model is o hold assels 1o collect contraciual cash flows or to collect conlraciual cash lows and sall,
the Company assasses whether [he inancial nstruments” cash lows represant solely payments of principal and interas)
{thax “SPPI test'). In making this assessmhenl he Company considars whalher the contraciual cash lows are consislent
wilh & basic lending armrangemeant Le. ilerest includes only consideration for the time vaiue of monay, credit rsk, othar
basic lending risks and a profit mangin thal is consistent with a basic lending arangemenl. Where the conlractual lerms
Introduce axposure Lo fsk or volalilily thatl are inconsistant wilh a basie lending arangement, the related inancial assel s
dassilied and measured at 2 valoe through profil or loss.

Reciassifications

The Company recassifies debl investments when and oofy when its business model for managing those assels
changes. The reclassificalion lakes place from the stan ol the first reporting pariod following the change, Such changes
are expacted o be very infreguent and nomne occurred during the year.

Investment in associated undertakings

An associale & an antity in which the Company has a signilfican! influence and which s noither a subsidizary nor a joinl
veriure. Associates are accounted for using equity method of accounting after mitially baing recognised at oost

Thesa inancial stalomeaents include the Company™s share of tolal recognised gains and losses of associales on the eguily
accounling basis, from lhe date significant influence commences unlll the dale thal significant influence ceases. The
Company's share of the associales profil of loss s recognised n the statement of profil or loss. Distribulions: received
froam an assockile reduce he carrying amount of tho ovestment. When the Company's share of losses axceeds s
inferesl in an associals, the westmenl's carrying amounl s educed o ol and ecognition of luithor losses s
discontinued excepl 1o the extent thal he Company has incurred legal or constructive obhgalion.

Taxation
Current

Provision for curment 2 s based on laxable income-al the current rates of Exation after laking inle account tix credils
and rebates avallable, f any, and @Exes paid under the final tax regime. The charge for cument tax also includes
adjustments whens nocessary, relating lo prior years which arise lrom assessments ramed f linalised dufing Uhe yesr

Defarred

Delored tax & eooghised using the balancs sheel kabiity mathod on all lemporary differences arsing between the
carrying amount of assels and liablilies lor linancial reporting purposes and the amound used Tor &xation purposes.
Delerred tax iabihes are recognised on all laxable lemporary differences,

Delerred lax assel ks recognised for all deductible lemporary diferences only to the extent that || is probable thal fulure
taxable profils will be available againsl which (he assel can be ulilised. Dedarred ax s charged or credited to the
statemant of profit or loss if the s relates to tems hal are charged o crediled o the statement of profit or loss and to
ather compretianshe incoma If the lax relales 1o lems hal e charged of credied 1o olher comprehensive Ihcome.

Delarred tax assets and lisbiites are measured using the lax rales thal are expecled o apply lo the period when the
assal 5 realsed or the lRbilily & seilied, based on the ax ales (and lax bws) thal have bean substantivaly enacted al

the reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carmying amount of the assels = reviewed at each reporting date o determine whother thore s any indicaton of
impairment oss. Il such indication exists, the carrylng amounts of such assels are reviewed o assess whather they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carmying values axceed the respoctive recoverable amounts,

assels are wiillen down 1o thalr recoverable amounis and the resulling impakrment charge s recognised in the slalement
of profil or loss.

Deposits and other receivables

Deposilts and olher recavables are camed al amorlsed cosl, less axpecled cedil loss allowance dobafmined in
accordance with the accounting policy as mentioned in nole 3.3.1.2. Bad debts are writton off when identified.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an approved funded contnibulory provident fund for all s permanent employess o winch egual
monthly contributions are made bath by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.
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Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camed in the stalement of financal posttion al cosl. For thie purpose of statement ol cash
flows, cash and cash eguivalents compose cash in hand and balances with banks in current and savings accounis.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for rade and othor amounts payable are carried al cost, which is the lair value of consideration o be paid in
the future for goods and services whather or nol billed (o the Comparny.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognisad when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past evants_ il
s probable. thal an outflow of resources embodying economic banefits will be reguired 1o settle the obligation and a
refimble estimals ol the obligation can be mado. The amount recognised represents the best estimale of (he expendiluie
required o sette the obligalion at the reporting date, Provisons are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted o
refiect ihe currend best estimale. Provisions are nol recognised for fulure operating losses.

Contingent assels are disclosed when there 5.a possible asset thatl anses from past evanls and whoss existence will be
confirmed anly by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Conlingent assets are nol recognized until the inflow of sconomic benefits s virtually corain,

Conilingenl abifity s dizclosed whern:

- there = a possible obligation thal arkses from past evenls and whose exislence will be confirmed only by the
ocourrence of non-occunmenca of one or more unceriain fulure evenls nol wholly within the control of the Company; or

- Ihere 5 a presant obligalion that arises rom past events bul i s ot probable hat an outflow of resources embodying
econamic benalils will be required lo sellle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannol be measured with
suffciont rolability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue i recognised when the services have beon rendered by the Company and roceived by the customer and thare
5 no urfulfilled obligation that could alfect the cislomas's acceplance of e saivica, Revenue of dillemnt stresms S
recogrised as follows:

- Managemenl fes from collecthve investmanl schemes and volunlary pension schomes s calcuiated by charging the
specified rates within tho lmit allowed under the NBFC Regulations 1o the nel assats of such schemes as al the dose
of business ol sach calendar day. The peformance obligation s salisfed at the dose of business day lor each
schema and paymenl is gonerally due al the and of each month;

- Investmeant advisory fee from the discretionary portiolios s calculated on a dailly bases by charging specified rales o
the net assels of the portlolios @ slated in lhe respoclve agreemenls with the dienls. The perlormance oblgaton &
salsfied al the dose ol business day for each portfolio and payment is genarally due either al the end of each guarter
or six manths based on hae agreemenl lemms,

- Perlormance based romunarabon (of nvestment sdvisory seivices and managameanl ol discrelionary portlolio are
accrued once the lerms ol the conlracl are hanowred and the Company achieves the parformance condition al the
end al the period. The pedormance obligation ks, therelore, satisfied al the and ol agreamant pertod or al the Ume al
tenmination of agresment and paymenl becomes due al the end of (he aforementoned poriod;

- Capital gains f losses ansing on sale of mvestments 12 recognised n the statement of profit or loss on the date at
which transachon tikes place;

-  Load income s recognisad once the sanvices ara provided 1o the unil holders in conneclion with their investmenls in
collective investment schomes managed by the Company. The porformance obligation s satished al the me of
providing Le service o the unil holders and payment becomes dus al the end ol each monlth;

- Dividend ncome is fecorded when e fighl 1o recaive he dividend 5 established;
- Profit on bank daposits and investments s recognised on-an acorual basis using effective inlerest rale mothod;
- Mark-up on loans o employess 5 recogrsed on an accrual basis, and

- Oiher income is recognlksed on an accrual bases.
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Earnings per share

I'he Company presenls basic and diluled samings por sham (EPS) lof ils shaieholders: Basic EPS 5 calosated by
dividding the profit or foss attribulable o ordinary sharehoiders of the Company by the weighted average number ol
ordinary shares oulstanding during the year. Diluled EPS s delermined by adjusting the prolil or loss atirbutable o
ordinary shareholders and [he weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for (he effects of dilutive
potental ordinary shares, if any.

Proposed dividend and transfer betweon ressrves

Dividonds dectared and transfers belwoon resarves made subsequent o the reporing date are considered as non-
adjushing events and are nol recognised o the inancal statements in the pernod m which such dradends are declared ¢
Iranslers are made and hence, are accounlad lor subsequent o the year and.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transachons n foresgn curmencias are translated inlo Pakistam Rupees at the forsign exchange rates prevailing on the
dale of ransachon. Monalary assels and liabiilbes In foralgn cuffencies are ranstated inlo Pakstanl Bupeas at lhe rales
of exchange approximating thosa al the stitement of inancial position date. Exchange gains / losses resulling from the
selloment of ransactions and from the transaton al year-end exchange rates of monelary assets and Habilities
denoiminated in loreign cuffencies ano laken 1o he stalamanl ol profil o loss.

Lease liability and right-of -use assels

Al inception of a contract, the Company assessas whothar a confract s, or conlains, a loase based on whather tha
contract conveys the fghl 16 conleal e use of an danliiad assel for a patod ol ime h exchange for considaralion.

In detarmining the lease lerm, management considers all facts and creumstances thal creale an economic ncentive o
exercise an exonsion oplion or nol exercise a lermination oplion. Extension eplions (or porods after lermination opbions)
are only included in the lease torm i the lease |s reasomably cortain to bo estonded {or nol lerrminated).

The lease lability s mitially measurad at the present value of the lease paymonts over the penod of lease erm and thal
arma nol pakd al the commencemenl dale, discounted using the inleres! rale Implicl in the lease, or il thal rale cannol be
readily determined. the Company's incramental borrowsng rabe.

Lesmse paymedits includs fxed payments less any leasa ncanllve recavable, vanable leasa paymeonl hal are based an
an index or a rate which are inilially measured using the index or rale as at the commencement date, amounts expected
o be payabile by the Company under residual value guaraniees, he exercise price of a purchase oplion if the Cormpany
1= reasonably corkam o exercso thal option and payments of perallies for lerminating the laase il the lease erm reflocks
that the lossea will axercise that option. The axtansion and termination oplions-are incorporated in determination of lease
term only when the Company ks reasonably certakn o exercise hese oplions.

Ther lease fability s subsequantly measured al amonsed cost using the effective interest rate mathod. The loass liabilty
is also remeasured o reflecl any meassessmeanl of lease modilicaion, or o rellect rovissd esubstanco fixed lease
paymeanl

The jease labilily is rameasured when the Company reassesses the reasonable corainly 1o exercise exlension or
termination oplion upon ocourrence of aither 3 significant event or a significant change in crcumstances, or whan there
is a change in assessmenl of an oplion o purchase an underlying assel, of when there k5 a change in amounl expacled
o be payable under a residual valve guarantes, or when there s a change in lulure lease payments resulting from a
change n an ndex or rale used lo delermine those paymenls. The comesponding adjustment ts made 1o the camying
amounl of he rghtol-use assal. or is recorded in the statemeant of profil or loss il the carrying amount of fght of use
assol has bean reduced Lo zaro.

When there is a change in scopa of a lease, or the consideration for-a lease, that was nol parl of the onginal lorms and
conditions, the same s accounted for as a lease modiication. The lease modification s accounted for as a separato
lazsa i modiliation ncreases he scopo ol leass by adding the fghil o use one of more udeidying assels and the
consideraton for leass increaseas by an amound thal is commensurate with the standalone price lor the ncreass in seope
adjusted 1o raflect the cireumstances ol lhe parficular contract, I any. Whean the lease modification is nol accounted for
as a separale leass, he loase lability B remeasured and corresponding adjustrment is made o ighl-of-use assal

The nght-of-use asset 15 mitially measured al an amount egual o the imBal measurement of lease Gability adjusted lor
any lease payments made al or belore the commencemenl dale, plus any initial direct cosls incurred and an eslimale of
the cosis o ba incurred o dismante and remove the underlying assel or o restore he underving assel or [he site on
which the assel s localed.
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The nght-of-uso assol is subsequently measured al cost loss accumudated depreciation and accumutalod mpainmont
losses, il amg The rfght-of-use assol is deprociated using the straight lino mothod in sccordance with the ralos specfiod
I note 4.1 to these financial statements and aftor taking into aceoun! residual values, if any. The useful lives and
depreciation mothods are reviewed and adjusted, f appropriate, at cach reporting date. The nght-of-use asset s
adjusted for corain romeasurements of tho lease hability.

a7 Segment reporting
An oporaling sogment s 3 component of the Company thal engages in business activiies from which it may eam
revonues and incur oxponsos including rovonues and oxpenses that rolate (o transactions with any of the Company's
other components.
Operating segments ar reportod in a mannor consstent with the internal roporting structure. The managomont moniiors
the operating resulls of its business uniis separalely for the purpose of making decisions regarding resources allocation
and porformancoe assessmont. Sagment resulis, assols and Rabilities incudo toms directly attributablo o tho segment as
woll as thoso thal can bo allocatod on a roasonablo basis. Those assels and Fabilies which cannot bo aflocated © a
particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated assets and Habiliies. The Board of Direclors and
Chiof Executive Officor have baon identificd as the chiof operating decision makors who ane responsible for aflocating
resources and assessing the parformance of the opomating sogrments. Currently, the Company 15 functioning as a single
oparaling segmenl
3.17.1 Geographical segments
The operations of the Company are currently based only in Pakistan.
Mote 2024 2023
4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Rupees
Operating fixed asseis 4.1 110,555 376 128,081,651
Capital work-in-progross 4.2 - 2,458,208
110,555,376 130,538,859
4.1 Opeorating fixed assots
The following i the staterment of operating fixed assets:
2024
Computsr Odfice Furniture Leasehold Righi-of-use assets - Totad
pqEpment eqEipmenl and fixhures | | improvements Leasshold
[Rupess]
As a3t July 1, 2023
Cost 3 516,966 25 7137 89521570 12,804,342 B.404, 270 212,824,053 384,351 187
Acoumland deprecaiion (B4.989,307) (1B9E1B3I5) (TESV.E33]  (3BMEIS0)  {5.185021) (128,334,964) [228.984,155)
Acoumdated mmpaEmenl - - {F25.817) 16550 464) - - {7,285 381
Met book value 78,527 554 6785302 1141370 2,398 574 4,238 245 BABBIS2Y 178081651
Year ended June 30, 2024
DCipening mat book valus 28 677 BA B.785,382 1,141,328 2398 578 4,238,245 B4 5B8529 128,081 551
Aaddiions (al cost} 5,605,081 1,365,887 42.000 3,628,701 5. 508,000 24,304, 575 A5, 6 B
Desposals
Cio=d {383,000 - - - - (383,000)
Accumuisted depracizion 357146 - - - - - 327 148
o (55,854) = < S . Z (55.854)
Depreciation charge for the yaar (12007677) (2077460)  (TPE500)  (2BA25E3)  (zareaea) (3\EIELET) (50,783,142
Effect of tarminalion - = ~ = * A21 523 3,321,923
Cipsing pet book value N T R R R R BATA 0 g.ﬂ!m H!!FBE.H'H!

As af June 30, 2024
Cost
Aroumdalod deprociation

Acommulaiod mmpammen
Met book valus

103,138,047 MBI B563OVE 16433043
(Ti.759.833) (21071295) (B431183)  (BE9E813)
s . (FE5IMT] (6550454
.02 BOTarag ADG.ETD 17
2% 0% -50% 25%-A7% _ 75%-50%
83

16012770 233 99T 545 406,290,908
{7.537.280) (187,951 647) ([288.450,151)
- - 7,285,381
B.474.,580 66,045,858 [1]
25% 2% - 3%
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4.1.2

As at July 1, 2022

Cost

Acoumdaled depraciation
Acommdated mpamment
Met book valus

Year ended June 30, 2023
Dipening nest book valus
Adkdifions (8l cosl}

Disposals
Cost
Accumulsied deprecision

Depreciation charge for the year
Effect of termination
Cilosing net book valus

As at June 30, 2023
Cosk

Acourulaed depreciaiion
Acomuisted mpaimmenl
Met book walue

Depreciation rate (% per annum)

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocaled as follows:

Adminksiralive expenses

Salling and distribubion exponsos

Fors]
Computer Difica Fumiture Leasehodd Vebich Right-of-use assets - Total
equipment Eqpment e=nd fixherss | | mprovements Leasehald budidy
[Rupses|
66335011 21860420 10131415 17,196,518 4,237 270 135033401 254,794,035
[52237415) (1TAGES4E) (BUS4T35) (FI7R.2ES) (3390100 (80,509, 1407 (177,858 207
L - (F2ETT)  (B550,484) * 5 (7,285,381
14007506 _ ASOLET1 2410763 3356 789 867 167 A4 524 761 B GS0AAT
MIET586 4301871 2410783 3,356,709 BET, 167 44 524,261 £ 650 447
FTAM1202 4440806 125,788 784,700 5,167,000 B3631.136 121,899,633
[258,2473 :mr,mﬁil mas22s)| [ (5. 176.676] : - (6702 437)
171,178 410,316 | 724 550 5,157.904 - _ 6 453 849
(B8,068) (120,773) (10,675) {18,572} % - {238, 488)
(12523.06R) (1935802} (1.384.458) (1,725,989} {1.754,916) (3T B2SA24)  (57580,85T)
< - . s = 5 A 5
FRGIT 660 BoBha02  1,041.479 o L = L] m.%.{.za !za.um.asi
SROIEEGE  2ETTRIN 852197 12,804,342 9,404,270 24493 364,351,167
(B480803027) (18803835) (TES4EA3)  (3BMEAS0)  [BIGSD0ZM) {128,334 654)  [290,984,155)
- - (T25917) _ (6.550.464) e - (7,285,381
—apder el . BI05302 141370 . 2300523 4239240 . BAOSRSEI 199085051
250, 0% -50% 2% -BP% 259 -50% 2% PP - 3%
| po
Nate 2024 2023
Rupees
i | 44,825 118 41,552 963
22 14,968,023 16,037 534
59,793,142 57,589,897

The operaling fixed assels includes iloms costing Rs. 111.971 million (2023; Rs. 107.080 million) which are [ully
deprecialed as ol June 30, 2024 bul are still b active wse of the Company.

Tha details of operating fixed assets disposed of during the year are a=s follows:

Cont Accurrulstsd || Wet bock Hale Gain on Made of Particulars Reelationship with
depreziation vales || proceeds || disposal || desposal of Buyer Luyer
tupaes
Assets having book valre of not more 383,000 IX7, 146 55854 Br7T1 38T Megolafon Mr Muhammsad Ex-Chisf
than five hundred thousand rupess Sagb Sdzem  Exscutive Officer
individually disposed of durayg the year
Total - June 30, 2034 383,000 X7, 146 55 A54 I G KL
Total - June 30, 2023 6702437 6463040 25B4ER 30238  6RTS0
Mote 2024 2023

Capital work-in-progress Rupeas

Advancea o contractors - 2,458,208

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Definite life

Compuler sollware 51 9 985 440 23271910

Indafinite life

Goodwill 51, 53454 82 126,933 A2 126,933

Maragarment righls 51, 53854 192,000,000 142, 000,000
274,126 933 274,126,933
284 112,373 297 398 843
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51 Following Is the statement of June 30, 2024
intangible assets: Computer software || Goodwil | [ Management rights | | Total
ot [Rupees)
As at July 1, 2023
Cost 122 450 GRS 82126833 162,000,000 306 577,621
Acoumulated amaorisation {98,178.778) : . {049,178, 778)
Net book value 2:1;? 16510 BEIIZﬁE’J:!E 182 UIIIEIIIG 207388 843
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opaning net book value 23 271,910 B2 126,933 192 GO0 000 297,388 843
Arditions e - : -
Amorisation charge for the year (13,286 470) : - {173,286 470}
Ciosing net book valua 0 6B5 440 A2,126.833 102 D000 Z84_112.373
As at June 30, 2024
Caosl 122 450 688 B2, 125,933 192,000,000 I 57T 621
Accumulated amartisation (112 405.248) - = (112,465 248)
Net book value 9.985.440 B2, 12%6.933 192,000,000 284 112,373
Amortization rate (% per annum} 25% - I3%
June 30, 2023
Mm | Goodwill ] ! Tolal
ot [Rupees)
As at July 1, 2022
Cosi 121663317 B2 126833 182,000,000 R, TH0,250
Accumulated amortisation [B3 621 254) 2 - (B3, 521, 254)
Net book value 38 042 (63 B2 1269323 162 UEI}!D[IO 312!133 Ei]
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 38, 042063 82,126,933 1592, 00, D00 312,168,986
Addiions 787371 - - TET. AT
Amortisation charge for the year i | [15,557.524) z : {15557 524§
Closing net book value 23 2718910 B2 126 833 192 D00 000 2973088 843
As at June 30, 2023
Caosl 122 450 688 B2, 125,933 192,000,000 I 57T 621
Accumulated amartization {90 178778 - - 138,178,778}
MNet book value — 23271010 ____ E2IMGER3 ___ 102 000000 ____ 57306 843
Amortisation rate (% per annum} 25% - 33%

52 Intangible asseis incdudes items costing Rs. 55 560 million (2023: Rs. 54,622 million) which are fully amortised as of June
30, 2024 but are still in aciive use of the Company.

53 Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamabion for the transfer of the entire business of MCB AMC to AHIL including all the
properties, nights, tifle and interest as disdosed in note 1.1 {o these financial statements which was ontered between
AHCL and MCB Bank Limited, intangible asseis compnsing of managemeant nghts and goodwill aggregating to Rs. 192
million and Rs. 82,127 million respecivaly were recognised in the financial statemoents for the year ended June 30, 2011.

54 In accordance with the requirements of Intermational Accounting Standard (LAS) 36: "impairment of assels’, an entity shall
test an intzngible asset with an indefinte wuseful life and goodwill acquired in a business combination for impaiment
annually by comparing its carmying amount with its recoverable amount, irespective of whather thore is any indication that
it may bte impaired. Therefore, the management has losiod wheilher management rghts with indefinite useful Iife and
goodwill have suficred any impairment as at June 30, 2024, The recoverable amounts for management nghis and
goodwill are based on value-in-use calculations which require the vse of assumplions. The calculations use cash flow
projeciionz based on financial budgets prepared by the management covenng a five-year penod. Cash flows beyond
those perods are exirapolaied using the estimated growth rates: These growth rales are consistonl with forecasis
specific to the industry in which the Company operates. Following are the key assumptions for determination of value-in-
uso for goodwill and management nighls:

541 Key agssumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts

The growth rates and cost to income ratios used lo esfimate future performance are based on past performance, markod
frends and the management exporience of growth rates and cost o income ratios achievable. The management
belicves that the assumptlions used in eslimating the: fulure perfiormance of these intangibles are consistent with past
performance and trends. The caleulation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the following assumgptions:
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Particulars 2024 2023
Discounl rate 24 00% 24 _00%
Terminal growth rate 8.30% 9.30%
Revenwe growih rate 9 30% 9.30%

MHola 2024 2023

INWVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Rupees

Investmont in associated undoerakings
Invesiment in wnits of funds under management 6.1 1. 790,686,810  1,353.001,777

L | Invesiment in units of funds under management

Jure 3, 224
m“ Perentage :'“.".": Wstmeets | Rodomphons | " Diidme | bnvestment asat
and of ipming ; . i
Wane of (he imvestes fnd alace hreidding o during fa year | dormg the e o oJamie I
Pugass

Imvestmend in associated enderiaking
Al skamic Pesson Fund - Equly Sub-Fund Pk 750 [ 16135380 B T A - | mrmm
Abramra |slarmic Pomsion Fond - Debt Sob-Fumd Pasizian 12T B AS1 243 - - hE-Tire - 104 205 520
Altermra iskmic Paion Fund - Money Mol Seé-Ford Paislan T12% 17,386, 4856 - - T 292 B4 - S GTB0
Paii=ian Persion Fund - Eguily Sub-Fued Paikrlan B2F% 4 85,5651 - [GE.500.000) 111885823 - 137 581,384
Paiisian Passion Fund - Dedl Sab-Fund Paiztan BOE% 12772 10 - - Z1ATT 541 - 126,585 876
Paii=ian Persion Fund - Morey Marks! Seb-Hund Pakislan B08% 108,231 000 - - poiodi - 133 085 000
MCH Afhzsmea KFK Goemmeant Emgioyees” Pemsion Fond -

Wenay Markod Sub-Fund Pairlan 155 % - Yoo - 3358 160 - 23,765, 160
MCH Afhasmm KFK Goemmant Emgioyees Pemsion Fond -

ity Indi Suis-Fend Pl 1950% : i 5 il 5 SR,

Eouily Sub-Feed Patctm  SOGE% : 500,000 = 758 5 e

Debl Seb-Fund Paiklan 53.56% = 500,006 - B.IT5 - SRS

Moy Mkt Sub-Fnd Paikbs  THSS% : 30.000.500 = I4ZATHD 5 1428780

[Ecputy Inchiex: Sy Fund Paiklan 53.80% = 500,006 - 5,162 - 555,162
MCE KP¥, Govermmen Esypiopess’ Persion Fund -

Equely Sub-Furd Patigian 8. 5% - 5.0 - 58576 - 558570
MCE KP¥, Govermmen Esypiopess’ Persion Fund -

Db Ser-Fuund Patigian 8. 5I% - 500000 - 58 586 - 50 580
Patsian Cash Manepenen Fand * Pasizlan - . momse| Emma s @ 5
MCE Cash Mensigomnent Cifimiz: Pl 0% | S677ZITA | 4amSTREET | M4MDAZTESEY  saamepod| (11901 2708033
MCB Pabmsian Siock Make! Fund * Paiislan = - 0 KR 0 [E4, 18, BED 4,108 BED - -
Altamra |slamic income Fond Paislan = 5370240 * [, TH5 288 415,48 = -
MCB Pisian Soesagn Fund Pabistwy  1.20% - |2amaTasTz| (LARGTITIEY 2106033 | (300N 354 MEHGE
Alamra |slarmic Slock Fund * Paiislan = - 1000000 | M2LITTAN) 2L0TAN - -
Abams slmic Ache Alocam

Fond {Afhamra Smart Parfioio} Paiislan B0 5,483 538 11,415,785 - JE43404 | (13430335 125012483
AlEme Wada Fund

| Alivemara Wiadss Pl VT Paiztan - 141,351 335 W AIE S| (180,500,246 MM (BT -
Alrermrs Cash Meregement Opfimizer Patkiztan - 50| IEaEoi| (ZsmEey  mTas|  paEs| -
MCB Patisian Faed Retom Fund

(MCE Pakizian Fizad Retum Plan VIl) Pairlan - 371,725 5,084 31 (16,358,743 2 R - -
MCB Patisian Faed Retom Fund

(MCE Pakiztan Fized] Rt Pl 3] Péi  037% : 10591206 5 masm| s 10608 24
MCH Patisian Faed Retom Fund

{MCB Pakiian Fisad Retum Plan XX)* Paiklan - - kL (V0,358 SE3) L -
Al Oppotunty Fund ividond Siraiegy i) * Paisim - - Mz400| [2iESEOTE]|  1ASESH i -
MCA Pabisian Oygrrtorly Fond

[MCE Pakistan Dividerst Yiekd Pian) Pabistan piasTan| Teamann| MseTziv| mEmem| 2 -
AlfEms Govammien Secriies Fond

Al Gresmmert Secries Pl 1) Pabisizn ra st 50 D0 050 - 50 066, 550

1R TIWNIAE [70 10Em) S SBES (G07hiE 1 /90EEE0
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6.1.1

MCB Investment Management Limited

June 30, 3033
mn Percentage wﬁ: imesiments | Redempiicns | Shweofpeoft | Dividend | invesiment ss 2
Wame of the inwestes fand snd place o | heidisg ooy daring P year | duriseg the yer Pl R
businea: e year
Rugass
Envestment in associsted undertaking
Mharrez Elmvic Possion Fund - Equily Sub-Fund Paistn  3720% | 169002304 - EEET] = 161,358,380
Mherewn i Pession Fomd - Diehl Suf-Fard Fainn  M018% 5,500,665 - - 11,268 548 - M3
Ahaenrs ki Peersion Fund - Monsy Market Sib-Fund Paisln  1063% 6,520,755 - HLTRE T = T7 386 466
Paki=tan Pensaon Fung - Equiy Sub-Fund Pamim  612% |  1Z2ERSR - 1,483, 000 - 24 045 56
Pakisian Femsion Ford - Dt Sub-Fund Paimln  JAE% 27843 858 z 14, R0 362 2 W2 TT2336
Pl Pension Furd - Money Marka! Seb Fund Paislan BT 20,900,000 : - 18,011,000 = 108,231,000
MCE Cash Management Ogimizer Paint= 163% - |e3emmann | sooasosane) M| (1R ETHrERE
WMCE Pakistan Siock Markst Fund Paistm - @G| 00mammd| (16378 BETER z z
Ahaene lsksmic Income Fund Pzt LI - TEESM0|  (ostAMIy  toMS2| IS 6370240
WICE Pakistan Soversigei Fund ® Falist= - | S0383E0| G TERERTY M0 - -
Ay s ki Momey Marit Fund ® Paisim - | ssogmeine| meoETaaE) 1 oedveR| (1040 E
Altiarrea ey Dinderd Fund * Pasta 2 = | a1veseese| 178566568 816275 |  (B16.275) -
Al Isksic Saock Fund Falistan fr3e8 60| 2no00000| (ngTeae (1R - -
Ahaenrs kaimic Artive Afocation
Fund {Athami Sma Portiaiic} Paostan  B123% | 120B3505 E5000000Y  0.388481 - 483539
Aaeva Wads Fund
[ Atz Wads Pln 1) Paisiz 0,003,767 ZO37| [B05ET25 Rl [as22ng -
Ahave Wads Fund
[Alhzgrea Wads Plan 1) * z DA ETI]  ADA4 BRI g EEM .
Ahaez Wiads Fund
(Amharea Wadz Plan T} * Paint= - 19,1530 | (10,100,304 HAEIT | [TI25T) -
Aaerea Wiadls Fund
{Abheres Wada Plan V) * Pt = - ABZEAGZY | G22I Taagm|  (veRmR0) -
Al Weadks Fund
[ Asharrrn Wadz Pl V) * Paisi = = i305m | @5 107650 72| (1545 -
Ahaenea Wiada Fund
(At Wads Pl V1) * Pt - | roorzmsen| (0o6s0oa) aragsz|  (fazaoy -
Ahamra Wiada Fund
[ Athaeres Wads Plan VIl Past= G90% - | Bamsea| pmomsary  TEAME| (EESER M B85
Aarewa Cash Mansgament Dpfimizs Pastn  007% z 10,150, 500 . \TESET| [(ESTY  10.150.100
WMCE Pabistin Foed Rt Fund
{MCB Pkintan Fiesd Rstm Pan 1) Past= wonarTe|  1swE| (MESTARY  2W203| [Riaria) P
MCE Paistan Fised Retn Fund
[MCE Pkictan Fieed Retom P 1) Paisla = = HO30| ERSTNESEY 1ImEE| [(Enn -
WICE Pakistan Feed Rstom Fund
[MCE Pobistan Fisesd Rituen Pln 1) * Pakisim - - ALI0GE2 | MLI0TS2NY 130580 (1305440 -
MICE Pakistan Fised Fistum Fund
[MCE Pkictan Fieed Rotum P V) * Paisla - - AT | 92247 57 06 [153 -
WICE Pakistan Fieed Rt Fund
[MCB Pbstan Fissed Refion Plm V) * Pt - - 12s0e1 | (zieeT) o] -
MCH Paistan Fised Riioen Fund
[MCB Pobstan Fissd Retn Pln V) * Pt - BANGD|  RE5IAM) VEEEE | AT -
MCE Padistan Fised Rzt Fund
{MCB Pkintan Fized Rstom Pl VI Pdsln  451% = | UEMZ0E | (OTITZESEY  LMIAEE| EATEY IS
MCE Pakistan Fosd Retemn Fund
[MCB Pakistan Fized Ratm Pan ) Palostan - 10T (0MEET 2200 (AT 2
WCE Pakistan Fiemd Refum Fund
[MICE Pakistan Fieed Retm Plan X0 * Pamt = SM0E05 | [EEAM T2A) i1l 056 & g -
WA Paiizian Cpportunity Fund
[MCE Pakistan Diviriend Yield Flan) Féistm  ZR13% el E00000| (100000004 6 1E7 - BT M7
LA SIETE 515 5 G35, 130, T16,185) 1. 17

* The urils of thesie assorafes were purchassd and redeemed during #e

Mo reconcliation i orequired betweon the carmying amounl of the vestment n associaled underakings and the
surnmarised hamcal ifformation as the movernenl i the Nel Assel Value (MAV) reprasents lhe propoilionate shase of
profit ol investment in assocate and the nvestment i also valued at the NAV prevailing al he reporting date under the

equily accounting method .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

6.1.2

Summary of financial position and performance

B Jung W, For the year mded June 10, 20
Takal
Mame of the imvestas hed Consiry ol | Parcaniage Pty Lishilffies Riavanue Melioms | comprahemive
incerparation | Medding income
[Ropees]
Investmend in associated wndertaking
- Alharmea sk Poreson Fnd - Equity Sab-Fand Pakstm  2756% 739,191 884 10837, 782  MIEMEME  MEITMY 3ITIM
- At ks Poncion Fund - Dot Sub-Fund Palstn  1279%  EI7M40172 TOA0680  MENDAN  EMEET 1065946678
- e beksmic Poresion Fund - Money Market Sub-Fond Paestn  T12% 133341850 1362950 206043 7M 1M GBOSEF  045808R7
- Pakistan Possion Fund - Equity Sub-Fund Paksian  920% 1 FEIMAE  EISTAON  BARMBATS  EMTTENM  EMTTRIM
- Pagiistan Pansion Fund - Dt Sub-Fund Pastn  BEEY%  196ZEBAARD.  MO150420 DT HEOT4  HEESIE 0 200835178
- Pakiulan Pansion Fand - Money Markel Sub-Fund Pakstn  6.98% 1911266160 498 NTEMIAE 0 DESMEHM M IEHM
~ MICH Alharrra KE¥ Government Employees’ Perssion Fund -
Woney Mariet Stb-Frand Pabsksn  J500% 126,755 482 131,804 10,208 505 S66T 1T 8687177
- MCH Alharva KPK Governimenl Employsss Persion Fund -
Equity bdiex Sub-Fund Pakestn  9906% 579 578 1067 573 A5 2851
- MCH Atharea KP¥, Governmenl Emplopes” Persion Fund -
Equity Sub-une Pakisi 0008, 520 555 1,068 RS 2B 467 25481
- MCH Altamea KPX. Governmand Employess” Porsion Fund -
Dbt Sub-Fund Palesky  O00EY 520} 562 1,080 iRk 53 535 59 535
- MCE KPK Govrmmant Erpioyees’ Penson Fund -
Whoresy Market Sub-Fund Paksln  7R55% 42501357 45367 437 408485 40084 50
= MCB KMK Gowrmmin! Empioyoes’ Ponsion Fund -
Equity e Sub-Fund Pakstn  9990% 6l B4 1102 0,814 =|r2 N2
- MCH EPK Govormmant Ermployoes' Pansion Fund -
Exquity Sub-Fund Pakestn  9990% 56,624 1,100 54 585 S50
- MCB KPK Govormmeil Emphyiees’ Panson Fund -
Debi Sub-Fund Pakstn  99.00% 560,643 1.1 0,562 26 404 28,484
- MCH Cash Managprronl Oplimaa Pakistn QB 4TTRIAIM  SOOEIO T BSG14B0472 TEA0TDANS  7AM 2435
= MCB Paiatin Soverogn Fund Paksian 1AM MRSEEST ITASTENE 1433407201 1 PB4 09182 1284 700182
- Mlharmea sk Acihe Alocalion Fund
{Altwsrra St Portialio) Pakstn  90.05% 13 566,841 £20.292 37538348 56238 247 16,83 247
- MCH Paiistan Foued Heban Fund
(MCE Pkislan Fad Folurn Plan X1 Pokesbe  030% 3200166830 TS MAER NGRS METTESRY
- it Govammant Secorbies Fund
{Adhesrms Govormmant Secoites Pen 1) Pakestan 297294 X ENI 0 196 408 A1 IMETT 215208 25Xl
T4 1B0ARD 014 £ THI 130450 12200000 KFT 11 3RGA31. M0 11,189 531040
35 at June 30, 2601 For the prar eaded June 0, 2023
Tetal
Mams ol the imvesise bed Comsiryjl | Percantage Mgty Liabilifies Rovanus | Mt floses) | teatprahestiva
incerporation | - Bodding flogs] | iscoma
agees]
Investmant i associated undartaking
- Adaenes Ssdmi: Poneseon Fiand - Exquily Sub-Fund Paestn  JTA% 442150575 450 854 12,302, 307 {146553] {1,485.534)
- Alamea bsbamic Persion Fund - Dabi Sub-Fund Pakebe  018% 4547540 2035083 75,713 i BET TET Bi887 a7
- At dsiamic. Porsion Fund - Money Marset Sub-Fomd Pastan  JOE3% T30 S5EVA49 2581343 45 707,384 B9 956 5 3 SR 34
- Patitslaan Pansan Fund - Equly Sub-Fund Pakstn  1613% 705400588 25615045 22714308 528140 5241 651
- Paiston Parion Fuand - Tat! Sub-Fund Pakstan 2085 496,297 308 e 0B 238,453 BY 22T EY 272 T8
- Paisln Pansen Fund - Money Market Sub-Fund Paestn  67T% 1512353455 ASHEN  1EIAEHE E2TESD 1RRTIA0
- MCH Cash Managomanl Oplimiens Pakesbe  0EM 765035508 10350954950 10090230000 O94ZSJERTHN  SAMEITH
- Hiramea ks Incoms Fund Paestn  015% 4302902431 MATTAN]  G0MEMMIE  BA0ISIER 844005162
= Albarra ki Active Alocalion Fund
{Altemya St Postiaiio) Pakigle  B123% 5,220 650 SUn.685 13177 068 11,684,248 11,584 248
- Mlharmea Wi Funed {Altemes Wada Plan Wil Pakstan  6.95% 2027006004 5,855,121 85 958 565 79,870,540 75,970 548
- Altmia Cash Managemen! Oplimizie Paksbn (2% 4345007006 7246 510 2 81 B8 5,106 540 50,196 540
- MCE Pakistan Fled Fsham Fund
{MCE Palistan Fued Fben Pan Vi) Pakeln  461% 206 050 55 108,173 17,845 507 165625 16,663 504
- MCB Padstan Oppochunily Find
[MCB Paislan Dividond Yield P} Palistn  2943%  Z2BIS181 12 897 357 22 166,102 18 360,942 10,26 942
97 MBI 219072 18452571303 1LEMAEOD  10) 10,882 999 308
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LONG TERM INVESTMENT Mote 2024 2023
Rupoos

At Fair value through profit or loss
Invesimaent in shares % | 265,000 265,000

During the year ended June 30, 2022 Mulual Funds Associalion ol Pakistan (MUFAP) had converled inlo a Sall-
Regulatory Organization (SRO) upon the directive of SECP and thus, was required o ba registered under Saction 42 of
the Companies Act, 2017, Since it was converled inlo a SEO, the capilal reguirements wore met from all the Assal
Managemenl Companies (AMCs) who are also the members ol MUFAP. All AMCs conlrbuled equally lowards the share
capital of MUFAP by subscribing for 26,500 shares at a par vales of Rs. 10 each, raising a tolal capilal of Rs. 5,035,000
comprisirg of 503,500 shares of Ry, 10 each. Hence, the Company also subscribed for (he shares of MUFAP being ils
reaTibar.

LONG TERM LOANS AND PREPAYMENTS Moto 2024 2023
Rupees
Gonsidered good - securod
Loan ko execulive 4,04 177 4,136,901
Less: current porkon 10 (114.854) (101.653)
81 3,906,223 4,035 248
Considered good - unsecured
Loan 1o ex-direcior B2.B3&84 i 10,862,158
Loans o exsculives B.5 8,376,118 4, B840, 365
Loans lo employoes B5 2859511 286,974
Less: currenl portkon 10 {3.312.800) (4, 526,518)
7,922 A35 11,542 9¥a
11,629,058 15,578,227
Propaymenis
Prepaid commission against bachatl units 53 908,833 38 Bro042
Levss: currenl portion 1 {98,431, 488} {25,458 503)
BB 25477 345 13,416,539
37 306 403 28 094 a6

I l—y —tr e

Thes represents loan gven o an execulive al an nlerest rale of 4.5% par annum and was mitially recorded at s lair
value using an effeclive inleresl ale ol 12.368% per annum. This loan s advanced lor the purpose ol housing linance and
s repayable in monthly instalbmenls as a deduction rom satary having a masimum ropaymenl perod of up o wanly
yoars, This loan is secured against the documents of the immovable propery acquired and (ife insurance policy in @wour
ol Lhe Comparny.

This represents kean ghven o ex-Chiel Executive Oflicer at the rale of 1 year KIBOR minus 1% per annum with KIBOR 1o
be resel annually rom the dale of disbursement and was inilially recogniged al ils fair value using an elfeclive interest
rate of 17.09% per anmum. This loan was advanced for the purpose of housing linance and was repayabbe in monihily
instalimenls hawving & maximurn repayment padod of up o four years. Duning the current year, the lcan has bean Tully
repaid by the ox-Chiel Execuliva Officer upon his resignalion.

2024 2023
The recenciation of loan Lo director b5 as follows: Rupees
Opening balance 10,962 158 12,309 656
Add: disbursements during the year - 12,500,000
Less: recoveries during Lhe year {10,8962,158) {13,847 498)
Closing balance - 10, 562 168

The maximum agogregate amount outstanding at any tme durnng the year calodated by referonce o monih-end balance
was Rs. 10763 millon (2023: Rs. 12313 milllon).

These represant ntaeres] free loans given o amployees and executives. Those loans are provided for booking advarca
(lease down paymenl) atl 20% of the involca price al the bme of purchasing the vehicle as per the policy ol the Company
and are repayable in monthly installments as a deduction from salary having a maximum repayment penod of up o ve
YEAS,

Thes represents commission paid o disinbulors on the issuance of bachal units of different funds under the management
ol lhe Company. The commission amounl is amortised over the pardod ol the contract, unless redeemed earlier, In which
case il i charged off immediatoly. Howeaver, in the case of early mdomplion, an amount is recoverad rom the invosior in
thee form of back-end losd.
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RECEIVABLE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT -
RELATED PARTIES

Considered good - unsecured

Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CiSs)

Pakistan lhcome Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Markel Fund

MCB Pakistan Soversign Fund

Pakistan Capital Markel Fund

Pakistan Cash Managemenl Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund

MCEB Pakistan Assel Allocation Fund

MGCEB DCF Inoome Fund

MCEB Cash Managemenl Oplimizer

Albasrmra Iskamic Monoy Markel Fund

Alharmra lslamic Aszel Allocation Fund

Adamra stamic Slock Fund

Alfarmra |slamic ncome Fund

Alhamra Daily Diwvidoend Fund

Alharmra Islarmic Active Allocation Fund (Alhamra Smart Portfolio)
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alharmra Wada Plan Vi)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VI

Albasinra Wada Fund (Allsrmra Wada Plan 1X)

Alharmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X)

Altamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X1)

Alhamra Wada Fund [Alhamra Wada Plan XI)

MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Boeturm Plan V)
MCB Pakistan Fixod Return Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Plan V1)
MCE Pakiskan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan Vil)
MCEB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan 1X)
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurri Fund (MCB Pakistan Flived Helurm Plan X)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retun Fund (MCB Pakistan Fhed Relurm Plan X1)
MCB Pakistan Fised Helum Fund (MCHB Pakistan Fixed Helurn Plan X1)
MCB Pakistan Fised Helum Fund (MCH Pakistan Fixed Helurn Plan X110}
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retun Fund (MCEB Palistan Fieed Returm Plan XIV)
MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Plan V1)
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Plan X\Vil)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Helum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan VI
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fived Return Plan XIX)
MCB Pakislan Fixed Reluri Fund (MCB Pakistan Floed Helurm Plan XX)
MCB Pakistan Fisod Retum Fund (MCS Pakistan Fhed Retuem Plan X))
MCB Pakistan Opportunily Fund (MCEB Pakistan Dividend Yield Plan)
Pakislan Sarmaya Meatilooz Fured

Alhamra Cash Management Oplimizer

Alharmra Oppotiunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan)

Alhamra Governmen! Securlles Fund (Alhamma Govermment Securities Plan 1)

MUEB DCF Fixed Retun Fund {MCB DCF Fised Returm Plan l)
MCB DCF Foded Return Fund (MCB DCF Fixsed Heturn Plan 1)

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund

Alhamra [stamic Panson Fond

MCB Alharma KPK Governmant Employees” Pension Fund
MCEB KPK Govemmean Employess’ Pansion Fund

MCB Investment Management Limited 20

2024 2023
Rupess
13,033 315 18,882 329
B85 126,622 B5 933 241
52 121 967 34 487 230
8,188,664 7,337 240
49,087 467 49,258 569
33,220 826 24,134 9068
3r 722,828 37,120,208
174 868 286 153,747,001
116,027 876 156,755,809
31,483,578 31,526,773
12,784 462 11,216,497
20,375,087 18,185,252
32,308,074 18,419,359
23167,M3 8,126,716
59,683 18,344
13,863,443 5,658 431
1,552 546 -
548,302 -
3,583,580 -
9,045,051 -
2,604,048 -
325484 8,956,991
225454 4,842 5990
- 984,279
- 6,048 1332
1,430,256 60,836
- 1,265,348
717,625 746,824
17,938 145 537,707
1,425,852 -
18,333,317 -
4,061,468 -
14,867,312 -
2,031 565 -
1,766,387 -
4,603,743 -
1,328,012 184,525
4,267 360 4. 267,360
24 256,704 4.231.186
1,028,649 -
124 609 -
2,235,801 -
1,329,416 -
B24 005 425 693,857,025
11,451,622 8, 773410
6,188,168 4. 788 605
117,423 -
32,3680 -
17, 789573 13,563,015
841,794 595948 T 420,040
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9.4

The above amounts represont recoivable on account of management feo, Sindh Sales Tax on managemont foo, sales
load charged on selected funds, Sindh Sales Tax on sales load, sefling and markeing expenses and allocated expensoas
charged to these funds. This also includes Federal Excise Duty receivable from the funds under its management as more
fully explained in note 16-3 1o these financial statements.

As per rogulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, the Managemeni Company is enfifed {o a remuneration egual to an
amaunt not exceading the maximum rate of managoment foe as disclosed in the offering document subject to the total
exponss ratio imit Keeping in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management Company is charging its
remuneration at the rates as disclosed in note 18.2 to these financial statomonts.

In accordance with Regulaton 60 of the NBFC Regutaions, the Company is enfiiod to charge fees and expenses related
to registrar senvices, accounting, operation:and valuafion services, refated 1o a collective investment scheme (CIS).

Therefore, the Company is charging the allocated expensas variably kooping in view the overall returm of the Fund and
subject 1o the toial oxpense rafio of the funds as - defined under the NBFC Regulations, subject to tolal expenses chamged
being lower than actual oxpenses incurmed.

The SECP had allowed asset management companies to charge seliing and marketing exponses to all categories of
opon-ond mutual funds (except fund of funds) initially for a perod of three yoars (Le. from January 1, 2017 till December
31, 2019) subject o a maximum fimit of 0.4% per anmum of the average annual net assets of the Fund or actual
exponses, whichever is lower.

The SECP through its Gircular 11 dated July 5, 2019 had removed the maximum cap of 0.4% per annum for charging of
sefling and marketing expenses 1o a Fund. Furthermore, the fime Emit of three years had also been removed in the
circular issued by the SECP. The asset management company can charge such expenses to the Fund as per the annual
plan and the same should be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the annual plan for charging of selling and marketing expenses o
thi funds under the management of the Company and has given a discretion for charging of sefling and marketing
expenses directly to the Fund as proposed by the management as per the reguirements of SECP Circutar 11 dated July
5, 2019. The Company ks charging the selling and markofing expenses varably keeping in view the overall retum of the
Fund -and subject to the total oxpense ratio of the funds as defined under the NBFG Regulations, subject to total
expenses charged being lower than aciual expenses incurred.

The maximum aggregate amourd outsianding at any ime during the vear calculated by reference to month-ond balance
are as under

2024 2023
Rupess
Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)
- Pakistan Income Furd 21,532,705 18,692 329
- MCE Palastan Stock Market Fund 91,197,549 105,185,353
MCE Pakiztan Sovereign Fund 63,123,520 34 487 230
- Pakistan Capital Market Fumnd 8,630,633 7,450,731
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 67 402 161 49 Z58 569
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund 46 023,998 24 ZB2.745
MCE Pakistan Assot Allocation Fumd 38478737 37,583,605
MCEB DCF Income Fund 154,035,362 153,747,001
MCE Cash Management Opfimizer 170,273,183 156,755,809
= Alramra lslamic Monoy Market Fund 45 856,136 31,526,773
Ahamra lslamic Assat Allocation Fund 14,266,124 12,780,272
- Alhamra lslamic Stock Fund 22 764 002 20,000,538
- Alhamra lslamic Income Fund 42535719 20,785,556
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund 34 773,050 9,262 941
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2024 2023
Rupeas

Alhamra lslamic Active Allocafion Fund (Mlhamra Smart Portfolio) 17378 228 526
Alhamra Wada Fund (Albamra Wada Plan [) - 819,531
Alhamma Wada Fund (Athamra Wada Plan II) : 3.353.421
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra YWada Plan ) - 1,885,777
Alhamra Wada Fund {Alkamra Wada Plan V) - 1673812
Alhamra Wada Fund [Adhamra Wada Plan V) - 568,001
Athamema Wada Fund (Athamra Wada Plan V1) - 68,000
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VIE) 16,609,369 5,655,440
Alhamma Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VIllj 1,552,546

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra YWada Plan IX) 548 302

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X) 3,583 580

Alhamra Wada Fund [Adhamra Wada Plan X1) 9,045,051

Athamema Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan XII) 2604046 -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1} - 458,424
MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1) : 4 037,106
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Plan 1) = 24187
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund {MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan IV) - 766206
MCB Pakistan Faxed Retum Fund {MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan V) 325494 16,320,323
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund {MCEB Pakistan Fixed Returmn Plan V1) 225 454 0,856 932
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan Vil) 127 963 854,229
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1X) . 8912613
KMCB Pakistan Foed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Refumn Plan X) 1,474,801 60,835
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund {MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan X1) - 3,280.333
MCB Pakistan Fxed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan X11) 7458747 686,674
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCE Pakistan Fixed Retumn Plan X1} 17,838,145 537,707
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XIV) 4,300,851

MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XV) T.034 233

KMCB Pakistan Foeed Refum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan XVT) 19.333.317

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XV} 4081468

MCB Pakistan Faxed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan XVIII) 14 857 312

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XIX) 2,031 565

MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XX) 3,063,137

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan AX1) 46126844 -
KMCB Pakistan Opportunity Fund (MCB Pakistan Dividend Yield Plan) 2,139,950 187.830
Pakistan Sammaya Mehfooz Fund 4 287 360 4 267 360
Alhamra Cash Management Optimizer 35,184,531 3,268,059
Alhamea Opportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan) 1,028,640

Alhamma Govemment Secuntes Fund (Alhamra Govemment Securiies Flan 1) 124,609

MCB DCF Fixed Retum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan () 2.235,841

KMCB DCF Fixed Retum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan ) 1329415

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 11,451 622 8,808,558
Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund 6,188,168 T7.7855845
MCEB Alhamra KPK Government Employees’ Pension Fund 117423

MCB KPFK Government Employees’ Persion Fund 32,360
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9.6

The ageing analyses of roceiable from funds
under managemaoent s as foflows:

Mot past duc

Past due upto 3 months

Past due more-than 3 months and upto & months
Past due more- than 6 months and upto 12 months
Past dup more 1han one yoar

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good - secured
Current portion of loan 1o execyutive

Consldered good - unsacured
Current portion of loans to director, execulives and omployees
Advance lo employees, supplicrs and contraciors

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepaymenis
Current portion of prepaid commizsion agairet bachal wnils
Prepaid insuranco
Propaid maintonanco
Propaid IT service level agreemoents
Propand liconsa feo
Others

Other roceivabies

Considered good - unsecured

Advisory fee on-account of discrotionary and

portiolio management
Due fromm rofaled party
Cue from othars

Consldered doubtful
Duser frowm othors

Receivable from funds against ATM card redemplions
Othors

Provision-against advisory feo

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
368,185,484 306,314,238
65,214,194 1,471,304
7,079,169 -
1,130,705 -
400,185,446 399 634 A58
B41,794 958 707 420,040
8 114,954 101,653
8 3.312 800 4 526,518
6615819 1,071,785
10,043,573 5,680 966
8 58 431 48R 25 458 503
15915397 15,037,245
538,312 580,294
15,877,164 15,656,728
81,727 406,703
3,260,783 213,044
84,104 871 57,434,517
111 7.BED 633 15,437 414
112 16,430,235 & 705,801
24 31 B8R 2514315
12402 117 12402117
33,504 686 32 732 8549
816,237 537 300
70,934 908 7081549
1.3 (12,402, 117) (12402 117)
152,637 662 115,747,851

Thiz includes managamenl feo recovable from Adamjoo Life Assurance Comparny Limidted undor discrobonary portfobio
managament agresment. This also includes Foderal Excise Duty recelvable from Adamjes Life Assurance Comparny
Limited as more fully explaired in note 16.3 to theso fimandal statemonts, The madimum aggregalo amount outstanding
at any time during the year calcutated by referonce to month-end batance was Rs. 15252 million (2023 Rs 15437

il ).
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12.1

12.2

13.2

The ageing analvsis of related parly balance is as follows:

Mot past due
Past due upto 3 months
Past due more than one year

From related parties

2024 2023
RUPODS memwmms s
- 3,538,325
339,000 3,954 456
7,543,633 7,543,633
7,882,633 15,437 414

This represents management foe and perfomance fee receivable from soparatoly managed sccounts under

discrofionary and non-discrefionary porifiolio management agroements.

Prowvision against advisory fea
Balance as at July 1

Provision made during the year
Balance as at June 30

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

Balances with banks inc

Savings accounts
Current accounts

Mot

121
122

2024 023
Rupess

12402117 12402117

12 402 117 12.#(]2,11?‘"
5.088 5,588

18,297 965 40 388,737

15 375,754 16,104 252

33673719 65 472,859

33,678,807 B5. 478,577

Thizs includes balances of Rs. 11.667 million (2023 Rs. 43.726 millicn) maintained with MCB Bank Limited {a related
party) that cames mark-up at the rate of 20.50% (2023: 18.50%) per annum. Further, it al=o includes balances of Rs.
0.391 million {2023: Rs. 0.373 million) maintained with MCB Islamic Bank Limited (a related party) that cames mark-up at
the rate of 7.75% (2023: 7.66%) por annum. Other savings accounts of the Company camy mark-up at the mie of

17.10% (2023: 19.50%) por annum.

This ncludes balance of Rs. 6.322 million {2023 Rs. 6.468 million) maintained with MCE Bank Limit od {a retated pariy).

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital

2024 2023
[(Number of shares)

72000000 72,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Izssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2024 2023
{Humber of shares} Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

5,000,000 5,000,000 Fully paid in cash
31,000,000 31,000,000  Allolted as bonus shares

36,000,000 36,000,000 Issued for consideration other than cash

F2.000,000 72000000

MCB Investment Management Limited o4

2024 2023
Rupoos
720,000 000 720 000,000
2024 2023
Rupess
50,000,000 50, 000,000
310,000,000 310,000,000
360,000,000 360,000,000
720,000,000 T.20 000,000
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The share capital was issued, subscribed and paid-up by the following related parties of the Company:

| 2024 11 2023 [ 2024 [ 1 2023 |
Percentage holding {Mumber of shares)
MCE Bank Limited B1.42% 81.42% 58,620,935 58,620,935
Adamjea Insurance Compary Limited 7500, T.59% 5462 000 5462 000
Duirectors, spouses and ther minor childran © - - 3,200 3.200
Othaers * - - 1,200 1.200

= Mil figures duse to rounding off difference

134

B4 087 335

Investments Limiled in the year 2017 as more fully explained in note 1.1 1o these fnanckl statoments.

14.1

B4 087 335

“Daficit on amalgamation” represents a capital resorve which was crealad upon amalgamaton of the Company mio Anf Habits

Note 2024 2023
14 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET Rupees
Deferred tax assels arizing on deductible temporary differences
- Leass labilly against nghi-of-use assols (2B,650.552) (34, 154 567)
- Provision against advisory lee {4,836,826) (4, 836,826)
- Finance cost on loans 1o axeculive and ax-difeclor (H99,191) {1,034,455)
(34,386, 609) {40,025 848)
Deferred tax liabilities arising on taxable temporary differences
- Proparty and aquipmaent (ircluding righl-ol-use gssols) 18,367 839 26,575,341
- Intangible-assals 106 668 486 105,842 066
- Inveasiment in associales 5,786 2892 4,820 298
~ 130,822,617 137 237,705
96,436,008 97,211,857
Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
Delerred Lax hability as at July 1 a7 211 857 4,117 465
Recognisad in the statement of profil or loss 26 (F75.849) 23,084 3592
Recognized in olher comprehensive income - -
Dalerred tax iabilily as al June 30 06,436,008 97,211 B57

15 LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

I'he Company has entered inlo lease agreoments in respect of its vanous ronted offices. Those were inibally measured at
ther presenl value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incramental borrowing rate thal ranges
from 8.49% por annum o 23.77% por annum. The lsaso lishiilies are subsequenty bemng measured 21 amoriised cosst

using the effectve interest rate mathod.

The amouent of fulure payments for the leases and the perod n which thesa payments will become due are as follows:

MCB Investment Management Limited 95

2024 2023
Rupees
Presont value of minimum laass paymenls 73,463 0586 B7 55,812
Less: currenl portion (42.645.586) (30,947,036
0817470 S5 828 776
2024 2023
Minimum fase :'ﬂn“_“"l “;"’ o | | aginimum inase iml_ : '_::::
payments piyments
paymants payments
Rupess

Mol later than one yesr 52 058 316 42 BAS 508 43,053 258 30,947,036
Later than one year and not fater than five years 33,581,828 40817470 B4.520, 4498 S 628,/ TG
85,640,144 73,463,056 107,573,754 B7. 576812

L ass financa cost allacated 1o fulure pariods {12 177.088) 3 (19,907 942) Z
Prasenl value of minimum lease payiments 13,463 056 73,463,056 BF 575812 Br.575.812
Less: current portian (42 545, 506) (42 545 588)  (30,947.038) (30,847 038)
30817470 Buiﬂ'l TAT0 SEIEEEETTE 56 HEBI‘I?E
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Mote 2024 2023
Movement of lease liability against right-of-use assels Rupoos
Loase lahbility against nght-of-usc-assets as at the beginning of tho year BT.575.812 44 B35 57R
Additions during the year 24,3594 975 B3,531,136
Interest oxponso on lease liability against night-of-use-assots 14,720,406 10,8954 777
Effect of termination of lease (4,183 485) (6,268 231)
Loase rentals paid against nght-of-use assets (49,044 652) (45,447 448)
Loase liahility against nght-of-usc-assets as at the ond of the year 73,463,056 B7.575812
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Accrued exponses and other liabilities 161 28T 152,161 70,081,582
Bonus payable 182,360,779 117 682 516
Sindh Workers' Wedfare Fund payabie 16.2 93.971 867 68,022,845
Sales tax payable 14577062 10,500,617
Federal Excise Duty payable 16.3 412,892 880 412,892 580
Withholding tax payable 35,022 951 14,046,540
Payahle to facilitators [ distributors 106,969,539 44,704,721

1,132 947,269 378417

This includes an amount of Rs. 158.5 million recognised as provision as more fully explained in nole 24.2 1o theso
financial statements.

As a consequonce of the 18th amendment o the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers” Waelfare Fund
Act 2014 (SWWF Act) had been passed by the Governmenl of Sindh a5 a resull of which every indusinial establishment,
including financial instilutions, located in the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year i nol
less than Rs 0.50 million, is egured to pay Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of that vear a sum equal to
two percent of such income. The matior was taken up by MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively on
betall of various asset managoment companies and their ClSs whereby it was contested that AMCs and mutual funds
should be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these were not industnial establishments The MUFAP has also
taken up the matior with the Sindh Finance Ministry 1o have AMC's exduded from the applicability of SWWTE In view of
the above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on AMC's, the management as a matter of abundant
caution, has made provision in respect of SWWF on.a prudent basis with effect from the date of enactment of the
SWWF Act (iLe. starting from July 1, 2014}

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duly (FED) on financial services to include Asssl
Managemenl Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate:of 16 percent on the remuneration of the Company
and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013, The Company was of the view that since the remuneration
was already subject o provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would result in double taxation which did not appear to be
the spint of the law. Hencs, on Soptembor 4, 2013 a constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court {SHC) by
the Comgany together with various olther assel management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With efiect from July 1. 2016, FED on services provided or rendored by non-banking financial institutions dealing in
sonvices which are subjoct 1o provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Financo Act, 2016,

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby ail nofices, procoedings takon or pending,
orders made, duly recoverad or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the renderning or providing
of senvices (lo the extoni as challenged In any relevant petition) were sel aside. In response io this, the Deputy
Commisslonar Inband Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which s
pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Company has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED with effect from July 1,
2016. Howover, as a matier of abundant caution, the provision for FED already made amounting to Rs. 412 853 million =
being retained in the Anancial statemenis of the Company as the matier iz pending before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan. A comesponding receivable of the same amounl has been recorded as recetvable from the funds under the
management of the Company as disclosed in nole 9.1 to these finandal statoments.
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17.1.3
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1715

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

On Juna 20, 2014, the Punjab Revenue Authority issued 8 show cause notice no. PRAIAMTIN14/18 to the Company lo
pay Sales Tax on managament fee samed in the province of Punjab under the Punjab Sates Tax on Sarvices Act, 2012
with effect from May 22, 2013. The Managemanl Company jontly with other Assel Managemeantl Companies through the
trustees of their Collective Investment Schemes challenged the above notice wvide a pstition fled on July B, 2014 in the
Honourable Sindh High Courd (SHC}). The SHC had aordered suspension of the show cause mofice in its order dated July
10, 2014 i} the date of the next hearing of appeais. The management s expecting no oultflow of economic resources in
this respect as the paymenits relating o sales tax have already been made to the Sindh Revenue Board [SRB) and in
case decision is made against the Company, the same s required o be setilod betwean the two authoriiies. During tha
current year, the SHC vide an order dated September 11, 2023 has dismissed the case on the grounds that the enbire
liabilily had been paid lo the SRB and the same is admitled by the SHB's counsel. The SHC in ks order has direcled the
Company to pursus the SCN with the PRA and has directed SHEB not to take any coercive action against the Company
pending adjudication of the SCM.

On January 30, 2017, the Additional Commissionar Inland Revenue [ACIR] passed an order under sectiaon 122({5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amending the assessmont for fax year 2011 afler making certain additions | disallowances
m the statement of profit or loss and created a demand of Rs. 25.567 million. The disallowances mainly pertained fo
apportionmant of expanses, managemenl / processing fee and related income shanng. amorlisalion of managemeant
nghis | goodwill created on merger of the MCB Asset Management Company (MCB AMC) into the Company eic. The
Company then fled an appeal before the Commizsioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR{A]] against the impugned order
and a notice of demand issuad thereagainst The CIR{A} annulled the ordar of the ACIR by deleting demand on all the
issues raised thersin. Being aggrieved by the decsion of CIR(A), an appeal againsl the order of CIR{A) had been filed
before the Appollaie Tribunal Inland Revenue JATIR] by the Commissionar Inland Revaenue. Based on the advice of ifs
lax consultanl, the managemenl anficipates a favourable outcome of such appeal, and accordingly, no provision has
bean recorded in these inancial statements lor the above matier

The Company was selected lor audit by the Commissioner Inland Revenue, Zone |, Lamge Taxpayars Umit, Karachi for
lax year 2014 vide lotter dated November 8, 2016. The audil proceedings woere conducted by the Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenue [DCIR] and a Show Cause Molice [SCN] dated February 10, 2017 was ssued therealter. Based on 2
then recenl judgment of a supenor courl, the SCN was challenged by the Company on legal grounds. However, the DCIR
did not agree with the legal objections raised and passed an order dated March 24, 2017 under seclion 122{1) of the
Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 after making certain additions |/ disallowances in the statement of profit or loss and created
a demand of Rs. 53388 million. The disallowances mainly pertamed o apporfionmenl of expenses, managemen|
processing fee and related income sharing. amortisation of management righis / goodwill created on mergar of the MCB
AMC into the Company etc. An appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] was filed by the
Company which had been adjudgoed in favor of the Company in respecl of major disallowances made in the order passed
by the DCIR. In respect of the matters confirmed by the CIR{A), the Company had filed an appeal befora the ATIR. Being
apgneved by the decision of CIR{A), an appeal has also been fled by the Commissioner Inland Revenue belore the
ATIR. Based on the advice of is tax consultant. the managemeant anticipates a lavourable outcome of such appeals. and
accordingly, no provision has bean recorded in these financial stalements for the above matter.

On March 28, 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122{5A] of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amending the assessmont for fax year 2012 afler making certain additions | disallowances
in the stalement of profil or loss and created a demand of Rs. 82.841 million. The disallowances mainly peraned o
apportionmant of expenses, managemanl / processing fee and related income sharnng, amorlisalion of management
nghis | goodwill created on merger of the MCB AMC nto the Company, disallowance of brought forward losses / refunds
of prior periods eic. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenua (Appeals) [CIR{A]] against
the impugned order and nobce of demand ssusd lhere againsk The CIR{AJannulled the order of the ACIR by deleting
demand on all the isspes mised therein. Being aggreved by the decision of CIR{A), an appeal againsl the order of
CIR{A) had been filed before the Appelate Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] by the Commissicner Indand Revenue Based
on the advice ol is tax consuftant, the managemeant anticipates a favowable oufcome of such appeals, and accordingly,
no provision has bean reoorded in these financial statements for the above matter.

On April 29, 2017, a nolice under section 122(9) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by the Additional
Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIR) o conduct the amendment of assessment proceedings for lax yoar 2011 of the
pre-mergar enfity MCB AMC. On July 3, 2017, an order under section 122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, was
passed o conclude the =aid proceedings. A demand of Rs. 4.85 million had been raised by the ACIR by making
disaflowances mainly pertaining fo apporiionmant of expenses, managemeant [ processing fee and related income sharing
and disallowance of brought forward losses. The Company then fled an appeal before the CIR{A) against the impugned
order and police of demand issued thereagainst. During the year ended June 30, 2018, order of the CIR{A) was
received by the Company whereby the demand on major issues was deleted. In respect of the matiers upheld by CIR{A)
against the appaal filed by the Company, the Company then filed an appeal before the ATIR for the said ssues. Being
apggricved by the decision of CIR(A), an appeal against the order of CIR{A) had been fed bafore the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue [ATIR] by the Commissioner Inland Revenue. Based on the advice of its lax consultant, the management
anbicipates a favourable outcome of such appeals, and accordingly. no provision has been recorded in these financial
statements for the above matter.
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17.1.6

1T

17.1.8

17.1.9

On February 29, 2016, the Doputy Commissionor Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 122 (1) of the
Income Tax Ondinance, 2001 redating to tax year 2010 of MCB AMC making certain additions / disallowances in the
return filed by the Company. The assessing officer adjusted the impact of disallowances and reduced the amount
refurdable in respect of that tax year to Rs 1.947 millicn. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Infand
Fovenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] against the said order. CIR(A) vide its ordor datod December 11, 2017 deleted the
disallowances mada by DCIR.

Subsaquently, the Company again received a notice of demand amounting to Rs 0.980 million on May 4, 2016 from the
Additional Commissionor Infand Rovenue (ACHR) against which it fled an appeal bofore the CIR(A). CIR{A) vide its ordor
dated January 22, 2018 uphetd the demand raised by the ACIR. Being aggrieved by the decision of CIR{A}, the Company
filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Intand Revenoe (ATIR) against the order passed by CIR{A) which is pending
theroin. Basad on the advice of its fax consultant, the managemeant anticipates a favourable cutcome of such appeals,
and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matter.

On November 24, 2017, the Company received two orders perizining to lax years 2015 and 2016 passed by the
Addiional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) and Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue (DCIR) raising demands of
R=_ 119.350 million and Rs. 142 008 million respectively duo 1o cortain dizaliowances in the retum filed by the Company
for the respective tax years. The disallowances mainly periained to apporionment of exponses, management /
processing foe and related income sharing, amortisation of mansgement rights ! goodwill created on merger of the MCB
AMC infc the Company, treatment of provision for FED as income of the Company oic. The Company filed separate
appeals-before the CIR{A) against the impugned orders and notices of demand issuod thereagainst. During the year
ended June 30, 2018, CIR(A) vpheld the demands raised by both ACIR and DCIR in both the appeals. Being aggricved
by the decision of CIR{A), the Company had fied appeals with Appellaie Tribunal Intand Revenue (ATIR) which is
pending therein. Based on the advice of its tax consuitant, the managemant anticipates a favourable outcome of such
appeals, and accordingly, no provision has been recordad in these financial statements for the above matiers.

On June 5, 2017, the Company received an Order dated May 26, 2017 passed by the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh
Revonue Board [AC SRB] whorein a demand of Sindh sales tax of Rs 10621 million along with penalty of Rs. 6.320
million and default surcharge (o be calculated at the fime of payment) was established for short levy and payment of
Sindh Sales Tax on its services and for claiming inadmissible input tax during tax periods from July 2011 o June 2015,
An appeal against the aforesaid order was filed before the Commissioner Appeals-SREB who upheld the order of iho
Assistant Commissioner, SRB in its Appollate Order. The Company then filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal,
SRE against aforesaid onder of the Commissoner Appeals, SRB. The Appallate Tribunal, SRE remanded back the case
o the Commissicner Appeals - SRE to pass fresh speaking order after verifying the records on meerit.

Dwring the yoar ended June 30, 2021, Commissionar Appeals - SRB issued an order whoreby the domand raised by AC
SREB amounting to Rs. 10.621 million was upheld. The Company, boing aggrioved with the said order, filed an appeal
before the Appeliate Tribunal, SRE. The stay was granted by Appeliate Tribunal, SRE on July 6, 2021. Upon axpiry of
siay granied by Tribunal, the Company then filed for 2 stay application with Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) which
was duly granted by SHC.

During the current year, Appellate Tribunal, SRE issued an order dated March 26, 2024 whereby the Appeliate Tribunal,
SRB delated tho demand of Rs. 7.568 million on account of input tax adjustment disallowed to the Company and tho
remaining demand amounting to Rs. 3.053 million on account of short payment of Sindh Sales Tax was remanded back
to AC SIRB with specific directions to pass fresh assessment ordor after providing proper opporiunity of being heard to
the Company. In this regard, subsequent to the year end, AC-5RB Bsued a Show Cause Notice (SCN) to the Company
dated August 6, 2024 Tho proceoedings are currently underway at SRB.

Bascd on the advico of s fax consultant, the management anticipates a favourablo ouicome of such appeal pending
before SRE Trbunal Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matier.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Sindh Rovenue Board (SRB) had issued two orders dated Cclober 2, 2018
and October 10, 2018 whereby it raised a demand of Sindh sales tax amounting to Rs. 3.854 million and 1.275 millicn
along with penalty of Rs. 4 047 million and Rs. 1,402 million respoctively wherzin input tax daimed by the Company
against various transactions has been dissilowed by the assessing officer on the ground that the output tax against the
same has not bean offored by the respective vendors. The Company then filed separate appeals against the aforesaid
orders before the Commissioner Appeals, SRB_On Aprl 27, 2022, an Ordor-in-Appeal was issucd by Assisiant
Commissionar, SRE wherchy orginal demand of Rs. 2695 million, including penalty impased thersin, was reduced to
Rs_ 67,186 which was duly discharged by the Company. However, the appeal filed against the order dated October 2,
2018 is still pending theroin. Based on the advice of its tax conzultant, the management anticipatos a favourable outcome
of such appeals, and accordingfy, no provision has boan recorded in these financial statemenis for the above matier

MCB Investment Management Limited 98 Annual Report 2024




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

417.1.10 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued a notice dated September 13, 2018 under section 2140 of tha

171N

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whareby it requested for audit and fumishing of dei=ail, evidencas and infonmation. The
Company has submiiled s reply in consultafion with its tax consultant for dismissing the proceedings inifiated undeor
secfion 2140 as the selecton of audit was made afier the provision of sechion 2140 was omitted via Finance Act, 2018,

Durning the year ended June 30, 2021, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued a show cause nofice on account of short
paymont of Sindh Sales Tax amounfing to Rs. 9.975 million pertaining o tax periods from July 2015 Gl June 2016, The
Assistant Commissioner, SRB vide Order-in-Original No. 966/2021 dated December 13, 2021 raised a demand of Rs.
9.975 million slong with a penaity of Rs. 0.499 milion. The Company, being aggrieved with the said doecision, filed an
appeal with Commissioner (Appeals), SREB. The Company also filed for a stay application with the Honourable Sindh
High Court {SHC) which was duly granfed by SHC on January 17, 2022, The Commissionor (Appeals), SRB vide its
order daled February 2, 2022 upheld the demand raised by Assistanl Commissionesr, SRB. The Company, being
aggrieved by the order passed by Commissioner (Appeals), SRB filed an appeal before the Appeilate Tnbunal, SRB.
Subsogquent to the year ended June 30, 2022, the Appeilate Trnbunal, SRB vide an order dated August 10, 2022 uphetd
the decision of Commissionor (Appeals), SREB. In responsa o the order of Appeollate Trbunal, SREB, the Company had
filed an appeal with the SHC. Further, the Company also fled for a stay application with the SHC which has besn duly
granted by SHC. Based on the advice of s tax consultant, the management anticipates a favourable outcome of such
appeal, and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matier

17.14.12 On June 20, 2022, a Show Cause Notice (SCN) under section 161{1A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by

Deputy Commissioner intand Rovenue (DCIR) for tax year 2016, On June 27, 2022, DCIR issued an Onder under section
161{1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby it created a demand amounting to Rs. 29.078 milion on account of short
deduction of withholding taxes. Baing aggneved with the said order, the Company filed an appeal with Commissionar
Appeals Intand Revenue [CIR{A)]. Duning the cumrent year, CIR(A) vide an ordor dated Awgust 31, 2023 remanded back
the case to the DCIR for re-adjudication. Based on the advice of its fax' conzuitant, the manmagement anficipates a
favourable outcome of such appeals, and acoordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements. for
the above matior.

17.1.13 During the year June 30, 2023, the Doputy Commissionsr Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued Show Cause Motice (SCN)

dated January 20, 2023 to recover super tax on high eaming persons under section 4C read with secton 9 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 claiming thai the income of the Company as defined in sub-section (2) of soction 4C of the
Ordinance s subject to super tax at the rate of 4% and hence, computed the amount of super tax to Rs. 13.142 mallicn
against the axable income of Rs. 328.556 milion. In response to the aforesaid SCN, the Company wide its {ax advisor,
submiited a response o the DCIR whereby the Company was of the view that the super tax under section 4C of the
Ordinance is applicable prospeciively from tax year 2023 and orwards in fight of the judgment of the Honourable Sindh
High Court (SHC).

During the curment year, the DCIR vide an ordor dated August 8, 2023 under sacbon 4C passod an ordor to recover super tax not paid
with return. Being aggrieved with the aforesaid order, the Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner Appoals
Inland Revenue [{CIR(A)]. CIR{A) upheld the order of DCIR vide an appellaie order passed under section 129(1) of the
Ordinance datod Sepltember 15, 2023 The Company in response to the order passed by CIR{A) paid an amount of Rs.
13.566 million under protest but also filed an appeal with the Appeliate Trbunal Infand Revonue (ATIR) against the order
passed by CIR{A) which is pending thengin.

47.1.14 Duning the year ended June 30, 2023, the Depuly Commissioner Intland Revenue (DCIR) ssued Show Cause Motice

(SCN) dated Oclober 31, 2022 under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the DCIR initiated
procecdings regarding monitoring of withhotding for tax year 2017. In this regard, the Company through iis iax advisor
submitied required necessary documents against the said nofice. The DCIR then issund an Order under socton 181(1)
of the Ordinance whereby it created a demand of Rs. 15121 million along with penally and default surcharge against
short paymant of withholding income tax. Being aggrieved by the order of DCIR, the Company filed an appeal with
Commiissioner Appeals Infand Rovenue [CIR{A}. During the curmmant year, CIRIA) vide an order dated Auwgust 18, 2023
remanded back ceoriain matiors to the DCIR for re-adjudication -and docided corzin matters in the favour of the
Company. No appoal effect order has been inifiated in this respect fill date. Based on the advice of its tax consultant, the
management anficdpates a favourable outcome of such appeal, and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in thesa
financial statements.

2024 2023
Commitmants Rupees

Commitment against renovation of Islamabad branch - 1.082 318
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MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT ADVISORY FEE

Management fee from collective investment schemes - related parties
MCE Cash Managemenl Oplimiser

MCB Pakislan Assel Allocation Fund

MCE DCF Income Fund

Albesrrra lsbamic Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund

Pakislan Capilal Markel Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Incoime Enbancament Fund

Pakistan Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Assel Allocabon Fund

MCEB Pakislan Stock Markel Fund

Alhamea islamic Stock Fund

Allamra Islamic Monay Marke! Fund

Alharmra Daily Dividend Fund

Alharmra Istamic Active Allocation Fund (Alhamra Smart Portioho)
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan 1)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan 1)

Albamia Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan 111}

Albssrmera Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan IV)

Alhermera Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan V)

Allamra Wada Fund {Alhamea Wada Plan Vi)

Alharmra Wada Fund (Alharmra Wada Plan VIl

Alharmra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan VIl

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamima Wada Plan 1X)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X)

Albamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X1j

Albsarmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Pl X))

MCH Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Pian 1)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakestan Foed Returm Plan i)
MCEB Pakistan Fked Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Feed Retum Plan [T
MCB Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan V)
MCEB Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Plan V)
MCE Pakislan Fiked Hatum Fund [MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurn Plan V1)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retim Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Plan VI
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Ptan 1X)
MCH Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Pian X)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retun Fund (MCB Pakestan Foed Returm Plan XI1)
MCEB Pakistan Fxed Returm Fund (MCB Pakistan Foed Retum Plan X11)
MCB Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan X1
MCEB Pakislan Fixed Retumn Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Plan X1V
MCE Pakislan Fiked Hetum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Plan X\V)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retim Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Plan X\VI1)
MCB Pakistan Fiked Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Pkan XVII)
MCB Pakislan Fixaed Hetum Fund (MOCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Pian XV}
MCEB Pakstan Fxed Returm Fund (MCB Pakistan Foed Retum Plan X1X)
MCB Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XX)
MCEB Pakislan Fixed Retumn Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurmn Plan XXI)
Alhamia Cash Managemenl Oplimizer

MCB Pakistan Opportunily Fund (MCB Pakstan Dividend Yield Plan)
Alhaimera Opportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan)

MCEB DCF Fied Retwm Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1)

MCB DCF Fixed Retum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Returm Plan 1)

Alharmra Government Secunbes Fund (Alhamra Governmenl Secunbes Plan 1)
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2024 2023
~-——— Rupees --————
S06,. 391, 987 256,635,203

22 5RO, 207 26798, 756

202 534 037 00 445 251

69,543,023 35,991,629

92 502,025 4,199,426

15,396,016 13,362 458

170,623,548 97,348,173

&7.618,714 &, 805,531

27,076,999 17,333,550

50,259,168 56 381 460

1H2 280,360 157.766,268

102,017,036 58 464,308

121,664, 182 128 810,684

49 411.479 21,392 421

76,087 80,774

- orG, 636

- 1.8987 .61

- 18,796

- 2 370,673

. 170,404

- 61,189

4,781,093 3,862 205
2. 852 627 -
232 667 -
4 629 #3419 -
11.854 824 =
1,568,830 i

- 4508 424

- 2,990 835

- 241,818

- 1,548,981

- 14, 064,601

- 8,586,507

221,158 451,498

. 8,732,391

3,666, 107 36,6560

s 3,330,370

14,082 837 522 B50

39 914 301 3re, 38T
5,906, 344 -
14,768,412 -
20,763,518 i
5.037.416 =
15,206,773 -

1.5960. 857 -

3.107.819 -

2 873 404 -

50,508, 263 1.768,295

8505, 161 1,701,130

1.785 208 -

1,431,970 E

808,114 -

21,303 -
1,606,603,203  1,136,895.243
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Management fee from pension schemes - related parties

Alhamra Istamic Pensson Fund
Pakistan Pension Fund

MCEB Alhamra KPK Governmant Employees’ Pension Fund

MCB KPK Govarmineail Employees' Pension Fund

Investment advisory fes from separately managed acoounls

Less: Sindhy Sales Tax

Mote

182
183

2024 2023
Rupaas
26,253,716 18,620,426
45 979,743 28 (536,127
441,823 -
186,699 -
72 851,981 46,656,553
48 051,480 B0, 529 Ba9
1.817. 616,664 1.244 081,685
(208, 106,342) (143,124 443)
1,608,510,322 1.100.857 2652

This pertains 1o Sindh Sales Tax levied by he Provincial Governmoent of Sindh at the rate of 13% (2023 13%) through

the Sindh Sales Tax on Sorvices Acl, 2011,

Remuneration for the sedvices renderad by the Managemanl Company has been caiculatsd by applying the following
rales on the average annuoal nel assels of the funds delermingd on a dally basis (unless olherwise sltaled) n
accordance with he provisions of thae Non-Banking Finsance Companias (Establshment and Regulaton) Rules, 20003
(lhe NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companes and Notified Enlibes Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Ragulations) and the Vaoluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (lhe VPS Rules).

Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

MCE Cash Managemean Oplimizer

MCE Pakislan Assel Allocatkon Fund

MCH DCF Income Fund

Alhamea islamic Income Fund

MCH Pakistan Soveraign Fund

Pakistan Capeial Markel Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund

FPakistan Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Assel Allocation Fund

MCH Pakistan Stock Markel Fund

Alhamea islamic Stock Fund

Alharmra Islamic Money Markel Fund

Altamra Islamic Actve Allecation Fund (Alhamra
Sroarl Portioho)

Alnamra Daidy Dividend Fund

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan 1)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan (1)

Alhamra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan 111}

Albsarmera Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan V)

Albarmra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan V)

Alharmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan Vi)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VIl *

Alharmra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan VIl *

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamima Wada Plan 1X) ™

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhcmra Wada Plan X) *

Alhamra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan X1j **

Albarmera Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan XI0) =™

MCH Pakistan Fizsed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan
Fixed Hatum Plan 1)

MCH Pakstan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan
Fixed Returm Plan i)

MCB Pakistan Fiked Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan
Fixad Relum Ptan i)

MCB Investment Management Limited

Mote

18.21

1822
1822

1822
18.2.3
18.22

1823

1823
18.2.4
18.23
18.23
1823
1823
1823
1823
1823
1823
1823

1823

1823

18.23

2024 2023
A%, 3.30%

1.50% 1.50%

3.35% 3.35%

3.30%, 3.30%
2% 2%
2% 2%

1.75%:

1.75% -

1.75% -

Annual Raport 2024




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Mote 2024 2023

MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Return Plan V) 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Roturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan V) 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan V1) 1823 - -
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Return Plan VII) * 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan LX) 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Return Plan X) * 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Roturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixad Relurn Plan X1} 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan Xil}) * 1823 - -
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Return Plan X} * 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Flan X)) = 1.75% -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Raturn Plan XV) "™ 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Raturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixed Relurn Plan XV1) = 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan X\VII) ** 1.75% -
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Returm Plan XMV ** 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Plan XIX) = 1.75% -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Raturn Plan XX) "™ 1.75% -
MCB Pakistan Fized Relurn Furnd (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relurn Plan XX} =™ 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Opportunily Fund (MCB Pakistan

Dividend Yiald Plan) 1% 1%
Alhamra Cash Managemenl Oplimizer 182 1 = =
Alhermra Opporunity Fund {(Dividend Stralegy Plan) " 4%, =
MCB DCF Fixed Raturn Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1) ** 1.75% =
MCB DCF Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Return Plan i) = 1.75% -
Alhamra Govemment Securiies Fund

{Ahamra Governmenl Sacuntes Plan 1) * 200 =

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 0.5% 1o 1.5% 0.5% o 1.5%
Alhamra Islamic Pansion Fund 0.5% o 1.5% 0.5% to 1.5%
MCB Alhamra KPK Governmenl Emplovess’ Pansian Fund " 0.15% to 0.8% -

MCB KPK Governmenl Emplovess’ Panson Fund ** 0.15% to 0.B% -

Discrotionary portfolio
Separalely managed accounts 18.3 0.4% o 1.5% 0.07% to 2%

* Thosa funds have matured dunng the current year.

™ Thesse lunds have been Bunched during the curmenl yvear,
= Thasa lunds have been launched and malured during the currenl year.
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18.21

18.2.3

18.2.4

18.2.5

Upto 7.5% of all gross camings of the Schema.
Uipts 10% of all gross earnings of the Scheme:
Upto 15% of all gross earmings of the Schemea.
Upto 20% of all gross earnings of the Scheme:

10% of accrued bank profit to be calculated on a daily basis.

The Company is also managing poriiolio of investors under discretionary and non-discretionary portfolio management
agrecments. Investment advisory fee from the discretionary porifolio is calculated on daily / monthly basis by charging
specified rates to the net asset value of the portfolio as stated in the respective agreements with the clents. In
addifion, perfformance foe is charged to some investors based on the contractual rmates at the end of the respectva

mandates. The details of this portfolio are given below:

Discretionary portfolio

Mumber of porifolics

Total portiolio at cost {in Rupeas)

Total portfolio at market value (in Rupeos)

SALES LOAD AND OTHER RELATED INCOME

Sales load from collective investment schemes - related partios
MCB DCF Income Fund

MCE Pakistan Assect Allocation Fund

Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund

MCB Pakistan Soversign Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund

Pakistan Cash Managoment Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund

Pakistan Incoma Fund

Adhamra islamic Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund

Alhamra islamic Active Allocation Fund (Alhamra Smart Porifolio)
Alhamra Cash Management Optimizer

MCB Pakistan Opportunity Fund {MCB Pakistan Dividend Yield Plan)
Alhamra Opportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Flan)

Sales load from voluntary pension schemes - related parties
Pakistan Pension Fund

Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund

Less: Sindh Sales Tax

Other related incomo

Commission income
Debit card incomea

GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS - NET

Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (P1Bs)
Gain on sale of Market Treasury Bills (MTBs)
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Note

18.1

2024 2023
£% | 33
85,823,182, 247 73,259.480,820
94 171,813,832 72,073,197.523
2024 2023
Rupeos
125,110,006 48 657,147
4,471 382,263
752 855 2,663,739
6,605,509 132173
3,141,389 220,119
42 325 ‘860,493
11,043 044 6,612 588
2 054,505 8,577 285
51,305,767 15,828,151
1,303,682 29,231
399,933 5,879,804
4 422 006 9901 475
- 213,125
3,623,647 772885
677,130 -
392,034 =
210,889.213 99,960,518
2722 318 1,822 175
2 846,330 888,127
5,068,628 2,710,302
216,457 861 102,670,820
(24,502 333) (11.811,687)
191,555,628 90,859,133
83,652 849,734
2 098,536 1972771
2,183,188 2,922 505
193,738 817 03,781,638
242848 -
1.923.777
3,966,725 -
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benafiis
Legal and professional charges

Shariah advisory fee

Traveliing and conveyance
Uiilities, communication, couner, iaxes, efc.
Repairs and mainienance

Ofice supplies

Directors” meeling fee

Insurance
Depreciation
Amortization

Stamp duty and taxes

Registrar fee

Printing and stationary
Entertainment expenses
Fees and subscription

Telephone expenses

Reimbursemant of expenses from
Collective Investment Schemes (ClSs)

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benafils

Commission expense

Marketing and advertising expenses

Dieprecration

Branch expanses

Printing and stafionery

Reimbursemant of expenses from
Collective Investment Schemes (ClSs)

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest expense on leass fiability against nght-of-use-assels

Bank charges

OTHER EXPENSES

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Audifors’ remuneration
Reversal against reimbursement of selling and marketing

EXDENSES

Auditors® remuneration

Annuat audit fee

Fee for half yearly review of condensed interim financial statemenis

Fee for other certifications

Fee for other sarvices

Ot of pocket expenses and Sindh Sales Tax
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Note

411

411

16.2
241

2024 2023
earemnrmannnss TS s e e
620,732,558 404 241 566

28,571,461 13,424,063
1,060,000 720,000
5,262 660 2,530,594

37,650,194 29,902,166

80,387,001 62,478,144
4873472 3,863,124
8,125,000 13,425,000
4,468,451 2,464 058

44 825 118 41,552, 363

13,286,470 15,557 524
1,304,496 1,068,776
1.246 548 1,245 700
9,176,043 4 908 282

10,026,343 6,186,012

45.091,128 32,231,514
4 550,521 5,071,081

520,687,465 730,870,367
(142,330,888) {67,294 834)
778,356,577 B63,575,533
738,226,183 204,058,945
470,062,378 214 569,887

54 625,006 61,619,646

14,968,023 16,037.534

22 314,469 17,221,918
1,028,365 817.930

801,224 514 514,325,860
(683,821,848)  (477,911,192)
117,402,665 36,414,668

14,720,406 10,954,777
3,334 910 295 386

18,115,316 11.250 663

25,940,022 12,529,019
6,076,800 5,074,655

158,502,581 o
190,528 403 17 603 674
3,000,000 2,600,000
500,000 400,000
250,000 250,000
1,500,000 1,000,000
826,800 £24 B55
B.076,800 5.074 655
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24.2

Fayrd

MCB Investment Management Limited 105

Reversal against reimbursement of selling and markeling expenses

Dunng tho year, SECP camoed oul an inspection of the Company and highlighted, among other matters, the mochanism
of chargeability of selling and marketing cxpenses to the funds under iis management and advised ceriain changes
including the allocalion of the aforementioned expenses betwoen the funds for the period covered by the SECP.
Subsequent 1o the year ond, the Company agreed to crodit the amount of Bs. 158503 million to identificd unit holdors
of the respective Funds and has recognised a provision of Rs_ 158503 millicn in the books of the Company during he cumenl

yoar.
Note 2024 2023
OTHER INCOME Rupess
Interest income on loans to exocutive and diroctor 1422845 1,827,711
Gain on disposal of propery and equipment 31,917 65750
Ohors 1,164,832 867 262
2.619,554 2 864, T23
TAXATION
Current
- for thio year 392 609 337 214,548 982
- for prior year 18,358 482 (1.5939.614)
410,967,819 212,609 368
Diferred 14.1 {775, 849) 23,084 352
410.191.970 235,703, 760
Relationship betwoen income tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxatkon 1,271,484 346 613,921,046
Tax rale 29% 29%:
Tax on accounting profit at apphcablo rato 368,733 360 178,037,364
Tax offcct of prior years 18,358 482 (1,9359.614)
Tax effect of nadmissible expensos 40, 491 313 11,277 667
Tax aeffect of permancnt diferonces {93 246 936) (12.256,150)
lax effed of incomse taxed al lower rale (77 577, 165) (8,067, 243)
Tax affect of income subject to final tax {3.510.944) {1,360 253)
Tax offect of change in tax rato - 15,457 661
Fax offect of super lax 107,936,798 54,550 901
Ohors 49,007 062 (5,463)
410,191,870 235,703,760

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Earnings per share has beéen computed by dividing profit aftor taxation for the vear by the weightod average numbor of
sharms outstanding as at yoar end as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees

BE1,302.378 378,218,186

(Mumber of shares)

Profi for the year aftor axation

Weighted average number of ordinary sharos as at June 30 72,000,000 T2 000,000

Rupecs
11.96 5.25

Earnings per share

Diuted samings per shar has not beon prosoniod as the Company does nof have any convortiblo instruments in
izsue as al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 which would have any effect on the camings per share i the oplion o

comver IS oXorcisod.

Annual Raport 2024




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The relaied pariies of the Company comprise of MCB Bank Limiled (Parent Company), associalted companies, siaff
retirement funds, collective investment and pension schemes managed by the Company, directors and kKey
management personnel and their close family members. Transactions with related paries are entered into at negoiated
prices at commercial terms. The aggregate value of fransactions during the year ended June 30, 2024 and cutstanding
balances a= at June 30, 2024 with reialed parlies other than those which have been disdosed elsewhere are as follows:

Year ended
Relafionship and percentage June 50, June 38,
MName of tha related party of charshold Mature of ransaction 2008 203
(Rupees)
MCH Barik Limilad Pt comparny wilh Cioammiession ard othor expenses paid 258 834 597 83,372,126
B1.42% sharchalding Commession paaid ageins issuance of bachal wils 334 138 47 B7.225
{2003 81 AZ% sharsholding)  Profil on savings sccount 15041 512 5,113 354
Branch sharing expatses 1384 B58 2,765,820
Henl s per rentsl agresmand 9915600 a4tz a7
Dinviedsatad praicd 527 SHB. A5 36956, 768
Bark dheges 188 226 215 486
MCE kslamic Bank Lmslod Butesdiary ol Prafit on s=wings scooun 419 Zi8ar
Paranl Compamy Cowmemeszsion and ollwer sxpemsas 1,055,918 -
Adamijes Lde Assiirnos Group Cofrgeany Irveislimend Sdvisorny loe 19,532 BRS 3T 5T 2
Company Limiled of Panenl Compary Amoun frsd agains] nswEnc 8520211 64 188
Hyurefai Mishiz! Mobor Group Company Purchass of fixed sssols 6473, D00 -
{Privato) Lmiled of Panml Comgany
Addampn Inswanoe Comypsmy Group Company Amoun pid agans] nsuEroe 24188 324 18,156 611
Lbsriad of Panmil Comparny Dinadend paid 48,158,000 5462 000
Renl 25 por nenlal agrosmend 300354 B4 26,870,166
Amouml pasd agains] ulilities 16,278 545 14,534,540
Mutuzl Funds Assoaastion Assooated Company by Amound pesd against memborship loo 702,576 5,055,165
ol Pabistan vty of corficon direclorship
of Mr. Khawsgz Khall Shah
MCE Cash Marsgoment Funids undar Managormni ks 271,143,351 315,606,374
Oplarmtzer rEnagen tvesiment in whits ol hends usder mansgeman # 1 ATERET 6347 Bal 684
Redomption of unis of lunds under masagomend 4149477258  6.008 305320
Dvedend mooma 1.188.120 1,569,388
Risnbiussermenl of dibcaled axganses 30,006,224 10,232 £31
Resmbursemant of seding and markobng exponzes 165,155,425 176673174
MCB DCF Incoeni Fund Funds utedar Managernenl ko 179,233 681 BE.O04 84T
managemiend Saks foad B, 694,185 33, 160357
Back end load 24007 B30 0 599,065
Rembursemant of afvcled exponses 10222 352 5568 97T
Hesmbursemanl ol seling and markeling expenses 5080, TTD 23836 995
Aamia lslamic Inoomo Fund Funids rndar Managomenl loe 61,542 507 32 735 95
maEnagEmel Salis Joad Ja 2 am B 66T, 744
Back and losd 5591062 4,333 505
Sharia fee paid on behall of the Fund 390,000 20000
Resnbursernonl of afocated axpenses 7 584 B4 5850 645
Resnbursemen! of seling and markebng expenses 35037 A5l 5646 804
Irreestmand in wnits of lunds under managemean - 75,399 149
Redmnphion of unis of knds under maksgumen 6,785,288 T0.613,140
Dinvidend inceme - M5 480
MCH Pakislan Assel Funds uifdor Managoment loe 20,070,980 2315n3
Allocation Fund manaEmeEl Sales foad RE:LTg 338786
Resmbursemonl of aiocaied expamses a2 rar Ti16.824
Resnbursement of selling and markeling expenses 1,710,051 -
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Year ended
Relafionship and percentage June 30, June 3,
Mame of the reiated party of sharsholding Mature of transaction - 023
- [Rupees) ———

Alhzmea isiarnic Maney Funds under Manzgemant e 107 667 418 113,991,756
Market Fund mEnagement Rembursmment of alocated expansas 13272225 2 BOO ART
Reimbursement ol seling and markaling expensas FHATHR 144 30 535 54
Bales load BB 243 235729
Shana lea paxd an behall of the Fund 350,000 T8 000
Invasinwant in wils of lunids under managemen - BB0.9/4 336
Resdemplion al unils of Tunds under managemant BED. 974 336
Dividend mcome - 1.044,186
Alhzmra lstamic Stock Fund Funds wnder Management fee 50780 563 51,738 405
management Sales load 1,153,701 82417
Remmbursemonl of allacalod expenses 3,280 034 2 586920
Reambursmment ol soing and markeling axponsss 16,783,018 3362%,963
Invasinwant in wils of lunids under managemen 1100, 000,000 25 000 000
Resdemplion ol unils of lunds under rmanagement 124,177 41 41,104 348
Shasma lea pad an behall of the Fund 350,000 T8 000
MCR Pakzbn Soveregn Fund  Funds wndor Managamant lee 81,860,195 3,716,306
management Bales load 5845583 1168967
Resmbursemonl of allocalod expenses 7,203 384 930546
Resmbursiment of soling and markoling axposss 31,832 623 2 730613
Irmvestmenl in wie of lunds wdas managemenl 2201 418502 510,355,360
Resdemplion al unils of lunds under rmanagement 1,883 671,718 514,168 B52

Dividend mcome 3,040 01 -
MCE Pakzstan Stock bara Funds wnder Managamant fes 161, 252,685 138 616, 166
Funsd management Bales load 219094 194,708
Reimburssmasnl of alocatod exponsas 6015622 5,580,808
Resmbursiment of soling and markoling axpeosss 29,740 368 80,50, 509
Invesimant in wiilz of lunds under managemenl 50,000,000 100,000,000
Redempiion of urits of lunds under manasgement 54108 580 188,367,953
Pakistan Capilal Markel Fund Funids wdor Managemant foa 13,624 193 11,825,184
rEsnanemeni Ruemmbursemend of allocalod expenses 314,662 351,045

Reimbursemen ol seling and markeling expenses 1 246 446 -
Pakictan Cash Managamanl Fuinds wnder Managemant los 150,554 290 BE_ 144 826
Fised management Remburssamesnl of alocatod exponsas 13,016,011 3,550,363
Rueimburssmend of selfing and markoling exponses 14,306,618 58650205
Sales load 7 456 53534

Dividond ascoma 35,080 -

Investiment in wiils of lunds under managemisn 600 E18 -

Redemplion of usls of lunds uhdor fesnagemionl B0 0 B18 -
Pakistan Incoma Funds wier Maiisgemant foo 58830510 6,022 504
Enhancarmsn Fund e Emanl Sales loar 8773402 5B BAB
Ruosmburssmen] of slleclod expenses 5,085 460 1,066,211
Resmburesmont ol saling and markoling oxpansas 22 10,310 5157 416
Pakictan Incoma Fund Fuinds wnder Managemant los 23 561,946 15,330 425
e Emanl Sales loar 1,626,996 ¥ 530,518
Ruosmburssmen] of slleclod expenses 2823 BaY 4 604,502
Resmburesmont ol saling and markoling oxpansas 12,71 15,794 16
Alhemira |akarmic Assel Fiifids uridsr Mafiagyaimant oo A4 ATV M0 49 845 0arF
Allocation Fund el ales load 266,355 147428
Back end load &7 564 5,055 938
Resmburesmont of allocalad mpansas 1.232 796 1511973

Remburserant of seing and markoling oxpenses 3 899,676 -
Shada lee pakd an bahall of the Fund 340,000 1,000
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Year ended
Relationship and percantage June 30, June 30,
Mame of the refaled party of oiding Mature of transaction 2034 s
~———— (Rupees) ———
Alhmmra istames Ponsson [Funds: wnder Mansgemant fee 233377 16,478,253
Fund management Sales load 2518876 TH5, 853
Redemplion of unils of funds under management 105,000,000 .
Pakistan Panson Fund [Funds: wnder Mansgemant fee A0 650 038 24 810 7x2
managemenl Eales load 2408131 1612544
Rodemption of unils of funds under reanagemont 8,500,000 .
MCE Alhanra KPK Govenmont  Fonds: under Manzpemont foe 380,994
Employees' Pensson Fund management Irvtstment in units of funds wder managemant 31,500,000
MCE KPK Govemsment [Funds wnder Manspement foe 165,24}
Employees’ Pansion Fund SNt Investmant ir uniks of furds under managemant 31,500,000
Alhamra |stamic Actve [Funds undar Management foe 67,334 88,208
AMincation Fund (Afamea Imanapment Rombursermant of aliocaled exponses 170 122,362
Smart Porfiolio) Investment in s of funds under managemant 11,415,785 .
Redemplion of urdls of funds under management - 35,1000, 000
Dividend income 13,430,335 -
Sales load . 168,606
Mhamra Dy Divadond Fund Funds imder Manapemenl foe 43726973 18,931 346
InaRpEmen Diwidend inoome . 616,275
Invesiment in unds of funds under managemant 7 856,756
Redemplion of units of furids under management - 317 B56,756
Roimbiirsamont of allbcated copenses 6800429 897 565
Reimbursament of zeling and markeing oxpanses 35,508 24 21,256 400
Bank charges paid on behall of fhe Fond 435452 446,197
Sales load 3913.280 8,762,367
Alhmmra Wada Fund [Funds: wnder Manspemant fee 510297
(Adhamra Wada Plan [} management Cividend incoms 32210
Imeestrment in wnds of funds wnder management 203
Redemption of unils of funds under managoment 50,358 725
Rembursermoent of zofing and markoing exponses o
Mhesmra Wsta Fund Funds umder Marsspement foe 1758948
{Adhmra Wada Fian IT) InaRpEmen Diwidend inoome 31,814
Invesiment in unds of funds under managemant 40441 673
Redemplion of units of furids under management 40,441 673
Roimbisrssmont of selfing and meerkoting expenses 1365810
Alhamra Wada Fund [Funds under Manzpemont foe 636,958
(M Wada Plan 1) mEnagement Dividend incoms 112547
Investment in unis of funds under managoemznl 18,191 314
Redemption of unis of funds under managoment 18,191,314
Rembursement of alocslod exponses -
Reimburzement of sefing and markeing cxpenses 1,265 981
Alhmmra Wada Fund [Funds: wnder Manspemant fee 20497941
(Adhaxmra Wada Plan IV) managoment Dividend income 783,860
Imessimant in s of funds nder managoment 45 264 523
Redempticn of units of funds under managamant 46 264 623
Rembursemont of allocaled cxponses 66,023
Reimbursement of selling and markoting cxpenses B&3 BR5
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Year ended
Retationship and percentage June 30, June 30,
Hame of tha relaled party of sharsholding Hature of transaction 254 s
——— iRupres) ——
Adhamra Wada Fund Funds umdor Management fos 150,800
(Mdhzmra Wada Plan V) maEnsgement Dividend income 164215
imvesiment in unis of funds endor managemont 25 130 583
Redempéion of units of funds under management 25192 659
Resmbursement of allocated exponses 397 667
Albamra Wesda Fund Funds imder Mansgoment foe M50
{Adhamra Wada Flan VT) manseement Dividend moome 152920
Imvesiment in onits of funds under managemont 100,129,990
Redemplion of units of funds under managamient 100,650,013
Resmbursemaont of allocated cxpenses 1810
Alhamrm Wada Fund IFunds under Manngemont foe 4,231,056 3,506,316
| Adhamra Weada Plan Vi) management Dividend ncome: 677 247 552
Investment in unéls of funds imder managemoent 16,522 515 564,015 308
Redempiion of units of funds under management 160,916,244 420 574 B4z
Resmbursement of allocated exponses 2 B30 265 1,697,235
Reimbursement of seling and markpting cxpenses 26 874 441 -
Ahamra Wada Fund Funds under Managemant fea 2524 449
(Adhamra Waeta Pian VIll) manssement Resmbursement of allocated exponses 124 86T
Reimbursement of seling and markpting cxpenses 830 384
Ahamra Wada Fund Funds under Managemant fee 205,800
[Adharmra Wada Flan [X) manEsement Reimbursement of alfocaled expenses 47 757
Rembursement of seliing and markeiing oxpenses 167,879
MNihamra Wads Fund Funde imder Manapemont foe 4 150 262
[Adhamra Wada Fian X) manEsement Reimbursement of alfocaled expenses 58411
Rembursement of seliing and markeiing oxpenses 3,055,000
Aihamra Wads Fund Funds under Managemant foe 10,490,995
[Adharmra Wada Flan XI) manEsement Reimbursement of alfocaled expenses 598,555
Rembursement of seliing and markefing cxpenses 6,568 613
Aihamra Wads Fund Funds under Managemant foe 1,388 345
[Adhamra Wada Pian XII) manEsement Reimbursement of alfocaled expenses 963
Rembursement of seliing and markeiing oxpenses 883,615
MCE Pakéctan Fixed Retum Funds under Managemant foe 45 BRS
Fund (MCE Pakistan manEsement Dividend moome 2162141
Fixed Rotum Plan 1) Investmant in units of funds under managemant 1,837,820
Redemplion of units of funds under managoment 171857 44
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Ritum Funds under Managemant fea 2 646 757
Fund {MCE Pakistan manssement Dividond income 2312
Fimed Fotum Plan 1) Reimbursement of allocasied cpenses 544,750
Reimbursemaont of sofiing and markoting ospenses 504 520
Invesiment in units of funds under management 27 233 6
Redempiion of units of finds undor managemiont 28,570,956
MCE Pakistan Fooxd Retom Funds imder Mansgpement fioae 2130958
Fund (MCB Pakizfan management Dividend incoma 1305440
Freod Retum Plan 8} Imvesiment in onits of funds under managemont 41,109 624
Redemplion of units of funds under managamient 41,109 624
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Year ended
Retationship and percentage June 3, June 34,
Mame of the relaled party of . Mature of transaction 22 iy
—— {Rupeeg} ———
MCE Pakistan Fised Retum Furds under Managemen] lee 1370780
Fund (MCB Pakiztan At Dividond ncomi 125758
Fixod Retsn Plan V) Reimbursement of affocaled expenses 322 85
Reimbursement of seliing and markoling oxpenses Tal6
Imeestment in units of funds wider management 20711118
Redemption of units of funds under managoement 21,0002 243
MCE Pakistan Maad Retun [Fursds umder Manapeminl los 11,561,554
Fund {MCB Pakistan mananemenl Dividend mcome 55,944
Fixed Rewsn Plan V) Reimbursement of affocaled expenses 6,003 485
Rembursement of soling and marketng oxponses 3,953,506
Investimant in wnds of funds wider managemaent 12,103 061
Rodemplion of units of funds under management 12,114 878
MCB Pakistan Mad Retun Fuands umder Manapemeni lpe 1,998 678
Fund {MCB Pakistan mananemenl Dividend mcome 52 862
Fixed Feturn Plan V1) Reimbursemend of allocaled expenses 3.010.318
Rembursermoend of sofing and markeling expanses 1961311
Investrmanl ir wnis of furds under managemiant 26431910
Redemplion of urds of funds under management 26 535 854
MCE Pakistan Fied Retun [Funds under Manzpement foe 185,716 To3.536
Fund {MCE Pakistan management Dividend ncome: - 08 726
Feceed Restusm Plan Vil Roimbiirzement of allbcated copenses 147 261 163612
Reimbursement of zedfing and markelng oxpanses . 38,808
Investrmanl in wnis of funds under managemsnt 5,054 261 115642 048
Redemiplion of urde of funds under management 16,358 742 107 072 655
MCE Pakstan Fioed Roturn [Fumnds wnder Managemont fos 8612735
Fund {MCE Pakistan STt Dividend Fcome 2871
Fixed Retum Plan 1) Retmbursemend of allocaled capensas 4 375 66D
Reimburgement of zedfing and markelng oxpanses 1,658 643
Invesiment in unks of funds under managemant 10,927 543
Redemplion of units of furids under management 10,942 272
MCE Pakestan Fixed Roben Funds under Manapement oa 3244 342 3243
Fund {MCE Pakistan STt Reimbursement of alocalod expenses 2158847 24186
Fixed Retum Plan X} Redmbursement of seling and marketng cxpenses 502 28T -
MCE Pakstan Fioed Roturn [Fumnds wnder Managemont fos 2,547 750
Fund {MCE Pakistan STt Dividend Fcome 8,938
Fixed Retum Plan X1) Redmbursemend of allocaled capenses 1427 304
Investment in unis of funds wundor managomant 55,800 605
Redemption of units of funds undor managomeont 56,404 724
MCE Pakizstan Fheed Riotom Funds imder Managamend foo 12 462 GRA AR B0
Fund (MCB Pakistan IMERgEETEn Resmbursement of afocaled expenses G2 653 223415
Fond Rietum Plan )
MCE Pakstan Fioed Roburn [Funds wder Manzpement ep 35372 390 333,045
Fund (MCH Pakistan manEgement Resmbursemend of alfocaled exponses 6,621 581 161311
Fixed Relum Plan X} Reimbursement of selfing and markoling oxpenses 14,475,760 -
MCE Pakestan Fied Roben Funds under Manspoment loa 5.306 498
Fund (MCE Pakistan manazsment Resmbursement of allocaled cxponses 24211979
Fioed Foetum Plan XIV)
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Year ended
Retationship and percentage June 30, June 3,
Mame of the refated party g Nature of fransaction 055 i
— (Rupees) ——
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds under Managomint foe 13,067 621 <
Faed (MCB Pakistan management Rembursement of afocated exponses 627 865 -
Fioeed Feturm Plan XV Reimbursement ol soling and markelng opensos 273 419 -
MCE Pakistan Food Rotum Furds: under Management foo 18,374,795 -
Fussd (MCB Pakiztarn ATl Raoimbiitseinont of alocaled exponses 142,374 -
Fied Foeturn Plan XVT) Rembersmmont of sofing and mankeng ciponses 152060 24 -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds under Managomint foe 4 457 BOO <
Faed (MCB Pakistan management Rembursement of afocated exponses 253 597 -
Fioeed Fieturm Plan £VIE) Reimbursement al sclling and markelng oxpensos 2 536 468 -
MCE Pakistan Fiood Rotum Furds under Manssgement foe 13457 31 -
Fussd (MCB Pakiztarn ATl Raoimbiitseinont of alocaled exponses 8529y -
Fied Footurn Plan XL Rembersmmont of sofing and mankeng ciponses TEM AT -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds undor Mansgomant foe 1,735,360 -
Faed (MCB Pakistan management Diwidond moomo 645,540 -
Fioeed Foeturm Plan 1) Invostment in wils of funds wder managemen 10,551,208 -
Rembursemont of allocsled expenses 916 645 -
MCE Pakistan Flood Rt [Fiinids urider Manisyomant foe 2 750,37 -
Fund (MCB Pakistan management Ditvidony iscome 463 B19 -
Fied Fietum Plan XX} Imvestrmant in whils of funds undor managemis 10,358 963 -
Redemplion ol urdls of funds undor manasgemenl 10_498 863 -
Reimbeessmon of aiocated exponses 5622 -
Rembursement of solling and markeing openses 1,726,366 -
ML Palestan Fixed Rofum Funds wnder Manapemant foe 2542 B35 -
Fumd [MCB Pakistan mmanagement Reimbursement ol allocaled expenses 317 oa7 -
Fid Rt Plan 3000 Raimbiirsemont of solling and makolng axpanses 1421453 -
MCB Pakistan Oppotunly Funds under Manzgemont oo 7528 69 1,505,425
Fuared (MCB Pakistan HiEanagEment Diivicon oo 5259 818 -
Diwidond Yick! Pian) Sales lnad 589,230 -
Retmbursemen ol alibcaled cxpenses 210,991 -
Rembursmmont of sofing and markcng ciponses 40,793 -
Invesiment in wnits of funds: weder management 3,458 910 5,000,000
Redompbion of unils of funds undor managemenl 104 587 217 10,000,000
Alhamra Cash Managemen Funds under Management loe 44 55R 187 1,565 748
Opfliradzo i ATl Raimbiitseinont of alocaled exponses 739174 T4 506
Resmbursemeont of sofing and markoing openses AT B2 942 504 854
Sales load 3,28 TET BH3,869
Iivestrmanl in et of lunds whied managomont 33202 10,150,099
Redompiics of unils of funds undor mansssement 224 535 208 -
DOividend incom 20,828 176,587
Athamra Oppontunity Fund Funds: wnder Management foe 1,509,830 -
(Dividend Strabogy Flan] mmanagement Reimbursement ol allocaled expenses 42134 -
Remmbursemont of soling and markolng mponss 184,823 -
Salers load 346,933 -
Invostment in wils of funds wder managemen 20 002 480 -
Retomption of usits of funds undor managemicnl 21 56 076 -
Dividend ncoms 2830 -
MCE DCF Fred Retum Fund [Funids e Manmgemaont fos 1.267 230 -
{MCE DCF Fixed Hofum Plan 1) managomont Rembursement of afocated exponses 1T8A1 -
Retmbursemen] of sclling and markebng exponses 626 461 -
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Year ended
Relationship and parcentage . June ¥, June 3,
ootk goch oo of sharshaiding ik i iy 2024 2073
(Rupees} ——
MCEB DCF Foood Retuim Fund [Fiinids urder Matisgomant foe 15,145 -
(MCB DCF Fixed Bolum Plan Il)  management Resmbursement of aiocaled exponses 120,033 -
Rembursemoent of sofling and markalng oxpenses 401,269 -
Alhamra Govorment Seombes Funds wneer Manzgemaont fos 18852 -
Faend { Adbmiras Govormammant management Rembursement of aocated exponses 1,824 -
Secunbirs Plan 1) Retmbursemen] ol scling and markebng exponses 1,482 -
Investment in vt of funds under managoment 50,000 000 -
Muharmmad Sagih Saleom Ex-Chiol Exective Officor Lean dishursed during e year - 12 5060000
Lisaiy rexpnd cluiring Wi year 10,562 158 13,847 498
inetrest meome on doan 51,891 1,168 BOG
Procecds from dsposal of fived assots B -
Amount outstanding as at year end
MCB Bank Limitod Pasonl comparmy with Bank balances 17,888,102 50,154 668
B1.42% sharchoking Oeheer payabile 7,084 1358 5,600,242
{2023 81 48% sharcholding)  Commisson payatiie 61912722 16,890,569
MCB tslamic Bank Limiled Subesichizery of Bhe Bank balances 2 32945
Parmont Comparny Accrued profit on savings account 2 556 -
Commession payablo 222 M4 -
Adarmjes | o Assirancs Geotip Compaiy Advienry lee reciivabiln 338,000 10 e
Company Lsmifod Propaid msurancn 1,142,822 Isifrr
Ohar payabile 1,040, 57 -
Adfarmon Insusance Company Group Cormpdany Prepaid msuranco 12 502 263 12,715,808
Lirnibesd of Paront Cormpanmy
Muitisal Fusnds Association Associalnd Company by vifn  Investmenl in shanes 265,000 265 000
of Pakistan of common dincctorship of
Wr. Khawai Khald Shah
MCE DCF noome Fund [Funds wnder Resmuneratsog Meceivabn 21,386,185 10,246 441
management Sales load roceivablo 12,339,739 7.169 969
Recoivable agamsl reimbursement of alincaled cxpenses 1,008 378 604,510
Recoivabis againct selling and marketing exponses 427 626 7 B33.175
Back oned load rocmvable 1008822 99478
Federal oxcize duly an remunerabion 95 (60, 437 89 (60 437
Fedoral cxcise duly on saies load 27 832 590 27932 090
MEE Pakistan Assel Funds under Remuneration moeiable 1,846 126 1 68 Ax2
Mlocation Fund ATl Sales oad rocoivabla 109 1,665
Reconabic aganst roimbursement of alibcsied exponses 43,884 50116
Recoivablo agairst salling and marketing oxpenses 552404 -
Fodital cacist duly on farmaneration 19,027 350 19,027 350
Fodoral excise duty on saios load 16,172,855 16,172,855
MEB Cash Management Funds under Remuneralion meaivab 30,005 156 40 5986 108
Ciplirmizos iEhagement Bales load roceivable - -
Recorable againsl rommbursemont of aliocsted exponses 2782209 -
Recofvable againsl seling and markeling cxpenses 29014 591 61,483 500
Fedoral cxcise duly on remancrabion 54 766 12 54 D65 B12
Fodoral oxcise duty on sses lnad 18,788 18,768
Invostment held nunils of funds under management 382 X0 D33 367,723 141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retafionship and percantage June 3, June 3,
Mame of the related party of sharshokding Mature of fransacfion — 5
————{Rupees) ———

Alhamra istamac Income Fond Funds wndeor Remunerabon moeabis T8 657 2,136 856
risnagemernd Sales load recetvable 3,102 420 B4 538
Back e load recevable 128,545 464, 187
Recoivabis agamsl remmbursement of aliocated expenses 98 607 352 036
Plescatvalibs againsl salling @nd markeling expensces 9104 276 2485513
Restnivabls agairs! shartah advisor les 30,000 E0,000
Ferderal oxcise duly on remanerabion B.605, 163 f.539, 1683
Fodaral eacise duly on sabes load 3,008 386 3,028 366
Il bedd i wels of lunds uhder ksl - 6,310,240
MUCE Pakistan Siock Marksl Funds undar Remuneralion receivabio 20,305 248 9,264 250
Faend mEnaEmani Sales load rocenabls 331,189 1,691
Recofvable againsl reimbursement of allocsed expansas 4508 583 406,923
Riscarvable anairet salling and markeling oxpensos 5203 386 17 550,750
Foderal axcizs duly on remaneration 54173835 54,773,935
Fedaral excise duly on sales lnad 3,532 BA3 3,970 BA3
Paktelan Incoms Fund Funds undar Hemuneralion recaivable {807 oR2 1,062 /82
manampEmenl Sales joad rocehabks 22098 218489
Recoivable agains resmbursement o allocsied expensas 132,783 250,034
Recaivabls anainst salling and markeling expenses 1,621,908 4 511 580
Fodaral cotise duly on romircsalion 8,210,245 G20, 245
Foderal axcise duly on sales load 239,158 239,199
MCB Pakiskin Soveregn Fund Funds under Remuneration mceivabio 10,324,654 35,354
EnapETEil Sales oad nceabla 20,01 M BT
Recoivabis agamsl remmbursement of alfiocated expenses 64, 396 80,540
Recaivable againsl salling and markeling expenses 721501 Bi1,B45
Fodaral oatiss duly on ramonoralion 29027974 29027 8574
Ferdaral axcise duty on sabes load 4,165,840 4 165,840

Investimenl hald m wnils of lunds undisr masssemant J54 946,066 -
Pakistan Capital Markel Funsd Funds umnder Remunaratin receteabie 1,501,110 1,044 552

management Sales load reconvable 167 -
Reconabis agamsl remmbursement of alfiocated expenses 33833 27596

Recofvable againsl seling & markeding expenses 18R 562 -
Ferdaral oxcrso duly on ramuncrabion 5872250 5872250
Ferdoral oxcise duty on sabes load 3462 42 350 142
Alhamra lsamic Stock Fund Funds wnder Remuneraln moavabie 11,349.473 4534 B35
managemeant Sales Inad recenvabla 108 62F 1822
Recaivabis agaircl reimburssment of alocsied exponses 255,165 205,081
Riscaivabls anairsl solling and merkeling expissas 2516057 8479359
Hecaivabls agains! sharab advisor les 20,000 60,000

Invastment hold i unils ol funds under masssement - -
Fodaral axcise duly on ramanerabion 5685 242 5689 242
Foderad excise duly on sales load 124,913 124 813
Pakistan Pansion Fund Funds wndker Resmunaralion roceivabln 5,234 ¥o9 222 426
manampemenl Sales load rocshabls 240 358 1r4.518
Inyesiment hald m wnils of lunds under mansgomant 307 260 260 335,058 891
Fodatsl antien duly on famuneralion 5916465 5976 465
Alhzmea Isiarmic Assol Funds undar Remuneralion receivabio 4437 463 4 002 839
Allocabon Fund MmEnEsEmeEnt Sales load recevabls it} 6/
Recofvable againsl eimbursement of allocsed expansas 100, 46 107,346

Rascnivabls agairs! saling & markoling oapenses 1,170,728 £
Recoisbis agamsl shariah advsor les 30,000 6,000
Fedaral excise duly on remuneralion 5,910 300 5,910 300
Fodaral oaciss duly on sales losd 1,135,845 1,135 845
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relationship and parcentage June 30, June 3,
Hame of the related parfy of helding Mature of transaclion e 023
~——— (Rupess) ———
Alhamra |skamic Pension Fund Funds under Remuneralion mcoivable 2845 281 1,540 395
mstiagement Sales load recenvable 212355 218878
irvestment held & units of funds under menesgemonl 400,343 021 125504 (159
Fouoral axtiss duly on remunoraton 3,030, 332 3,030,332
Fakistan Sarmayva Mahfooz [Funds umdoer Fodoral excise duly on ramunerabion 1,960,082 1,860,082
Famned maEnagement Fodoral exclse duty on sales load 2307 278 2,307 278
Pakislan Cash Managsrmant [Fiinids urider Resiinoralon fcoiab 18,501 702 12 524 358
Fumnd mEfapement Salers oad recehabie 11,257 -
Recobvable agains reimbursemonl of allbested exponsos 1457 Bi4 1,004,115
Restoivabls samiret solling and markeing capoises 17,183 B10 2372 4
Foderal excise duly on ramunerabion 11,932 8284 11,932 884
Pakistan ncome Funds under Remuneralion mcoivable 6,437 370 552 919
Enhancomant Fund iEtagement Bales oad rocevable 108, 287 337,033
Recomabis agansl roimbursement of afiocaied exponses 404 637 151,198
Recofvable against seling and markeling cxpenses 4,933 502 1,717 818
Fodital oaciss duly an fefmaneralion 16,589 808 16,580,808
Fodoral axcise duty on sabes Inad 4746229 4 746,222
Alhamra |elamic Money Marka! Funds under Remuneralion meaivabe 10455 474 12368 372
Fusnad iEhagement Bales oad recevable 30,068 M. 737
Recorable against roimbursemont of aliocsted exponses 1,316,115 -
Recofvable against seling and markeling cxponses 15,222 242 14 560,974
Rocoivable agarst shariab advisor foo 30,000 €0,000
Fodoral oxcree duty on remumdcration 840 T4 B0 T4
Fodoral cacise duly on sabes lnad 3,554 B4 3,584 040
Alhamira dstamic Active [Funds wmder Remuneratsog ey 5,633 4,553
Allocaton Fond (Aamra management Recerable aganst reimbursemont of aliocsted exponses - 939
Smart Portiolio) Investrment held in units of funds under management 125,112,483 95,483 539
Alhzrmra Daily Drvdond Fund Funds under Romuneration reconabds B.493 025 1,807,636
ranapement Payabie agalnst bank charges 41,148 11679
Recoivabie samirs! reimbursement of albesled oxporses 1,005,795 -
Focoivabis asainct solling and markoling exponses 13,204 332 5,736,806
Sales load reoohable 14,551 SE2,174
Alhamra Wada Fund [Furds umder Remuneration e 3,562 205
{Adhimra Wada Pian VI mefagement Recomabis agansl rommbursement of afiocaied exponses - 1,687,226
Recofvable against seling and markeling cxpenses 13,863 443 -
Investrmant hold i urels of lunids under Fekasgemont - 141,251 835
Alhamra Wads Fond Funds undes Remuncraton fmeoivabi SE0.874 -
(Adhrmra Weda Plan VIlT) management Recolvabis sgansl reimbursement of alibealed cxpenses a1 4N -
Recoiwable agamat slling and markeling cxpernsos 528 2011 -
Alhamra Wads Fund Funds under Remuneraton mocoivabic 232 6ET -
[ Adbaasrvires Wada Pla DXy LT T Restaivabbs sqmtsl reimbirsemenl of albesled apbonses 47 151 -
Recoivabis agairct selling and markeling expensos 167 878 -
Ohar recotvable 100,000 -
Alhamra Wada Fund [Furds umder Remuneration e 1,348 252 -
[Adhamra Wada Plan X) mefagement Recomabis agansl rommbursement of afiocaied exponses 236 302 -
Recofvable against seling and markeling cxpenses 1,554 026
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retationship and percentage Jurne 30, June 30,
Hame of tha relaled party of sharsholding Hature of transaction 254 s
- {Rupees) ———

Alhamra Wada Fund [Funds umdar Remuneration receivabls 4380 507
(Mdhzmra Wada Plan XI) maEnsgement Recevable against reimbursement of allocated expenses 496,310

Receivable sgainst solling and markeding expanses 4188 234
Alhamra Wada Fond [Furnds umder Remuneration rocaivable 1,522 067
| Adhamra Weada Plan XH) management Recojvable against reimbursement of allocated copenses 148 366

Recoivable sqainst sofling and markeling expenses 883 514
MCE Pakzstan Fied Retum [Furds umder Recoprable aganst reimbursemont of allocated cxponses 3120454 6,003 485
Fund {MCB Pakistan management Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses 3,853, 506
Fixad Retum Plan V)
MCE Pakzstan Fied Retum [Furds umder Recoprable aganst reimbursemont of allocated cxponses ZZh A 3,010,376
Fund {MCB Pakistan management Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses 1832 614
Fieed Raetum Plan V)
MCEB Paksstan Fomd Retem [Furnds umder Remuneration rocoivable 851,458
Fund {MCB Pakistan management Recojvable against reimbursement of allocated copenses 11273
Fed Retum Plan VI Investment hisld i units of funds under mansdgemient 10,371,795
MCE Pakzstan Fied Retum [Furds umder Recoprable aganst reimbursemont of allocated cxponses 4 370 6EY
Fund {MCB Pakistan management Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses | B58 B43
Fieed Roetum Plan 1X)
MCE Pakestan Fined Rotum [Funds umder Remuneration recaivable - 36,650
Fund (MCB Pakistan management Receivabis against reimbursement of allocsied cxpensos 1,430,256 24,186
Fied Retum Plan X}
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotun Funds wnder Recoivable agamst reimbursement of allocated expenses 1,265,348
Fund (MCB Pakistan management
Fixed Retumn Plan. X1)
MCE Pakestan Fined Rotum [Funds umder Remuneration recaivable - 5F2 B45
Fund (MCB Pakistan manapement Receivable sgainst reimbursemant of allocsied expensos Ti7 525 273 875
Fixed Retum Plan X11)
MCE Pakestan Fined Rotum [Funds umder Remuneration recaivable TAT3 740 3706, 306
Fumd (MCB Pakistan manapemernt Receivabie against reimbursement of allocatod cxpeneos 1,133,518 161,311
Fixed Fietum Plan X1H) Receivable against selling and markefing cxpenses 5330 887 -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotun Funds wnder Recoivable agamst reimbursement of allocated expenses 1,425,652
Fund (MCB Pakistan management
Fixed Retum Plan X1V)
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Rofum [Fundsumder Remuneration receivable 8287 712
Fund {MCB Pakistan managemant Receable against reimbursement of allocated exponses 1,207,732
Fimed Faotum Plan XVI) Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses 9,837 B73
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Rofum [Fundsumder Remuneration receivable 2 100,750
Fund (MCH Pakistan management Recoprable aganst reimbursemont of allocated cxponses 208,230
Fimed Rotum Plan VI Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses 1,752 488
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Rofum [Fundsumder Remuneration receivable THR3T 554
Fund {MCE Pakistan manssement Recoprable against reimbursemont of allocated cxponses 790 465
Fimed Rotum Plan V) Recojvable against selling and markeling cxpenses 6,21 253
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Rolations hip and percontage Jung 30, June 30,
MName of the related party of B Hature of iransaction 2024 2023
e [RispoES) ——
MCE Pakistan Foed Retum Funds under Remuneration receivabie 1,407,280
Funed (MCH Pakistan management Recpieshie agsinst mimbursement of alocated expenses 624, 285
Feed Refum Plan X1X) imvestment held m units of funds under management 10,608,219
MCE Pakistan Foed Retum Funds under Receivabie aganst seling and markelng expenses 1,766,387
Fumed {MCB Pakistan managemernt
Feed Rietum Plan XX)
MCE Pakzsian Fied Retum Funds umder Remunerabon recewahe 2734 304
Fund (MC8 Pakistan manasement Receivable agamst rembursement of alocsted expenses 147 987
Foed Retum Plan X1} Receivable sgemst seling ond markeing expenses 1.466 452
MCB Pakestan Opportundty Funds under Remunerabion recenvable 56,508 164,525
Fund (MCB Pakistan management Recamshiz sqanst rembursement of alocsied expenses 21,602
Dividend Yiedd Plan) Recoieshie against seliing and markesing expenses 3459802
Imvestiment held & units of funds under manapement . BOEST 44T
Aihamra Cash Managemend Funds under Remuneraton recenvable 8,083,104 1,651,119
Oplimizer managemernt Zales Inad moehiabie 802 5T 595 66T
Recamshiz sganst rembursement of alocsied expenses 1135414 79 506
Receivable ageinst salling and markefing expenses 14 202 208 o0J 804
Investment held & units of funds under manegement 10,150,100
Aihamra Opporunity Fund Funds under Remuneraton recerabie 24617
|Drwidend Stratesyy Plan) management Sales load recenable 235,772
Recapshiz against reimbursement of alocaied expenses 11,808
Recoieshie against seliing and markesing expenses 126453
Receivable against shariah advisor fee 30,000
Cther receivable 10,000
MCB DCF Fosd Retum Fund Funds under Remuneration receivahie 1.431 969
(MCB OCF Fixed Retum Plan [)  management Receivable sgainst reimbursement of afocaled expenses 17841
Recarvshiz anainst seling and markeiing expenses 6265 461
MCE DCF Fooed Retum Fund Funds under Remuneration receivabie &08,114
(MCE DCF Fixed Fetum Flan il mansgement Recaivable sgemst reimbursement of alocated expenzes 120,033
Receivabie against seling and markeing expenses 401,268
MCE Aamrs KPK Govemment  Funds under Remuneration receivabie 17423
Employees’ Pension Fund management imvesiment held in units of funds under mensgement 34 973094
MCE KPK Govemment Funds under Remuneration ecevabe 32,360
Employees' Pension Fund management investment held in units of funds under management 35,105,884
Ahamma Govermment Secunies  Funds under Remuneration recewvabie 21,303
Fund (Adhamra Govermment management Recapshiz against rembursement of alocaied expenses 1,824
Securiies Plan 1) Recoieshie against seliing and markesing expenses 1482
Other receivable 100,000
Invesiment held i units of funds under management 50 065 950
Muhammad Segih Ssieem Ex-Chief Executive Cifioer Loan outstanding 10,962,158
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

29 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVES
2024 2023 FUTI | BT 224 [ =m |
Rupees.
Managenal remuneration 18,782 587 17,750 625 - - Wr 2o 108,587 436
Bonus 17,600,000 17,600,000 - =+ 64,278,882 65,249 241
Ratirement benefits 1158201 1,375,381 - - 0544 0a2 8441804
Rant and house mamienance 8,209,856 7297 372 - - 51,044,810 45, 1189432
Utiities 1.824413 1,621,642 - - 11,343,326 10,026,563
hiedical 1,824,408 1621634 - - 11,343,302 10,026,535
Car aliowancs 14,270,261 11,132 310 - - 114541415 70 G657 GOB
Mesting fee - = 8,125,000 13,425,000 - -
Others t,zf%taz 2206 502 2 - 10,742 446 12 BBG 755
; \ E,FEEEE 8, 125,000 iE.HEE,ﬁﬁS Kl
Number of personis] 2 1 T 10 ] s
¢ e Mutianissd Saib Saleem reugned as Chiel Executive Dfficer duibng he year snd M Khasala Khall Shat was appobnted o his place
28 1 ‘Exocullve’ means an employee other than (he Chiel Execulive and direclors, whose basic salary oxceods Hs.
1,200 000 in a finrancal year.
30 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
301 The Company operales an approved contribulory provident fund for all s permanent employess oo which egual
meonthly contribulions are made bolh by lhe Company and the amployees al the rale of B.33%. ol basic salary. The
linancial statamants ol the fund are separately preparod and audiled and are nol included as parl of these financial
slatements. The Fund s maintained by the Truslees and all decisions regarding investimants and distibulion of income
ole. are mada by e Tiuslbes independent of he Company.
During the year, an amounl of Rs. 19103 millien (2023: Rs. 17.718 million) has bean chargod 1o the stalemenl of profil
or loss in respect of the Company’s confributions o the employess provident fund.
30.2 Investmants oul of the provident lund have been made in accordance wilh the pravisions of seclion 218 ol he
Companies Acl, 2017 and s rules lermutatad for this purposea.
i NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2023
Number of employees at June 30
- Parmanenl 226 230
- Probalion a5 14
- Conltractual 22 18
Average numbor of omployees during the year
- Parmanenl 222 231
- Probabon 28 16
- Conlraclual ia 15
a2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2024
Al Al fair value
amortisad through Total
cost rofit or loss
Rupoos
Financial assels
Long lerm daposils B646,103 - 6,646,103
Reoceivabla from funds under managemaeanl - refaled parties 442 160,500 - 442 160,500
Loans and advances 15,256,812 - 15,266,812
Other recelvables 45274 409 - 45274 408
Accrued profil on savings acoounls 4015 - 4015
Invesimants - 265,000 265,000
Cash and bank batances 33 678 807 - 33678807
43 020, 68 265,000 243, 285,640
Leaso habilily against Aghl-of-use assels 3,463 056 = £3.463,058
Unclaimed dividend 6,028,302 - 6,028,302
Irade and other payables 576482 509 - 576,482 509
655 073 BET - 655973867
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

MCB Investment Management Limited il

2023
At At fair value
amortised through Total
cost profit or loss
Rupses
Financial assets
Long lerm deposibs 6,816,103 - 6516103
Recovable from funds under managament - related partes 307,785,542 - 307,785,542
Lowans amd advancas 20,208,398 - 201 206, 398
Other receivablas 45,154 992 - 45,154 9592
Accrued profil on savings accounts BE, 189 - B, 189
Irvestmenis - 285,000 265,000
Cash and bank balances 65 478,577 - BEAFE.5TT
445 527 B0 265,000 445 792 BO1

Financial liabilities
Lease hability against nghl-of-use assets 87.575.812 - g7 575812
Unclaimed dividend 5,296,298 - 5,206 298
Irade and othar payabiles 232 478,829 - 232 478,829

325,350,539
_—————

325,350,839
prr—m e

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Tha Company lunctions as a single operating segment. The income derived from the managament fee of open-anded
collective investmeant schomes and voluntary pension schemes and income derved from investment advisory lee from
separalely managed accounls constiluted 87Y.36% and 2.64% (2023 95.13% and 4.87%) rospectively of tho lotal
Incorme armed from management and investiment advisory Tes during e yesr

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Company's activibes exposs it 1o cerlain financial nsks which the management monilors and manages theoegh
Intermal risk managemenl on an ongoing basis. In conneclion with the Company's linancing of operations, the finance
function ensures adeguste and loxibe bguidity. This s guaranieed by placing deposits in cash and exdromely liguid
negotiable nstruments and £ or using avallable credil feclilios.

Financial risks pertain o markel fsk, credit dsk and liguidity sk, The Company seeks o minimisa the effects ol these
risks by managing nancial sssets and liabililies 1o minimiss he risk sxposures. Complamse wilh the policies and the
pxposurg imils are reviewed inlsrmally on a continuous basis,

Market risk

Markel fisk b the risk thal the falr value or the future cash lows ol a inanclal instrument may flucluale as a resull of
changes in markel prices {o.g. foregn exchange rates, inforest rates, eguily prices; olc.). The objective of markel risk
managemant 15 o manage and confrol market nsk exposures within accoptable paramelers, while oplimising the
relums o shareholders.

The Company’s policy i= o manage markel risk through diversification and selection of sacuriies within specified lmils
sel by (e Board of Direclors.

Matrkol risk cornprises of three types of risk: currency rsk, yeld / interest rate rsk and other price risk.
Currency risk

Currency risk ks the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash lows ol a inancial insbumant will luctuale because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. As-al June 30, 2024, tho Company doos nol hold any significant Tnancial
Instruments that may exposse the Company 1o currency rsk.

Yield | inferest rate risk

Yiedd / imlerest rale risk s the dsk Ual the far valoe or lulure cash flows of a fiancial instrormant will lecluate because
of changes in markst intores] rkos.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Prasontly, tha Company holds batances with banks in savings accounts which exposa the Company to cash flow profit
rabs mek. I case of 100 basis poinls increase | decsass in applicable rates on the last repricing date with all athar

variables held constand, the et profil for the year and et assets of the Company would have been higher [ lowar by
Rs. 0183 milllon (2023, Hs. 0494 million ).
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b} Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

As at Jurex 30, 2024 the Company does nol hold any finrancial assets thal may exposs the Company (o fair value profit
rate risk.

Yield /[ interest rate sensitivity posibon of on balance sheet financial instruments is based on earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheel instruments is based on the setilement dale.

The Company's yiold [ interest rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabiliies as at Juno 30, 2024 can
be determined as follows:

A
Effective yiskd ! nieresi | mak-up bearing Man-interes! | mark-up bearing
ittt ral Maturity upto | Matwrity afier Baturity upte | Baturity fher Total
o yedr o year ons yast ons ye
{Ruzpaes]|
Financial assets
Lowisg fermm deposits - - - - EB4G, 103 846,103 6,846,103
Recoalie from funds undsr managemend
- relaled parlies > - - 442 160500 - | 442160500 || 442,160 500
Lemns and advances T2.35% 114954 | 3806223 021,077 3200 | THFZHIS| 11235635 15,256 812
Ofher receveabies - - - 45,774,409 - 45274 40 45274 408
BAccrued profil on ssangs scoounts £ = - 405 - 4,015 4015
imeeiments - - - 265 000 - 265,000 265,000
Cash and bank balances 7.5 - .50% 18,297 965 - 18,297 985 || 157380842 - 15,380 842 33,678 807
18412978 006,223 22318142 G0G30T 566 14568530 HADOHG504 543 285 GG
Fi 2l b
Lemsa Bability sgans] nghl-of-use a=ssels S08% - Z2.48% 42045580 | 0T ATD| 73463050 - - - 73,463,056
Uinecdaimed dindciend - - - 6,028 302 - 6,028,302 6,028, 302
Trade and ofher payaties 2 - - || 576482508 - | 5T AR2 5 || 57H 482 500
47 B45580 08T ATD  TIAGI 056 582 10BN - BE2RIDBY 655971 BGT
On-balance sheet gap (a3} (24 732 66T) (P11 4T) (51.43914) (TE113,245) 458530 [R1.5H.307) (172688271
Off-balance sheet financial mstruments = = - - = - =
Dif-balance sheet gap (b} - - - - - =5 -
Total mterest rete sensilivity gap {a+b) (32 66T) (ZE911247)  [51.143.914) (ME113.245) 145689308 (61544307 (112GE8.201)
Curmuafive inferest rate sensitivity g2p (24,232, 667) (51.943.914) (102267 B28)
22 _
yer Maztanty n:u- Idlmilq after Maturity upin mm Tokal
interest rae Sob-indat Sub-otsl
OnE YEET e e ons year ons yeF
{Rupaes)
Financial assats
Long lerm deposils = = - - 6.A16,103 E816, 103 B, 816, 103
Recevahls Inom lunds under rmanagermend
- related parties * = - 07, 7RG 542 - | 307785542 || 307,785,542
Loans and advances 12.36% - 17.00% ZBE2 N5 | 12416544 15,098 059 1.048.058 | 4161283 5,107,339 20,206,338
CHiher recoivabies * - - 45,154,982 - 45,154,852 45,154,992
Accrued profil on seangs scoounls = - - 86,189 - BE, 1589 BG, 189
bkt = = = 265,000 - 265,000 265,000
Cash and bank balances T 6% - 19.50% 48,308,737 - A3 368 T3IT || 16,109,840 - 16, 109,840 5 478,577
2050852 12416044 BA4AETTME  ITLATHI9 S 9TT388 3Ht 325005 445.7HZ BOY
Financial [iabilties i —————
Lemsa Babifity agans! nghl-of-use assels S08% - Z2.48% 24T 036 | So628, 7T | BTSTHBIZ - - - 5575812
Unecdaimed dindiciend - - - 5,286 298 - 5,296 260 5,296 250
Traxbo and piteer payables - - - Z32 4TH 878 - | 23247887 || 232478 829
WMT0 SE62BTTE  BTSTR A2 I TR IAT - 2WII5T 3E57350.938
On-balance sheet gap (a3} 21103816 (44 211837) {23.108016) 133572402 9577386 143540878 120441 862
Off-balance sheet financial nstruments = . = . +
Off-balance sheel gap (b} - - - - - - -
Total interest mte sensitivity gap (a+h) 21,103,816 (#4.211832) (Z3.108.016) 133572482 957386 143540878 120441862

Cumuiative inferest rate sensitvity g2p 1103878 (23.108,016) {45.3716,032)

MCB Investment Management Limited 113 Annual Report 2024
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3423 Price risk

Price risk is the risk thal the fair value or lulure cash llows of a nancial instroment will Muctuale as a resull of changes
in markel prices (other than those - arising from intarest rate nsk or currency fsk) whather those changes are caused by
lactors specific o the individual linancial instrumen] o ils ESsuer, or Bolors affecling all similar francal instruments
lraded in the markel

As al June 30, 2024, the Company does nol hold any linancial assets thal expose il o prica rsk.

Credit risk

Cradil risk is tho rsk thal a countarparty will fail to discharge an obligation and cacse ho other parly 1o incur a linanciat
loss. The enfirg hinancial assals are subjoct o credil nsk, howevor the management belevas that the Company’s crodil
risk is minimal as major porlion of financial assels comprise of recelvablas from s lunds under managamanl which are
lmanciafly scund. The crodil risk on balances wilth banks & also conskderod minimal as the balanoes are kapt with
sound linancial instilulions.

The Company's inancial assals are paither past due nor mpaired as al e reporing dale excepl as disclosed m noles
9.6, 11.1 and 11.3 o thesa nanclal slalomants.

Credil nsk on amounts of receivable from separalely managed acoounts i minimal due to conlraciual nghts of the
Company lo sallle the receivable belore wilhdrawal / liguidation of underlying Invesiments.

Recoivable from funds undoer management

The latesi avadable ralings of the Funds in which the mvestments are made or Trom which amounts are receivable as
al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 are as lollows:

Fund namo 2024 2023 Raling agoncy
MCB Cash Managemen! Oplimizer AAHT) Af(l) PACEHA
MCEB DCF Income Fund AsD Al PACRA
Alhamra Istamic Income Fund Al AB1) PACHA
MCB Palustan Sovereign Fund Al Al PACRA
Pakistan Cash Managerment Fund ABHT) An+{0) PACRA
Pakistan Income Enhancameant Fumnd A A+ PACHA
Pakistan Income Fund Ad-(l) Al PACEA
Alhamra Cash Manageman! Oplimlzar AR AA+(D) PACHA
Alhzumra islamic Money Markel Fund AL Al PACRA
Alhamra Daily Dividond Fund A Al PACRA
Alhamra Wada Fund Al AAIT PACHA
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund AR An+D PACHA

Al other lTunds are nol required o be rated.
Bank balances

An analysis of the credil quality of balances with banks s as lollows:

2024 2023 .

Short termn_| | Long term Short term_| | Long term Fting speacy
Bank Makrarmah Limited Suspanded Suspendod Suspended Suspendod A,
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AL A1+ ABA, PACRA
Faysal Bank Limited As Ad A-ts AA PACRA/ VIS
Bank Alfalah Limited Al Al A-1s Al PACRA
MCE Islamic Bank Limited A A+ A A PACHA
Askar] Bank Limitod A1+ Ab A Al PACRA

Concentration ol credil risk

Concenlralion of credil risk exsls whon changes in oeconamic or industry lfaclors simitarly allect groups of
counterparios whose aggrogale credil axposune B saniicant n relation o the Coampany's lotal credil exposins. The
Company's portiolio of financial instruments is broadly divarsified and lransacbons are entered inlo with diverse cradil-
worlhy counlerpariies ihareby mitigating any significan] concenlralions of credil rsk.
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Dedails of the Company's concentration of credit risk of linancial assels by industrial distribution are as follows:

| 2024 | 2023 ]

(Rupoas) (Parcontage) {Rupoees) (Percontage)

Commorctal banks A3677.704 6.20% 65,559,178 14.71%
Muitual funds 442 160,500 B1.39% 307 785542 69.04%
Cihers 67 442 524 12.41% 72442493 16.25%
543 280 558 100.00% 445787 213 100.00%

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk before any credit enhancemant as at Juna 30, 2024 i the carrying amount of the
financial asscets, Cash in hand, however, 5 not exposed (o credit nsk and has boon oxduded from the above analysis.

344  Liquidity risk
Lkquidity risk is the risk thal the Company may nol be able lo generale sufficlent cash resources io setfle iis obligations
in full 2= they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous. The management closely
monitors the Company's liguedity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance shoef hgudity ratios
and rfional Investment decisions afier aking inlo conslderation the current availability of guid resources. As al June
30, 2024, the Company's cash and bank balances amounted to Rs. 33.679 million (2023: Rs. 65479 million).
The management of the Company believes that | is nol exposed o significant level of iquidity risk as iis receivables
are highly liguid and mostly receivables are from its own funds.
The table below analyses the Company's financial kabiliies inio relevan] maturity groupings based on the remaining
peried from the reporting date o the contraciial maturity date. The amounts in the table below are contracial
undiscounted cash flows:
2024

Contractual Carrying Malturity Maturity

cash flows amounl uple one after one
Financial fiabilities Rupoes
Loasa kability against righl-of-use assels 85,640 144 73,463 056 52 058,316 33,581,828
Unclaimied dividend 6,028 302 6,028,302 6,028,302
Trade and other payables S76 482508 576482509 576482509

668 150,955 B558973 867 634 569127 3,581 828

Il 2023

Contractual Carrying Maturity Maturity

cash flows amounl uplo one aftler one
Financial liabilities Rupoes
Lease liability against righl-of-use assets 107 573,754 87 575812 43 053 256 64,500 498
Unclaimed dividend 5,206 298 5,206,298 52496258
Trade and oilher payables Z3247BB29 232478829 232478829

345 348,881 325350939 _280.828 383 £4.520. 498

345 Operational rizsk

MCB Investment Management Limited 11

Operational risk is the rsk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associaled with the processes,
technology and infrastrocture supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or extemally at
the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as thoso
arlsing from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepled siandards of investimenl management
behaviour. Operationsal risks arise from all of the Coampany's activities:

The Company’s objecthve is 1o manage operalional risk so as lo balance financial losses and damage o iis repulation
with achieving it investment objective of generating returns for investors.

The primary responsibility for ihe development and implementation of controfs over operational rizk rests with the
Board of Directors. Thiz responsibilily encompasses the controls in the following ancas:

- requirements for appropriale segrogation of dulies between vanous funclions, roles and responsibilities,
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- reguirements Tor the reconciliation and moniloring of transactions;
- compliance with regulatory and other logal requirements:
- documentation of controls and procodures;

- reguirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures
to-addross the nsks identified,

- ethical and business standards. and

- sk mitigation, mduding insurance whera this is effective.

Senior managemant ensures that the Company's siafl have adoquate fraining and experience and losters effective
communication related o operational risk management

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective when managing caplial is o safeguard the Company's abilily o continue as a going concern
zo that it can conlinue 1o provide returmns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 10 maintain a sttong
capital base o support the susiained development of its businesses.

Tha Company i subject to externally imposed mindmum equity requirement of the NBFC Rules 2003 and the NBFC
Regulations 2008 for providing asscl management services and investment advisory services and = reguired to
maintain minimum equity of Rs. 200 million. The Company's paid up capital is above the minimum required threshold
firnit.

The Company seis the amount of capital in proportion 1o risk. The Company manages the capital struciure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic condiions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets.
Cumently, the Company s financing its operaions through equity and working capital.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair valuo is the price that would be received to scll-an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordary transaction
between markel participants al the measuremenl date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrylng values
and the fair value estimates.

Underdylng the definiion of fair value |= the presumption thatl the Company ks a going concern withoul any intonticn or
requiremaent to curlaill materally the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverso torms.

The estimated falr value of all finrancial assets and liabilities i considered not lo be significantly different from camrying
values as tho ilems ane eithor short-term in nature of ane penodically repriced.

Fair value hierarchy

Intemational Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement” requires the Company o classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hicrarchy thal moflects the significance: of the inputs used in making the
measuremaents. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Lewel 1. guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites,

Lewval 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within lavel 1 that are observable for the assel or Oabilily, either
directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices), and

Lewval 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (e, unobsarvable inputs).

As al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Comgany held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

2024
ASSETS Level1 || Level2 || Leveld || Total
Rupoos
Financial asscts "at fair
value through profit or loss'
Investment in.shares = - - 265,000 265 000

MCB Investment Management Limited 122 Annual Report 2024




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2023 _
ASSETS Level1 || Level2 || Leweld || Total
Rupees
Financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss®
Investmenl n shares * . 265,000 265 000

These rpresent shares-of Mutisal Funds Association of Pakistan which have boon camied at cost since their fir valud s not
considored to be matenally different from s carmying amount. Accordmgly, the disclosures with respect o loval 3 financial assets have
nol boen ghaen.

37 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on Seplember 25, 2024 have proposed a final cash dividend in
respecl of the year ended June 30, 2024 of Rs. 2.50 per Share (25%) [(2023: Rs. 5.50 per share [(55%])).
Thesze financiz! statements do not include the effect of these sppropnations which will be accounted for
subsequent to the year end.

38 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial stalemenis were authonsed for Bsue on Seplember 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

i} GENERAL
391 Figures have been rounded off fo the nearest Rupees, unless otherwise specified.
392 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Comesponding figures have been reamanged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purposes of

comparnson and to reflect the subsiance of the transactions. The following major reclassifications have been made in
these finanoal statements durng the cument year:

Amount
Description Reclassified from Reclassified to (Rupees)
Input {2 adjustment against Taxation - net Trade and other 6,250,375

sales tax payable payables

T | ;
T mﬁmw:zr

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director

MCB Investment Management Limited 13 Annual Report 2024




BALLOT PAPER

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST
FOR POLLAT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON

Folio Wo. / CDC Account [ Bob-Accsunt Ho.

 Begisiered Address

|
Mame of sharehaldesjoint shareholders |
|

Murmires of shares held

CHICHNICON Mumirer or Passpott Nurmhet i_m cage of Foreign mn-mal}
ey 1o he attached)

Additinnal Infurml.tirm amd enclnsures (Tn case of reprosentative of b-m:l].r um'_['lwat: worporation mnd Feder! Govemment, |

Mame of Awmhaorized Represgnintive |

Awthorized Bepresentative’s CNICNICOF Number of 'azaport Number
{1 cose of Foeewgn notional) icopy to be attached)

Copy of Beard Resolution / Power of Aftomey of body corporale,
corpocotion and Federal Government

Twe hereby exercise myfonr vote o respect of the following resolution(s) throngh postal hallet by conveying myfoor sssent or dissent
Lo the following resolutonis) by placing tick (V) mark in the appropriare box below idelefe as appropriate;

Sr.
M.

MNaiure and Description of resolutioniz)

Ma. al
ardinary
shares fur
which
VMBS cast

Special Resolution {Agenda No. 5)
“RESOLYED THAT subject to pnor approval of the Sccunties and Exchenge

Commission of Pakistim {the Commuession) undes Bale 5(6ih) of the MNon-
Banking Finance Companies |Esmblishment and Beguloticn) Bules, 2003 (the
Rules), afier clavse 3 addion of clause 3A, and 3B, (as appearing in (he
statement of material facts) in the object claonse (I of the Memorondum of
Aszociation of the Company, be herebyapproved and adopted o vadertake the
business of REIT Management Services undes the Feal Eatate imvestment Tesi
Eegulitions, 2022 and Private Fund Munagement Services under Private Funds
Regulntions: 4015,

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT in addiiom fo sforesaid changss m (he
Memeogsndum of Association approved by the members 83 special resolution,
any chanpes in the Memorandum of Association ag may be advised and direcled
by Commssion and agreed by the Chief Exequtive of the Company shall be
meated as opproved and sdogted by the members from the date of passing of thag
specind resoluton-as part of thiz Speoinl Resolubion wathowst the need of the
members approval and shall hive effect nccordinghy,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chiel BExcculive andior Compeny
Secestnry agd for Chiel Financial Oficer of the Company be and are hercby
Joimily vr severally autherized to prepere. finalize, execute and file all aecezsary
documents, and do a1l necessary acis, deeds. and things in connection thenewith
and ancillary thereto a5 may be equired or expedient to give effect to the above
resclution and to complete all necessary corporate and legal complionces and
formalities,™

Sharcholder / Praxy holder Signamre/ Authorized Signatory
{10 cnse of corporate entity, please aflis ¢company stamp)

MCB Investment Management Limited 124

| 1'We agsent I'We disgent
to the o the
Eosolution(s) | WResslotionis)
{FPOR) [AGAINST)
DATE:
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BALLOT PAPER

NOTES:

L. Dully filicd postal ballot should be sent to Chormnn, MOH . Investment Management Limited through post ot Registered Office 2nd Fhoar,
Addamiee House, L1 Chondrigar Road, Karachi OR Email Chairmondsmebfunds.com

£, Copy of CRICHWICOP or Pussport (im cnse of fareign nutional) shonld be enclosed with the postal battot form, [n case of representative of body
corporite, corporation and Fedensl Govermoment, Board Resolution /. Power of Attorney shall nlso be enclosed

s

Pasial bitllot toems should eeach chaseran of the meeting onor before Saturduy, October 26, 2024, 5500 PM (last dile of recervirg postal baili)
Ay pestal hallol recerved after thes date, wall not be comsidered for voting

4,  Signature oo postal ballol should match with signature on CNICNICOP

n

Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over wriiten ballor paper will be rejected
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FORM OF PROXY
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
On October 28, 2024

The Company Sccretary
MCB Investment Management Limited
2% Floor, Adamjee House, 1.1 Chundrigar Road.

Karachi.
I'We of
in the district of
being & member of MCB Investment Management Limited,
hereby  appoint  Mr,/Ms./Mrs of
. - Or Failing to Him / Her appoint Mr./Ms.
Mrs of as

nry/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2024,

Siuraturs on five Rupees
ERevenwe Slamp

i The sipnature should agvee wath the specmen regesternd with the Company)

1. WITNESS: 2. WITNESS:
Signature; Signature;

Name: Nuame:

Address: Address:

CNIC/ Passport No. UNIC/ Passport No.

Shareholder Folio Na,
CDC Participant ID No & Sub Account No.

MNotes:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 2%
Floor, Ademjer House, L1 Chundngar Boad, Kurachi, Pakistan not less than 48 hours before the line of bolding
the meeting. A proxy need not be 2 member of the Company,

2. Ifa member appoints more than ons proxy and more than one instrumeqts of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of the proxy shall be rendersd invalid,

3. UDC shareholdess and their proxies are each requested to attech an attested photocopy of theit Compuoterized
Mational Identity Card or Passporl with this praxy form before submiszion to the Company,

4 The proxy shall produce his'her original CRIC or original passportat the time of the meeting,

4, In case of a.corporste entity, the Board of Directors Resolution / Power of Atterney with specimen signature of
the nomines shall be submirted (unless it kas been provided earlier) ulong with proxy form 1o the Company.
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM
MANDATORY CREDIT OF DIVIDEND INTO BANK ACCOUNT

To Date:

Dear Sir/Madam,

The undersigned being member of MCB Investment Management Limited (the Company), hereby
authorize the Company that all my cash dividend amounts declared by the Company. from time to time, be
credited into the bank accoumt as per following details:

(i)Shareholder's Details ]
Name of the sharcholder

Folio No. / CDC Participants [D & Sub Acc. No./CDC IAS
Account

CNIC/NICOP No. (Please attach copy) .

Fd%p{m Mo[in case of Foreign 'ihﬂn,]m]der] {Ptease attach
copy)
Land Line Phone No.
Ceﬂphﬂnf No.

(i) Shareholder's Bank Details
Title of Bank Account
Bank Account Number

‘Bank's Name

Branch Name and Address

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) {24 digit)

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct that 1 will intimate the change in the above
mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar/Participant/CDC (a5 the case
may be) as soon as these oceur,

Signature of the member/shareholder
{Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Notle

L. Please provide complete IBAN afier consultation with your bank branch. In case of any error or omission
in given IBAN, the Company will not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash
dividend payment.

2. In case of physical shares. a duly filled-in E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the
Company’s Share Registrar M/s Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. CDC House.,
99-H, Block B, S M.C H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

3. While for shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to member’s broker
( participant )/ CDC,
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CONSENT FORM FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

MCB Investment Management Limited

I'We, . being a member of MCB Investment Management Limited holder of
Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio/CDC Participant 1D & Sub-Account/Investor Account Nao.
hereby opt for pariicipation in the Annual General Meeting o be held on

, 2024 or any adjourned meeting through video-conference facility al

(Please insert name of the Cily)

Date: Signature of member

MNote:

This Standard Request Form may be sent at Share Registrar of the Company at below mentioned address.

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SM.CH.S,
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400
Tel: OR0O0 -23275

Email: info(@cdesrsl.com
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MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Head Office; 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachl
UAN; (+92-21) 111 468 378 (111 INVEST)

URL: wiww, mchfunds.com, Email: info@mecbfunds.com



